



5

CIHM/ICMH Collection de microfiches.



Canadian Institute for Historical Microreproductions / Institut canadien de microreproductions historiques



Technical and Bibliographic Notes/Notes techniques et bibliographiques

The Institute has attempted to obtain the best original copy available for filming. Features of this copy which may be bibliographically unique, which may alter any of the images in the reproduction, or which may significantly change the usual method of filming, are checked below. L'Institut a microfilmé le meilleur exemplaire qu'il lui a été possible de se procurer. Les détails de cet exemplaire qui sont peut-être uniques du point de vue bibliographique, qui peuvent modifier une image reproduite, ou qui peuvent exiger une modification dans la méthode normale de filmage sont Indiqués ci-dessous. T

tc

Ţ

P o fi

> C b t

> fs

Coloured covers/		Coloured pages/
Couverture de couleur		rages de couleur
Covers damaged/		Pages damaged/
Couverture endommagée		Pages endommagées
Covers restored and/or laminated/		Pages restored and/or laminated/
Couverture restaurée et/ou pelliculée		Pages restaurées et/ou pelliculées
ver title missing/		Pages discoloured, stained or foxed/
a titre de couverture manque	Ľ	Pages décolorées, tachetées ou piquées
Coloured maps/		Pages detached/
Cartes géographiques en couleur		Pages détachées
Coloured ink (i.e. other than blue or black)/		Showthrough/
Encre de couleur (i.e. autre que bleue ou noire)		Transparence
Coloured plates and/or illustrations/		Quality of print varies/
Planches et/ou illustrations en couleur		Qualité inégale de l'impression
Bound with other material/		Includes supplementary material/
Relié avec d'autres documents		Comprend du matériel supplémentaire
Tight binding may cause shadows or distortion		Only edition available/
along interior margin/		Seule édition disponible
distorsion le long de la marge intérieure		Pages wholly or partially obscured by errata
		slips, tissues, etc., have been refilmed to
Blank leaves added during restoration may		ensure the best possible image/
 have been omitted from filming/		obscurcies par un feuillet d'errata, une pelure
Il se peut que certaines pages blanches ajoutées		etc., ont été filmées à nouveau de façon à
mais, lorsque cela était possible, ces pages n'ont		obtenir ia mellieure image possible.
pas été filmées.		
Additional comments:/		
Commentaires supplémentaires:		•

This item is filmed at the reduction ratic checked below/ Ce document est filmé au taux de réduction Indiqué ci-dessous.



ails du odifier une nage

rata o

pelure, 1 à

32X

The copy flimed have has been reproduced thenks to the genarosity of:

D. B. Weldon Library University of Western Ontario (Regional History Room)

The images appearing hare ere the best quelity possible considering the condition and legibility of the original copy and in keeping with the filming contract specifications.

Original copies in printed paper covers are filmed beginning with the front covar and anding on the last pega with a printed or illustrated impression, or the beck cover when appropriate. All other original copias sra filmed beginning on the first page with e printed or illustrated impression, and anding on the last page with a printed or illustrated impression.

The last recorded frame on each microfiche shell contain the symbol \longrightarrow (meaning "CON-TINUED"), or the symbol ∇ (meaning "END"), whichever spplies.

Meps, plates, charts, etc., may be filmed at different reduction ratios. Those too lerge to be entiraly included in one exposure are filmed beginning in the upper left hend corner, laft to right and top to bottom, as many frames as required. The following diagrems illustrete the mathod:



L'axemplaire filmé fut reproduit grâce à la générosité da:

> D. B. Weldon Library University of Western Ontario (Regional History Room)

Les Images suivantes ont été reproduites avac le pius grand soin, compte tenu de la condition at de la netteté de l'axampiaira filmé, at an conformité avec les conditions du contret de filmage. 1

Les exemplaires originaux dont la couverture en papier est imprimée sont filmés en commençant per le premier plat et an tarminant soit per la dernière pege qui comporta una empreinta d'Impression ou d'illustretion, soit par le second plet, selon le ces. Tous les eutres exempleires origineux sont filmés en commençent par la première pege qui comporte une empreinte d'impression ou d'illustration et en tarminent par la dernière paga qui comporte une telle empreinta.

Un des symboles suivants apperaîtra sur la dernière image de cheque microfiche, selon le caa: la symbole → signifie "A SUIVRE", le symbole ▼ signifie "FIN".

Les cartes, pianchas, tableeux, stc., peuvant âtre flimés à des taux de réduction différents. Lorsque le document est trop grand pour être reproduit en un seul cliché, il est filmé à pertir de l'angle supérieur geuche, de gauche à droite, et do heut en bes, en prenant le nombre d'images nécesseire. Les diagrammes suivants illustrent le méthoda.



1	2	3
4	5	6



THE NEW ARITHMETIC

COMPILED BY

THREE HUNDRED PROMINENT EDUCATORS

AND EDITED BY

SEYMOUR EATON,

Author of Eaton's Practical Grammar, and Editor of the School Supplement.

TORONTO: EATON, GIBSON & CO. 1885. Entered, according to Act of Parliament of Canada, in the year one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, by EATON, GIBSON & Co., in the Office of the Minister of Agriculture at Ottawa.



EDITOR'S NOTE.

THE contributors to the exercises in this book are about three hundred in number. The names of those from whose contributions I have drawn most largely are adjoined. I am myself responsible for the plan of the work, for the grading, and for a large number of the exercises. Explanations of theory, and other introductory matter, which the teacher should himself provide, I have purposely omitted. I have endeavored to prepare a pupils' hand-book. The practical character of the exercises will commend them to all who nave at heart the mental development and the business success of their pupils. I have avoided all exercises requiring much labor and affording very little intellectual or practical benefit. The work of the elementary departments prepares the pupil for the study of algebra, geometry, and the higher mathematics, while the more advanced work prepares him for the active duties of everyday life, and at the same time gives him such mathematical training as he may not have time to secure in any other way.

Suggestions and criticisms are solicited.

TORONTO, May, 1885.

SEYMOUR EATON.



PROF. D. E. LANTZ,

Mathematical Master of the State Agricultural College, Manhattan, Kan. WILLIAM MARIGOLD,

Head Master of the National School, Chippenham, Wiltshire, England.

W. H. SIMS,

Superintendent of Education, Goshen, Ind.

JOHN TAIT.

Mathematical Master of the Collegiate Institute, Collingwood, Ont.

W. A. BEER.

Principal of Callensburg Academy, Callensburg, Pa.

E. P. ROWELL, M.A., Head Master of the Grammar School, Sacramento, Cal.

N. SOMERVILLE,

Superintendent of Education, Sherman, Texas.

MRS. MARY R. MCGWIGAN, Principal of the High School, Charleston, W. Va.

MISS J. H. O'NEAL,

Assistant Principal of the Public Schools, Falls City, Neb.

S. G. PRYOR, Principal of F. Girls' School No. 21, Baltimore, Md.

S. E. GROVER,

659] Congress Street, Portland, Me.

W. S. ELLIS, B.A., B.Sc.,

Mathematical Master of the Collegiate Institute, Cobourg, Ont.

PRINCIPAL D. H. BURBIDGE, Public Schools, Halifax, N.S.

W. J. ROBERTSON, B.A., LL.B., Mathematical Master of the Collegiate Institute, St. Catharines, Ont.

E. M. BIGG, B.A., Principal o. the High School, Parkhill, Ont.

MISS SARAH M. TAYLOR, Practice School, Portland, Me. T. M. HENRY, B.A., Mathematical Master of the High School, Believille, Ont. MICHAEL O'BRIEN, Head Master of the Roman Catholic Separate School, Lindsay, Ont. D. F. A. WILKINS, B.A., B.Sc., Mathematical Master of the High School, Mount Forest, Ont. E. J. GARRISON, A.B., Principal of Union City District High School, Troy, Tenn. PROF. D. D. COTTREL, High School, New Bremen, N.Y. PROF. J. A. Cox, Principal of the State Normal School, West Liberty, W. Va. WILLIAM A. PECK, A.M., Superintendent of Education, Whitestone, Long Island, N.Y. B. BAVIN HARDY, B.A., Head Master of Oakley School, Church Road, Bournemouth, Hants, Eng. MISS CLARA VILLING, Institute of Holy Angels, Fort Lee, N.J. J. WOLLMAN, Head Master of Wellgate Board School, Rotherham, England. W. P. GOUDIE, B.A., Derby, England. MICHAEL O'KELLY, Head Master of Louisburg National School, Westport, Ireland. EDWARD ALLEN, Head Master of Rushen School, Isle of Man. THOMAS W. HALFHEAD, M.A., Grammar School, Colne, England. JAMES W. ELLIOTT, Principal of the Normal School, Cassville, Pa. WILLIAM GRANT, C.M., Head Master of the Public School, Farquhar, Dornoch, Scotland. PROF. J. W. WELTON, Principal of the Business College, Grand Rapids, Mich. PROF. D. LEWIS, Superintendent of Education, Fairfax, Mo. PRINCIPAL F. CLARKE, Public School, Sanborn, Dak.

vi

MISS MARY E. WELLS. 216 S. Prospect St., Burilngton, Vt. MISS NELLIE E. CHAPIN, Goodale's Corner, Me. PRINCIPAL JOHN L. HALL, Public School, Shipman, Iil. RICHARD LEES. Principal of the Modei School, Lindsay, Ont. DR. J. W. CARLYLE, Mathematical Master of the Provincial Normai Schooi, Toronto, Ont. M. JUDSON VINCENT, Marcellus, Mich. C. A. FLEMING, Principal of the Northern Business College, Owen Sound, Ont. MISS EDITH ETHERIDGE, Paghan National School, Bognor, Sussex, England. JOHN SHAW. British School, Hollingworth, Manchester, England. THOMAS KIRKCONNELL, Mathematical Master of the High School, Vankieek Hili, Ont. THOMAS KENNY, Orlar National School, Kilkelly, Co. Mayo, Ireland. THOMAS WATTS, M.C.P., College School, Cambridge House, Baldock, England. PRINCIPAL A. NESBITT, 92 Mecienburg Street, St. John, N.B. ANNA RILAND, High School, 81 Jefferson Street, Dubuque, Is. B. F. HOOVER, Superintendent of Education, Smithville, Ohio. PROF. H. A. SHERMAN, 307 East 9th Street, New York City. PROF. A. R. MARTIN, School Examiner, Gavers, Ohio. J. T. SLATER,

Principal of Parliamen* Street School, Toronto, Ont.

R. R. JENNISON,

g.

Principal of the West Ward School, Barrie, Ont.

SAMUEL PRICE,

Head Master of Wedmore National School, Somerset, England.

MISS HATTIE L. FINLAN, Crove School, New Bedford, Mass. DR. N. H. TARRANT, 1324 Eills Street, San Francisco, Cai. G. H. HOWARD, Principal of the Gramma. School, Berthier en Haut, Que. PROF. S. D. WATERMAN, Principal of the High School, Stockton, Cai. MISS ELIZABETH LEES, Ottawa, Ont. PRINCIPAL H. MCKINLY. Clintonviile, Pa. MISS ELIZABETH A. SORIN, 1006 North Leffingwell Avenue, St. Louis, Mo. J. W. WESTERVELT, Principal of Woodstock Business College, Woodstock, Ont. CHARLES W. HARRIS, Head Master of the Board School, Tregoney, Cornwail, England. MISS JULIET PORTER. 11 E. Sheiby Street, Worcester, Mass. WALLACE RODGERS, M.A., Principal of Victoria Grammar School, Melbourne, Australia. MISS EMMA T. WOODEN, 66 Summer Street, Rochester, N.Y. PROF. W. F. SMITH. Principal of the Public School No. 5, Baltimore, Md. PRINCIPAL G. E. STOKES, Corinth, Miss. R. F. GREENLEES, Principal of the Public School, Bracebridge, Ont. JOHN CAMPBELL, Principal of Ardallie School, Aberdeenshire, Scotland. PRINCIPAL J. A. WILMOT, 17 Woodblne Street, Cleveiand, Ohio.

viii

.

CONTENTS.

FTRST DEPARTMENT	,
	PAGE
I. Addition	
II. Subtraction	
III. Multiplication	
IV. Division	
V. Review	
SECOND DEPARTMENT.	
T T	
1. Factors and Multiples	41
11. Common Fractions	44
III. Decir. Als	52
IV. Business Exercises	55
V. Review	58
HIRD DEPARTMENT.	
I. Measures	. 85
II. Currency	
III. Wages	
IV. Bills and Accounts	70
V. Review	
OURTH DEPARTMENT.	
I Sunform Manual	•
I. Surface Measurement	
11. Sond Measurement	93

III. Lumber Measurement.....

 V. The Metric System
 100

 VI. Review
 102

95

1

F

CONTENTS.

6

IFIN Da	FARTMENT.	PAGE
I.	Percentage	119
II.	Trade Discount	. 115
III.	Invoices	116
IV.	Commission	120
v.	Taxes	120
VI.	Review	126

SIXTH DEPARTMENT.

I.	Interest	199
II.	Commercial Paper	100
III.	Bank Discount	144
IV.	Partial Paymente	151
37	Dominum	153
	Neview	155.

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

I,	Stocks and Bonds	161
II.	Exchange	164
III.	Insurance	104
IV.	Bankruptcy	100
v.	Partnership	107
VI.	Square Root	108.
VII.	Review	170
		171

EIGHTH DEPARTMENT.

Examination Exercises..... 179

х

F

THE NEW ARITHMETIC.

FIRST DEPARTMENT.

I. ADDITION.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The sum or amount of two or more numbers is the number equivalent to all the units of the given numbers.

The sign of addition is +. It is read plus.

The sign of dollars is 9 It is read dollars.

The sign of equality is =. It is read equals, or is equal to.

Write the numbers in vertical lines. Irregularity in the placing of figures is the cause of many errors.

Think of results, and not of the numbers themselves. Thus, do not say 4 and 5 are 9, and 6 are 15, and 7 are 22, etc.; but 9, 15, 22, etc.

Make combinations of 10 or other numbers as often as possible, and add them as single numbers. Thus, in adding $\overline{9.54}$, $\overline{73.214}$, $\overline{9.54}$, $\overline{52.123}$, say 9, 16, 26, 33, 42, 51, 61, 67, taking each group at a glance as a single number. When a figure is repeated several times, multiply instead of adding.

In adding horizontally, begin at the left, since the eye is more accustomed to moving from left to right than from right to left.

In adding long columns, prove the work by adding each column separately in the opposite direction before adding the next column.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Nore .- Do not use pen or pencil.

1. Find the sum of 24, 26, 37, 85, 63, 42, 21, and 13.

2. Find the sum of 37, 201, 402, 42, 25, 101, and 202.

3. Find the sum of the numbers between 9 and 20.

PAGE ... 113 ... 116 ... 120 ... 123 ... 126 ... 128

... 133 ... 144 ... 151 ... 153 ... 155

.. 161 .. 164 .. 166 .. 167 .. 168 .. 170 . 171

. 179

4. Find the sum of all the numbers ending with 5 between 10 and 60.

5. Find the sum of the four numbers that can be expressed by the figures 3 and 5.

6. Find the sum of the four numbers that can be expressed by the figures 6 and 9.

7. Find the sum of all the numbers from 12 to 48 inclusive.

Note.—When numbers are in regular *arithmetical* order, as 3, 4, 5, 6, or 2, 4, 6, 8, or 5, 10, 15, etc., to find their sum, add the first and last, take half, and multiply by the number of numbers. The half-sum represents the middle or average number.

8. Find the sum of all the even numbers between 1 and 101.

9. Find the sum of all the numbers from 3 to 37 inclusive.

10. Find the sum of all the odd numbers between 50 and 100.

11. Find the sum of all the numbers ending with 5 between 1 and 100.

12. Find the sum of all the numbers from 1 to 999 inclusive.

13. How many days in the summer months?

14. How many letters will it take to write 425 in words?

15. How many letters will it take to write 23,249 in words?

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

16. How many letters will it take to write 2,304,625 in words?

17. Find the sum of the fifteen numbers that can be expressed by the figures 1, 2, and 3.

18. Find the sum of the fifteen numbers that can be expressed by the figures 3, 5, and 7.

19. Find the sum of the ten numbers that can be expressed by the figures 2, 5, and 0.

20. Find the sum of the five numbers that can be expressed by the figures 2, 2, and 0.

ADDITION.

13

21. Find the sum of the eight numbers that can be expressed by the figures 2, 5, and 5.

22. Find the sum of the three numbers that can be expressed by the figures 7, 7, and 7.

23. Find the sum of all the numbers between 999 and 1201.

24. Find the sum of all the numbers between 1904 and 3154.

25. A man who was born in 1826 died when he was 49 years old. In what year did he die?

26. How long a cord will it take to go round a garden 327 feet long and 298 feet wide?

27. Add together the six numbers of three figures each that can be formed with 5, 6, and 7.

28. Find the sum of all the numbers ending with 789 between 71836 and 82325.

29. Find the sum of all the numbers ending with 55 between 10020 and 12001.

30. How many years from the beginning of 3984 B.C. until the beginning of 1886 A.D.?

31. How many days from 12 o'clock p.m. March 31 until 12 o'clock p.m. January 31?

32. Find the sum of the five largest numbers that can be expressed by the figures 9, 8, 7, and 6.

33. Find the sum of the five smallest numbers, of four figures each, that can be expressed by using the figures 3, 4, 0, and 5.

34. Find the sum of the five largest and the five smallest numbers, of four figures each, that can be expressed by the figures 9, 8, 3, and 1.

35. How many times will a clock strike between 11.15 a.m. and 10.30 p.m.?

36. The difference between two numbers plus 12 is equal to 28. Their sum is 64. Find the numbers.

etween

pressed

pressed

lusive.

number.

d 101.

sive.

d 100.

etween

usive.

?

rds ?

ords?

ressed

essed

essed

essed

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

Note. —Business men and accountants find it necessary to be able to add, readily, amounts when placed in a horizontal position, as well as when placed in a vertical position. In the following exercises add both ways and then prove the work by adding the results.

37. ABSTRACT EXERCISE.

3621	982	4215	2982	1215	1098	4635	*****
6731	5842	1563	2842	1563	2910	3125	
$ \begin{array}{r} 1213 \\ 3625 \\ 1625 \\ 1216 \\ 2198 \\ 2601 \end{array} $	214 2153 2101 3120 25	2130 136 214 9876 2152 63	1362 1043 256 2136 1312 2006	4809 2132 3429 1215 2121 7849	5908 1025 836 3724 3002 2150	$\begin{array}{c c} 3621 \\ 47 \\ 215 \\ 2152 \\ 42 \\ 6 \end{array}$	23723 ***** ***** ***** *****

38. A WEEK'S MAIL AT A CITY POST OFFICE.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thurs.	Fri.	Sat.	Total.
Ordinary Letters. Regist'd Letters Post Cards Book Packets Parcels Newspapers Total	9243 659 2129 843 257 11698	8564 827 2214 296 328 12325 *****	9204 655 1986 321 201 14276	7695 238 1873 655 199 16883	7368 1346 989 495 276 17319	9986 399 1655 378 301 20205	*****

39. ATTENDANCE AT AN INDUSTRIAL EXPOSITION.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thurs.	Fri.	Sat.	Total.
Children Adults Single Carriages Double Carriages. Officials	568 3625 325 104 210	496 4289 204 107 198	8653 15398 986 205 204	9204 18327 805 124 179	769 9651 142 115 125	846 8984 121 98 113	*****
Total	****	****	****	****	****	****	*****

..

ADDITION.

15

40. AGGREGATE ATTENDANCE AT A PUBLIC SCHOOL.

	Jan.	Feb.	Mar.	April.	May.	June.	Total.
First Division Second Division Third Division Fourth Division Fifth Division Sixth Division Seventh Division Eighth Division	1040 1113 1214 1110 1224 1316 1097 1243	1003 1098 1194 1201 1085 1213 1109 1046	965 1055 998 1065 936 1147 984 936	854 965 1091 975 832 1365 923 897	896 936 1054 854 976 1321 1032 974	813 914 984 876 1053 1262 1144 1062	**** **** **** ****
Total	****	****	****	****	****	****	****

41. WEEKLY REPORT OF A CIRCULATING LIBRARY.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thurs.	Fri	Sat	
Fiction						Sat.	Total.
History	762	856	933	569	975	1084	****
Biography	321	421	203	122	324	385	****
Science	491	119	314	213	125	175	****
Poetry	313	024	380	216	314	564	****
Religion	98	102	104	19	126	317	****
-			104	01	203	197	****
Total	****	****	****	****	****	****	*****

42. DENOMINATIONAL POPULATION OF A CITY.

Baptist Methodist Presbyterian Episcopal.	Ward A. 2364 3472 2123 1984	Ward B. 1425 2163 1565 1023	Ward C. 2643 2542 2121 984	Ward D. 1021 998 896	Ward E. 1234 3298 2163 2400	Ward F. 985 1063 2054	Total.
Congregational Roman Catholic Other Denom	842 567 1321	1023 1254 1986 255	984 856 921 429	$ 1542 \\ 355 \\ 1568 \\ 843 $	3429 1063 2125 899	204 1365 998 1254	*****
Total	****	*****	****	****	****	****	*****

d, readily, a vertical work by

23723

Total.

Total.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thurs.	Fri.	Sat.	Total.
Hemlock	12634	14205	15306	16214	18312	20428	*****
Basswood	2563	3146	9121 2154	10215 3214	12056 2542	13206	*****
Cherry	4256	2155 4210	1025	2025	3684	5684	*****
Oak Maple	10563	11369	15684	10025	3249	2156	*****
Total				984	562	3428	
T O 681	*****	*****	*****	*****	*****	*****	*****

43. A LUMBER MERCHANT'S SALES FOR ONE WEEK.

44. COLUMNS OF MONEY ITEMS.

\$343 20 24 15 625 13 84 00 276 05 0 85 27 24 3 65 276 18	\$242 15 37 68 8 95 2 42 0 37 100 00 24 04 1 05 347 83	\$94 06 9 84 10 57 3 68 19 27 242 00 3 24 0 76 24 93	327 24 684 19 57 68 3 25 100 00 205 68 35 15 2 14 75 52	\$643 18 36 19 204 00 155 25 268 13 13 17 2 00 3 00 142 65	\$321 15 67 02 428 03 10 00 100 00 256 85 42 13 106 27 84 27	\$493 15 265 14 327 18 242 05 327 68 563 21 321 14 124 05 245 36	\$*** ** *** ** *** ** *** **
*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **

45. COLUMNS OF MONEY ITEMS.

\$325 18 246 25 324 38 207 16 317 28 684 39 562 18 321 15	\$201 68 37 00 15 25 0 68 328 14 29 21 603 14 25 18	\$307 16 27 02 406 01 2 00 25 00 308 02 27 84 608 63	\$204 37 25 62 14 08 327 69 528 20 98 03 369 21 207 18	\$302 15 3 17 25 18 205 69 25 20 337 64 97 25 427 36	\$103 42 2 08 2 15 3 00 4 00 21 00 13 20 0 75	\$614 98 4 00 33 75 614 00 221 00 0 95 8 20 2 00	\$**** ** *** ** *** ** *** **
*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **	*** **

SUBTRACTION.

II. SUBTRACTION.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The **difference** between two numbers is a number which, added to the less, gives a sum equal to the greater.

When a part is taken from the whole, the difference is called the **remainder**.

Subtraction is the process of finding the difference between two like numbers. The greater number is called the minuend, and the smaller number the subtrahend.

The sign of subtraction is -. It is read minus.

Total.

*** **

*** **

The sum of the remainder and the subtrahend is equal to the minuend.

The difference between the remainder and the minuend is equal to the sub-trahend.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

Norg.—Salesmen usually make "change" by addition. They, however, have the money to count out, and in doing so they add to the amount of the purchase until they reach the amount of the bill presented. In the following exercises find the "change" by "ubtracting the amount of the account from the value of the bill or bills present... Do not use pen or pencil, except to write the answers.

4 6.	\$10 00 - \$3 14.	51. \$5 00 - \$1 90.	56. \$40 00 - \$23 18
47.	\$15 00 - \$2 13.	52. \$1 00 - \$0 45.	57 \$95.00 \$15 or
48 .	\$30 00 - \$9 94.	53. \$2 00 - \$1 20	59 \$90 00 \$10 05.
49.	\$10 00 - \$7 16.	54 . \$2 00 - \$1 03	50 . \$20 00 - \$13 21.
50.	\$20 00 - \$2 95	55 \$7 00 \$0 or	59. \$15 00 - \$11 15.
		JJ. \$7 00 - \$2 65.	60. \$50 00 - \$22 68.

Note.—In the following examples the amount of a certain bank deposit is followed by the amounts of the checks issued during a definite period of time. The pupil will put down the amount of the deposit and then subtract the amounts of the checks in order, one at a time, putting dow.s each balance. Nothing but the deposit and the several balances should go on the slate or paper.

61. Deposit,	\$247.85.	Checks, \$	4.85; \$5.90	6: \$ 10.00	\$8 13
62. Deposit, \$18.95.	\$397.63.	Checks,	\$142.15;	\$16.85 ;	\$2.36;

в

63. Deposit, \$429.21. Checks, \$215.12; \$32.98; \$47.63; \$3.85; \$2.25.

64. Deposit, \$986.43. Checks, \$314.18; \$49.25; \$57.62; \$39.84; \$25.13.

65. Deposit, \$276.20. Checks, \$32.85; \$24.19; \$37.64; \$25.93; \$3.27.

66. Deposit, \$1000. Checks, \$120.25; \$14.98; \$13.25; \$2.17; \$25.00; \$18.62; \$27.38.

67. Deposit, \$1254.85. Checks, \$13.65; \$92.80; \$87.63; \$25.17; \$254.85; \$24.18; \$37.20.

68. Deposit, \$2765.90. Checks, \$1249.84; \$2.16; \$3.95; \$276.48; \$306.27; \$14.27; \$294.18.

69. Deposit, \$2940.25. Checks, \$140.00; \$27.35; \$69.80; \$1000.00; \$297.60; \$4.25; \$324.18.

70. Deposit, \$32956.25. Checks, \$3425.84; \$2625.18; \$2.45; \$999.80; \$243.50; \$15.87; \$1200.00.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Note.-Do not use pen or pencil.

71. From 245 take 194.

72. From 376 take 215; then 84 from the remainder.

73. How old is a building in 1885 which was erected in 1734 ?

74. How old is a man in 1886 who was born in 1784?

75. I give a ten-dollar bill in paying an account of \$3.42. How much change should I get?

76. What number taken from 324 will leave 189?

77. The sum of two numbers is 524; the greater is 339; what is the less?

78. From the largest number that can be expressed by the figures 2, 4, and 9, subtract 321.

SUBTRACTION.

79. A school has 427 pupils, 139 of whom are girls. How many boys are there?

80. How many days from Christmas until January 15th inclusive?

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

81. I bought a cow for \$35 and a horse for \$165, and paid \$120 down. How much have I yet to pay?

82. Find the sum of the ages in 1886 of three men who were born in 1823, 1835, and 1847 respectively.

83. I give a fifty-dollar bill in paying an account of \$23.35. How much change should I get?

84. From 1005090010210 take 90091019012.

85. From 900999010908 take 78400215040.

86. The sum of two numbers is 309801; the greater is 199082; what is the less?

87. From the largest number that can be expressed by the figures 6, 4, 5, 3, and 2, subtract the smallest number that can be expressed by the same figures.

88. Find the difference between the largest and the smallest numbers that can be expressed by all the nine digits.

89. A table with two leaves is 50 inches wide when the leaves are up, and 22 inches wide when the leaves are down. How wide is each leaf?

90. How many days from March 16 until October 4?

Nore.—Subtract 16 from the number of days in March and we have 15. Add to this the number of days in April, May, June, July, August, and September, and the 4 days of October, and we have 202, the correct number.

91. How many days from June 30 until December 26?

92. How many days from July 15 until February 22?

93. How many days from March 22 until November 18?

98; \$47.63; 25; \$57.62;

19; \$37.64;

98 : \$13.25 ;

80; \$87.63;

2.16; \$3.95;

35; \$69.80;

25.18; \$2.45;

nder. cted in 1734 ? 784 ?

int of \$3.42.

? is 339 ; what

ressed by the

19

94. How many days from August 31, 1885, until June 1, 1886?

95. The sum of three numbers is 101050; the first is 9999; the second is 1010 more than the first; what is the third number?

96. The sum of two numbers is 847; one is the difference between 728 and 1110; find the other.

97. A man had \$425 in a bank ; he drew out \$149 ; deposited \$363, and then drew out \$54. How much remained to his credit in the bank?

98. The difference between two numbers is 2001005; the larger is 99009099; find the smaller.

99. Find the sum of the ages in 1887 of four men who were born in 1813, 1792, 1826, and 1836 respectively.

100. Mr. Walker and Mr. Thompson live, respectively, 987 miles and 239 miles west of the same city. How far apart do they live?

III. MULTIPLICATION.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The **product** of two or more numbers is the result obtained by repeating one number as many times as there are units in the other.

Multiplication is the process of finding the product of two numbers.

The multiplicand is the number to be multiplied.

The multiplier is the number which shows how many times the multiplicand is to be taken.

The sign of multiplication is x. It is read times, or multiplied by.

The product divided by the multiplicand gives the multiplier.

The product divided by the multiplier gives the multiplicand.

The multiplicand and multiplier are often called factors of the product.

The term **continued product** is sometimes applied to the product of several numbers.

The numerical result of multiplying one number by another is the same whichever is taken as the multiplicand, the other being taken as the multiplier. The product will always denote the same kind of units as the true multiplicand.

MULTIPLICATION.

ine 1, 1886? st is 9999 ; rd number?

fference be-

; deposited to his credit

01005; the

n who were

ctively, 987 ar apart do

y repeating one

mbers.

he multiplicand

ied by.

product. oduct of several

her is the same the multiplier. multiplicand.

SHORT METHODS.

Norss.—To multiply any number by 11, write the first right-hand figure, add the first and second, the second and third, and so on; finally write the left-hand figure. Carry when necessary.

To multiply 358425 by 11, write the right-hand figure 5; then say 5 and 2 are 7; 2 and 4, 6; 4 and 8, 12, put down 2 and carry 1; 8 and 5 and 1 are 14, put down 4 and carry 1; 5 and 3 and 1 are 9; then write the left-hand figure 3, and you have. 3942675.

101. $235 \times 11.$	108. 2135×11 .	115. 23125 × 11
102. 346 × 11.	109 . 4214 × 11.	116. 23412×11
103. 842 × 11.	110. 3132 × 11.	117. 13562×11
104. 215 × 11.	111 . 2152 × 11.	118. 24234×11
105 . 327 × 11.	112. 3728 × 11.	119. 31491×11
106 , 227 × 11.	113. 2634 × 11.	120. 59193×11
107 . 324 × 11.	114 . 4215 × 11.	121. 21632×11

Nore.—Multiply 76 by 74. Note that the two left-hand figures are the same, and the two right-hand figures add to ten. Multiply the two right-hand figures, 6 and 4, and place the product, 24, in the answer; then multiply one of the left-hand figures by the number next larger, 7 by 8(7+1), and the product, 56, placed to the left of the two figures already obtained, makes the correct result, 5624. Do not use pen or pencil, except to write the answer.

 24×26 , $4 \times 6 = 24$, and $2 \times 3 = 6$, 624. 37×33 , $7 \times 3 = 21$, and $3 \times 4 = 12$, 1221. 91×99 , $9 \times 1 = 09$, and $9 \times 10 = 90$, 9009.

122. $24 \times 26.$	128. 27×23 .	134 . 128 × 122.	140 . 107 × 103
123 . 17 × 13.	129 . 18 × 12.	135 . 112 × 118.	141 108×109
124. 34 × 36.	130 . 33 × 37.	136 . 104 × 106	140 111110
125. 25 × 25.	131. 42×48 .	137 143×147	142. 111 × 119.
126. 35 × 35.	132 . 57 × 53	199 159 150	143. 132 × 138.
127 , 85 × 85	199 61 60	100, 102 x 108.	144. 295×295 .
	100. 01 × 69.	139. 127×123 .	145, 392 × 398.

146. 94 × 96.	150. 65 × 65.	154 . 113 × 117.	158. 497 × 493.
147. 37 × 33.	151. 84×86.	155 . 115 × 115.	159. 597 × 593.
148 . 43 × 47.	152 . 93 × 97.	156 . 125 × 125.	160. 791 × 799.
149. 46 × 44.	153. 56 × 54.	157 . 195 × 195.	161. 992 × 998.

Norg.—Multiply 124 by 104. Multiply the excesses—that is, 24 by 4—and put down the product, 96, two places to the right-hand side, as in the illustration below. Then add the two numbers, 104 and 124, omitting one of the ones at the left. Carry when necessary.

124	$24 \times 4 = 96$	112.
104	4 + 4 = 8	106
	2 + 0 = 2	
12896		1187:

Norm.—Multiply 1234 by 1002. Multiply 234 by 2, and put down the product, 468, three places to theiright-hand side. Then add 234 and 1002. The product will be 1236468.

162. 112 × 106.	176 . 113 × 106.	190. 1007 × 1102.
163. 113 × 105.	177. 119 × 107.	191 . 1312 × 1003.
164 . 114 × 102.	178. 135 × 104.	192. 1009 × 1004.
165. 115 × 107.	179. 142 × 102.	193. 1003 × 1006.
166. 113 × 103.	180 . 158 × 103.	194. 1007 × 1008.
167 . 102 × 104.	181. 137 × 103.	195. 1012 × 1003.
168 . 122 × 108.	182. 102 × 114.	196 . 1012 × 1004.
169. 106 × 111.	183. 104 × 105.	197. 1098 × 1002.
170. 112 × 103.	184. 105 × 102	198. 1006 × 1009.
171 . 122 × 105.	185. 105 × 100.	199. 1002 × 1212.
172. 121 × 102.	186. 106 × 104.	200 . 1342 × 1002.
173 . 127 × 103.	187. 107 × 109.	201 . 1099 × 1009.
174. 124 × 104.	188. 106 × 108.	202. 1199 × 1005.
175. 128 × 105.	189. 109×108.	203 . 1265 × 1003.

MULTIPLICATION.

Note.—Multiply 95 by 97. The complement of a number is the difference between the number and the unit of the next higher order. Thus, the complement of 95 is 5; of 97 is 3; of 987 is 13, etc.

0915	
973	(complement)
955	(complement)

Multiply the complements. Five times three are fifteen. Place 15 in the product. For the remaining two figures subtract either the 5 from the 97 or the 3 from the 95. There should be the same number of figures in the product as in the multiplier and multiplicand together.

004 05 00			
204 . 97 × 98.	214. 95×94 .	224 . 93 × 92.	234. 994 × 995.
205. 99 × 88.	215 . 94 × 96.	225. 99 × 93.	235. 993 × 994.
206 . 99 × 97.	216 . 99 × 94.	226 . 92 × 94.	236. 999 × 992.
207. 97 × 96.	217 . 94 × 98.	227. 95 × 92.	237 , 995 × 993.
208. 96 × 98.	218. 95 × 93.	228. 96 × 92.	238 , 989 × 998.
209 . 99 × 96.	219. 96 × 93.	229. 98 × 91.	239 991 × 997.
210. 96 × 95.	220. 93 × 97.	230. 89 × 98.	240 . 992 × 995.
211 . 97 × 95.	221. 98 × 93.	231 . 87 × 99.	241. 987 × 998.
212. 95 × 98.	222. 97 × 94.	232. 93 × 89.	242. 988 × 997.
213 . 99 × 95.	223. 94 × 93.	233. 92 × 92.	243 . 975 × 998

Nore.—Multiply 37 by 43. The mean number—that is, the number which is as much greater than 37 as it is less than 43—is 40. Forty squared, or multiplied by itself, gives 1600. The square of 3, the difference between the mean number and one of the numbers, is 9. 1600-9=1591=the product of 37 and 43.

244.	$87 \times 73.$	249. 48 × 52.	254 . 112 × 108.	259 , 1012 × 988
245.	$63 \times 57.$	250. 24 × 16.	255. 116 × 124.	260 . 1009 × 991
246.	22×18 .	251 . 31 × 29.	256. 115 × 105.	261 . 1025 × 975
247.	93 × 87.	252. 45 × 35.	257 . 118 × 122.	262 , 1004 × 996
248.	42 × 38.	253. 72 × 68.	258. 131 × 129.	263 . 1011 × 989

497 × 493. 597 × 593. 791 × 799. 992 × 998.

by 4—and put ne illustration ne ones at the

the product, The product

7 × 1102. 2 × 1003. 9 × 1004. 3 × 1006. 7 × 1008. 2 × 1003. 2 × 1003. 2 × 1004. 3 × 1002. 3 × 1009. 2 × 1009. 2 × 1005. 5 × 1003. 23

Nore.—Multiply 76 by 46. Multiply units by units for the first figure of the product, the sum of the tens by units for the second figure, and tens by tens for the third figure, carrying when necessary.

76 $6 \times 6 = 36$, carry 3

 $\begin{array}{rl} 46 & 6 \times (7+4) = 6 \times 11 = 66, \text{ and } 3 \text{ to carry, } 69 \\ \hline 3496 & 4 \times 7 = 28, \text{ and } 6 \text{ to carry, } 34 \end{array}$

264. 56 × 56.	269. 99 × 49.	274 . 125 × 65.	279. 114 × 114.
265 . 72 × 32.	270. 85 × 75.	275 . 126 × 36.	280. 142 × 162.
266. 94 × 44.	271 . 34 × 24.	276 . 154 × 84.	281 . 123 × 183.
267. 65 × 75.	272 . 85 × 45.	277 . 132 × 92.	282 . 137 × 177.
268 . ^r 87 × 37.	273. 47 × 37.	278 . 133 × 73.	283. 264 × 244.

Note.—Multiply 87 by 82. Multiply units by units for the first figure of the product, the sum of the units by tens for the second figure, and tens by tens for the remaining figures, carrying when necessary.

87	$7 \times 2 = 14$, carry 1
82	$8 \times (7+2) = 8 \times 9 = 72$, and 1 to carry, 73
7134	$8 \times 8 = 64$, and 7 to carry, 71

284 . 81 × 87.	289 . 83 × 87.	294. 116 × 117.	299 . 93 × 94.
285. 62 × 63.	290. 47 × 44.	295 . 127 × 122.	300. 76 × 73.
286. 54 × 55.	291 . 56 × 52.	296. 107 × 105.	301 . 51 × 53.
287. 43 × 41.	292. 79 × 75.	297 . 125 × 122.	302 . 91 × 94.
288. 27 × 22.	293. 44 × 43.	298. 113 × 114.	303 . 82 × 83.

Note.—Multiply 3214 by 31 or 13. Instead of writing 31 under the multiplicand, as is the custom, multiply by 3 and place the product one figure to the left, under the multiplicand, and add. To multiply by 13, place the product one figure to the right and add.

	3214 9642	× 31	$\begin{array}{c} 3214 \times 1; \\ 9642 \end{array}$	3	
	99634		41782		
304.	2134×13 .	306.	$3242 \times 15.$	308.	2152×17 .
305.	1325×14 .	307.	$4135 \times 16.$	309.	3428×18 .

24

Ì

-		4
310 . 4006 × 19.	318 . 3123 × 91.	326 . 3109 × 108.
311 . 8213 × 21.	319 . 4284 × 101.	327. 1243 × 109.
312. 6204 × 31.	320 . 3121 × 102.	328 . 3152 × 201.
313. 3123 × 41.	321. 4134 × 103.	329. 4284 × 301.
314. 1242 × 51.	322. 2152 × 104.	330. 3212 × 401.
315 . 2153 × 61.	323. 1320 × 105.	331. 4623 × 501.
316. 3216 × 71.	324. 3121 × 106.	332 . 2136 × 601.
317 . 2148 × 81.	325. 4282 × 107.	333. 1038 × 701.

MULTIPLICATION.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION.—In the following exercises flud the total value of the articles under each head.

334.	FARM PRODUCE.		
	213 lbs. butter at 22c.		
	102 lbs. cheese at 18c.		
	114 doz. cggs at 15c.		
	232 qts. milk at 6c.		
	127 bu. potatoes at 65c		
	132 bu. carrots at 60c.		

335. FARM PRODUCE. 105 bu. turnips at 50c. 113 bu. beets at 80c. 114 bu. parsnips at 93c. 215 bu. onions at 98c. 236 bu. tomatoes at 42c. 137 doz. cabbages at 48c.

336. FARM PRODUCE.

215 bbls. apples at \$2.15.
420 bu. plums at \$1.20.
132 bu. peaches at \$1.75.
215 bu. cherries at \$1.35.
217 bu. pears at \$1.50.
130 bu. quinces at \$1.40.

337. FARM PRODUCE.

113 bu. wheat at \$1.22.
217 bu. barley at \$1.05.
324 bu. oats at 45c.
716 bu. rye at 95c.
322 bu. peas at 75c.
136 bu. corn at 89c.

338. GROCERIES.

25 lbs. rice at 4c.
37 lbs. tapioca at 15c
43 lbs. sago at 13c.
37 lbs. barley at 5c.
42 lbs. dried apples at 9c.
33 lbs. prunes at 7c.

339. GROCERIES.

25 lbs. sugar at 7c.
32 lbs. tea at 47c.
84 lbs. coffee at 52c.
62 lbs. raisins at 11c.
39 lbs. currants at 9c.
47 lbs. biscuits at 12c.

t figure of the ms by tens for

ry, 69

 114×114 . 142×162 . 123×183 . 137×177 . 264×244 .

figure of the ns by tens for

y, 73

93 × 94.
 76 × 73.
 51 × 53.
 91 × 94.
 82 × 83.

multiplicand, he left, under e figu e to the

 $\frac{152 \times 17}{128 \times 18}$

NOTE.—Flour is sold at present by the barrel, bag, and sack. The barrel is supposed to contain 196 pounds. The bag contains 100 pounds, and the sacks 50 pounds and 25 pounds. A stone is equal to 14 pounds.

340 .	FLOUR AND FEED.	342. BUTCHERS' SUPPLIES.
	25 bbls. flour at \$5.60.	27 lbs. pork at 18c.
	32 bags flour at \$2.75.	32 lbs. beef at 12c.
	19 bags bran at 90c.	18 lbs. mutton at 14c.
	14 stone oat meal at 48c.	12 lbs. veal at 15c.
	18 stone corn meal at 36c.	18 lbs. lamb at 17c.
	27 lbs. wheat meal at 7c.	25 lbs. ham at 13c.

341. DRY GOODS.

343. COAL AND WOOD.

38 yds. cotton at 7c.
42 yds. cashmere at 58c.
37 yds. flannel at 35c.
52 yds. muslin at 19c.
64 yds. print, at 14c.
52 yds. lace at 98c.

12 tons hard coal at \$6.25. 14 tons soft coal at \$4.35. 18 cords maple at \$6.50. 25 cords oak at \$5 30. 12 cords pine at \$3.40. 24 tons coke at \$3.90.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

NOTE.-Do not use pen or pencil.

344. $2 \times 3 \times 5 \times 4 \times 6 \times 10 \times 2$.

345. $4 \times 2 \times 5 \times 7 \times 2 \times 3 \times 10$.

346.
$$(9 \times 2) + (7 \times 2) + (12 \times 2) + (24 \times 2) + (8 \times 2)$$
.

NOTE. -9×2 plus 7×2 is equal to 9 plus 7 or 16 multiplied by 2. In exercise 346 add 9, 7, 12, 24 and 8, and multiply the product by 2.

347. $(12 \times 13) + (8 \times 13) + (87 \times 20)$.

348. $(24 \times 32) + (23 \times 32) + (47 \times 28) + (53 \times 60)$.

Note: -24+23=47. 47×32 and $47 \times 28 = 47 \times 60$. This and $53 \times 60 = (47+53)$ or $100 \times 60 = 6000$. Answer.

349. $(321 \times 224) + (247 \times 613) + (753 \times 389) + (432 \times 224).$

350. $(42 \times 48) + (34 \times 36)$.

351. $(55 \times 55) + (43 \times 47)$.

352. Find the cost of 92 articles at 98 cents each.

MULTIPLICATION.

barrel is supthe sacks 50

PLIES. 18c. 2c. at 14c. 5c. 17c.

3c.

D.

l at \$6.25. l at \$4.35. at \$6.50. \$5 30. \$3.40. \$3.90.

in exercise 346

60 = (47 + 53) or

24).

353. Find the cost of 83 articles at 87 cents each.

354. How much will a boy earn in 92 hours at 15 cents an hour?

Note.—To multiply by 15, multiply by 10 and add half the product to itself. Thus, $920+460=1380=92\times15$.

355. 2312×11 . **356.** 999×999 . **357.** 104×105 .

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

358. Multiply 39005010 by 30900.

359. Find the product of 2005004 and 32605.

360. Find the product of all the numbers, of three figures each, that can be expressed by the figures 3, 5, and 0.

361. How much must be paid for hauling 2352 loads of sand at \$1.25 per load?

362. How much will 753 pounds of sugar cost at 9 cents a pound ?

363. Find the cost of 122 building lots at \$364 a lot.

364. A clerk's salary is \$72 a month. If he spends \$27 a month, how much can he save in a year?

365. What is the cost of 122 bales of cotton at 13 cents a pound, if each bale contains 477 pounds?

366. Multiply 2 by 2, then 4 by 4, then that product by itself, and so on until the product contains ten figures.

367. Find the cost of building 904 miles of railway at \$26,342 a mile.

368. Multiply 2098465 by 77, using factors.

369. Multiply 9800431 by 63, using factors.

370. Multiply the sum of 1001 and 10010 by their difference.

371. What will it cost to build 11 houses at \$5329 each?

372. Find the value of 2631 bushels of wheat at \$1.13 a bushel?

373. Find the value of 342 tons of hay at \$17.25 a ton.

374. What is the difference in cost of 174 head of cattle at \$37.75 a head and 1260 head of sheep at \$5.50 a head?

375. A miller exchanged 164 barrels of flour at \$7.35 a barrel for 920 bushels of wheat at \$2 a bushel, paying the balance in money. How much money did he pay?

376. Multiply 205090 by 105, using three factors.

Note.-Sound travels 1090 feet in one second.

377. You see the puff of a steam-whistle 11 seconds before you hear the sound. How far are you from it?

378. If a man travels 75 yards in a minute, how far will he travel in 12 hours?

IV. DIVISION.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The **divisor** is the number by which to divide.

The dividend is the number to be divided.

The result obtained by dividing is called the quotient.

The **remainder** is that part of the dividend which remains after the division has been completed.

The sign of division is \div . It is read, divided by.

To **prove** the work, multiply the quotient and divisor, and add the remainder to the product.

Any change in the divisor, by multiplication or division, will produce an opposite change in the quotient.

Any change in the dividend, by multiplication or division, will produce a similar change in the quotient.

To multiply or divide both divisor and dividend by the same number does not change the value of the quotient.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

379. A bin containing 237 bushels of wheat is sold for \$272.55. How much a bushel is it sold for ?

ton.

f cattle at

35 a barrel balance in

nds before

far will he

r the division

he remainder

uce an oppo-

luce a similar

ber does not

r \$272.55.

380. If \$448 is paid for 28 tons of hay, what is the price per ton?

381. What is the price per pound when 160 pounds of mutton cost \$14.40?

382. If 33 tons of coal cost \$206.25, what is the price of one ton?

383. How many pounds of sugar can be bought for \$720 at 8 cents a pound?

384. The cost of a piece of cloth was \$112.70, and the price \$2.45 a yard. How many yards in the piece?

385. A farm containing 157 acres was sold for \$4474.50. What was the price per acre?

386. How many cows, at \$43 a head, will \$19,608 buy?

387. In a pile of 89,856 bricks how many loads are there, each load containing 1248 bricks?

388. A grocer paid \$37.52 for 536 pounds of sugar. How much did he pay for each pound?

389. When flour is worth \$5.75 a barrel, how many barrels can be bought for \$1161.50?

390. If \$71,428.35 be divided equally among seven persons, what will be the share of each?

391. A bookseller buys seven dozen slates for \$7.56. How much does he pay for each slate ?

392. A fruit dealer buys 31 dozen oranges for \$7.44. How much does he pay for each orange?

393. An exhibition is visited by 12,804 persons during six days of a week. What is the average daily attendance?

394. The weekly wages of 231 men is \$1732.50. How much a day does each man receive ?

395. A merchant pays \$7174 for 422 overcoats. At how much each must he sell them to gain \$1266?

DIVISION.

396. A butcher pays \$119.25 for 159 turkeys. At how much a pair must he sell them to gain \$39.75?

397. How many bales, each weighing 475 pounds, can be made from 94,050 pounds of cotton ?

398. At \$71 each, how many village lots can be bought for \$1,491,213?

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

399. Divide 20100120421 by 102003. Prove the correctness of your answer.

400. The divisor is 2034 and the quotient 843. If the divisor were 6102, what would the quotient be?

401. The divisor is 71421 and the quotient 403. If the divisor were 10203, what would the quotient be?

402. If the divisor were 5 times as large, the quotient would be 32701. What is the quotient?

403. If the divisor were half what it is, the quotient would be 848. What is the quotient ?

404. When the dividend is 10824 the quotient is 12. If the dividend were three times as large, what would the quotient be?

405. The quotient is 30201. What would the quotient be if both divisor and dividend were multiplied by 7?

406. The quotient is 6201. What would the quotient be if both divisor and dividend were divided by 11?

407. How many barrels of flour can be bought for \$2984 at \$8 a barrel ?

408. What number multiplied by 12 will give the same product as 1452 multiplied by 1001?

409. 2042005602÷103. Prove the work.

410. Divide 20563124 by 63, using factors.

411. What number must be taken from 204205 that it may be exactly divisible by 27?

how much

an be made

bought for

correctness

the divisor

the divisor

ent would

t would be

2. If the otient be?

ient be if

ient be if

2984 at \$8

ame pro-

it may be

REVIEW.

412. How many bushels of oats at 56 cents a bushel can be bought for \$132.72?

413. Divide the product of 42156 and 10020 by the difference between 109901 and 109889.

414. Divide 19094867 by 4009. Prove the work.

415. How many sevens must we add together to get 819?

416. The dividend is 74198, the quotient is 2005, and the remainder is 24 less than the divisor. What is the divisor?

417. Multiply 24004005 by 1155, and divide the product by 5, 3, 7, and 11.

418. If 35 be added to a certain number it will contain 53 1367 times. What is the number?

V. REVIEW.

LOSS AND GAIN EXERCISES.

419. A man bought 225 acres of land at \$15 an acre, and sold the whole for \$3125; how much did he gain or lose?

Nore.—The difference between the cost of anything and the price at which it is sold is a **gain** or a **loss**—a gain when the selling price is the greater, and a **loss** when the cost is the greater.

420. Bought a farm for \$2617, and sold it for \$2199; what did I lose?

421. Bought 246 barrels of flour at \$5.50 a barrel, and sold the whole for \$1467; how much did I gain or lose?

422. Bought 317 bushels of wheat for \$421, and sold the whole \downarrow at 95 cents a bushel ; how much did I lose ?

423. Bought a farm of 155 acres, at \$42.40 an acre, and sold the same for \$7195; what did I gain or lose?

424. Bought a farm for \$3695 ; spent \$947 in improvements ; sold out for \$4267 ; how much did I lose ?
FIRST DEPARTMENT.

32

425. A farmer bought 30 cows for \$540; he fed them for one year at a cash expense of \$7.50 per head; he then sold the entire herd for \$870; how much did he gain or lose?

426. Bought a house and lot for \$2127; built an addition to the house at an expense of \$365; sold out for \$2598; how much did I gain or lose?

427. Bought a fishing boat for \$195; spent \$35 for painting and repairs; received \$42 for the use of the boat; sold out for \$212; how much did I gain?

428. A newsboy buys 144 newspapers each day at 20 cents a dozen. He sells them at 3 cents each. At the end of the week he has 18 old papers on hand. How much money has he made during the week ?

429. A man rented a skating rink for three weeks at \$95 a week. His expenses for heat and light were \$1.75 a day for 18 days. He charged 25 cents for adults, and 15 cents for children. The total attendance of the former was 3254, and of the latter 2106. How much did he gain ?

430. A merchant bought 120 overcoats at \$15.85 each. He sold half of them at \$25 each, and the others he sold in a job lot for \$820. How much did he gain or lose ?

431. A book agent bought 90 books at \$2.75 each. He sold them at \$5 each. His expenses were \$12.25. He was unable to collect for three books. How much did he gain or lose ?

432. A fruit dealer buys 242 dozen oranges at 13 cents a dozen; 104 oranges are spoiled; he sells the others at the rate of 14 for 25 cents. How much does he gain?

433. A farmer bought a ten-acre field of ripe wheat for \$175. He paid \$1.35 an acre for cutting and saving, 3 cents a bushel for thrashing and cleaning, and \$2 a load (42 bushels) for teaming. The wheat yielded 21 bushels to the acre, and was sold for \$1.35 a bushel. How much did the farmer gain or lose ?

them for one sold the entire

an addition to 8; how much

for painting ; sold out for

at 20 cents a d of the week has he made

eeks at \$95 a a day for 18 for children. of the latter

5 each. He d in a job lot

ch. He sold vas unable to lose ?

ents a dozen ; ate of 14 for

eat for \$175. hts a bushel ls) for teamwas sold for lose ?

REVIEW.

MISCELLANEOUS EXERCISES.

434. Find the sum of all the numbers between 897 and 904.

435. There are 27 boys in a class; a certain boy's number is 13 when the class numbers from the right. What number has he when they number from the left?

436. Divide 26050432105 by 132, using factors.

437. A steamboat can run 10 miles an hour down a river, and 8 miles an hour up. After running down the river for 24 hours, how long will she be in returning ?

438. If 49 be added 101 times to itself, by how much will the result fall short of 5000?

439. How many times must 720 be added to 522 to make 987642?

440. What number must be added to 32684 to make it exactly divisible by 126?

441. What number must be subtracted from 461633 to make it exactly divisible by 758?

442. How many times must 12 be subtracted from 600455 to leave 11?

443. My fare from Hamilton to Montreal, at 3 cents a mile, was \$11.55. I returned by boat at one cent less a mile. What was my fare for the round trip?

444. By what number must 14212 be divided so that the result may be as much above 692 as it is below 804 ?

445. If 29 be added to a certain number, 87 may be subtracted from it 91 times. Find the number.

446. I have a coin, and on it is stamped MDCIV. In what year was it made?

447. A boy drives the cows twice a day to be milked; how many times will he have driven them during the months of June, July and August?

C

FIRST DEPARTMENT.

448. I bought 7 cows at \$37 each. At how much a head must I sell them to gain \$35?

449. What is the largest number that can be taken 314 times from the product of 8652 and 37 so as to leave a remainder of 292806?

450. How long a string will it take to go round a house 42 feet long and 36 feet wide?

451. Find the sum of all the numbers ending with 8 or 9 between 700 and 800.

452. Find the number which subtracted from 900000 leaves 751936.

453. Multiply the sum of 86297 and 40025 by the difference between 789 and 694.

454. A drover bought 84 head of cattle at \$21 each, and sold them at \$28 each; how much did he gain?

455. Multiply 2010500401 by 30102.

456. When 11 has been added 19 times to a certain number the result is 33 less than 12 times the original number. What is the original number?

457. When 300 is added to a certain number the result is 75 more than 4 times the number. Find the number.

458. Which is the nearer number to 100010 : 200009 or 11?

459. Bought 45 head of cattle at \$24 each, and paid \$500 cash, and the remainder in sheep at \$4 a head ; how many sheep were required to balance the debt?

460. A man paid \$3750 for some village property, which was \$1243 less than he paid for a farm ; what did he pay for both ?

461. Find the sum of the five largest numbers that can be expressed by the figures 9, 8, 0, 4, and 2.

462. A mechanic earns \$90 a month; his expenses are \$784 a year; how long will it take him to save enough to buy a house worth \$2960?

a head must

n 314 times mainder of

a house 42

with 8 or 9

0000 leaves

e difference

h, and sold

ain number ber. What

result is 75

09 or 11?

d \$500 cash, sheep were

, which was for both ? that can be

s are \$784 a ouy a house REVIEW.

463. A farmer's wife sold a grocer 15 dozen eggs at 14 cents, and 27 pounds of butter at 22 cents; she received in payment 12 pounds of sugar at 11 cents, and cash for the balance. How much cash did she get?

464. A man bought an equal number of apples and oranges for \$11.25; for the apples he paid 2 cents each, and for the oranges 3 cents each; how many of each did he buy?

465. Two men start from the same place and travel in opposite directions, one at the rate of 3 miles an hour and the other at the rate of 4 miles an hour; how far apart will they be in 240 hours?

23. I bought a house for \$4500; spent \$1263 in improvements, and then sold it for \$6225; how much did I gain?

467. If any number be doubled, the result increased by 1, the sum multiplied by 3, the product diminished by 9, and the remainder divided by 6, the quotient will be less by unity than the number taken at first. Why?

468. How many times may the difference between 2184 and 7692 be taken from 8 times the sum of 56213 and 49439 so as to leave a remainder of 24524 ?

• 469. The divisor is 63875, the quotient 46938, and the remainder the largest whole number possible. Find the dividend.

470. A railway charges a cent a mile for the first fifty miles for earrying a cord of wood, and then 3 cents for every 4 miles beyond the fifty. What will it cost to carry 250 cords 90 miles?

471. Find the difference between the sum of 73927 and 8496 and the product of 1987 and 39.

472. Of what number is 7589 both divisor and quotient?

473. A farmer has an orehard containing 580 trees; each tree produces 3 barrels of apples; how much are the apples worth at \$1.25 a barrel?

474. What number added to the sum of all the numbers that end in 7 between 1 and 150 will make a million ?

35

۰.

FIRST DEPARTMENT.

475. I bought 28 pounds of rice at 9 cents, 12 pounds of sugar at 11 cents, 4 pounds of tea at 75 cents, and three lemons at 3 cents each. What change should I receive if I give a ten-dollar bill in paying ?

476. If a clerk receives \$640 a year, and his expenses are \$325 a year, how many years will it take him to pay for a 56-acre farm at \$45 an acre?

477. In how many days will a clock strike 2652 strokes?

478. A laborer receives \$22 a month and board for 8 months of the year; the rest of the year he is idle and pays \$14 a month for board; allowing him \$35 a year for other expenses, how much should he save in 3 years?

479. A merchant bought 26 pieces of broadcloth, each containing 53 yards, at 184 a yard; how much did the whole cost him?

480. Divide 318493428 by 8607.

481. Two persons start from the same point to travel in opposite directions; one travels 26 miles a day, and the other 35 miles a day; how far apart will they be at the end of 45 days?

482. What number must be ided 29 times to 465 to make the sum equal to 1799?

483. What number must be taken 38 times from the sum of 864, 923 and 638 to leave 297 ?

484. The product of two numbers is 588; one of the numbers is 12 times the other. What are they?

485. A farmer traded two old stoves, weighing together 572 pounds, for a new stove worth \$27.50; the stove dealer allowed him 3 cents a pound for the old stoves; how much cash should the farmer pay?

486. A postman called at every second house on a street; at half the houses at which he called he delivered 2 letters, and at the other half, one letter each; he delivered in all 360 letters. How many houses on the street?

REVIEW.

487. The dividend is 2547346, the quotient 254, the remainder 2654 less than the divisor. Find the divisor.

488. A man bought on speculation 68 horses at \$84 each; 11 of them die; at how much each must he sell the others to gain \$444 ?

489. What is the sum of the ages in 1886 of four persons who were born in 1775, 1792, 1819 and 1832?

490. One train left Chicago at 3 p.m. at 28 miles an hour; a second train left at 5 p.m. at 36 miles an hour; when will the fast overtake the slow, and how far from Chicago?

491. It is found that if 593 be subtracted 347 times from a certain number the remainder is 287. Find the certain number.

492. Find the number such that if it be added 56 times to 29483 the sum will be 238027.

493. A carpenter earned \$63 by working a certain number of days; if he had worked 13 days more he would have earned \$102. Find his daily wages.

494. A farmer has 834 trees in two orchards, he has 142 more in one than in the other. How many has he in each?

495. A house and lot cost \$8358; the house cost 6 times as much as the lot. Find the cost of each.

496. If a sheep gives 8 pounds of wool in a year, how many pounds can be got from 36 sheep in 4 years, and what will it be worth at 38 cents a pound?

497. In a certain school library there are 879 books, which number gives 29 books to each pupil and 9 books over. How many pupils are there?

498. The sum of two numbers is 3785, and the greater is 249 more than the less. What are the numbers?

499. At an election A and B were the only candidates; the whole vote cast was 6235; A was elected by a majority of 647. How many votes did B get?

ls of sugar mons at 3 ten-dollar

-acre farm

okes?

8 months 4 a month nses, how

each con-

el in oppoo other 35 45 days ?

5 to make

he sum of

e numbers

gether 572 er allowed ash should

street ; at ers, and at 60 letters.

FIRST DEPARTMENT.

500. The sum of two numbers is 4628; their difference is 228. What are the numbers?

501. By what must you divide the sum of the digits to obtain 5?

502. With the nearest number to 34792 that can be divided by 296 without a remainder?

503. George Wilson has made 7072 chairs in 4 years, making each year 150 more than the preceding year. How many did he make each year?

504. How much water must be added to 90 gallons of wine worth \$4 a gallon so that the mixture may be worth \$3 a gallon?

505. A man spent \$160 for a horse, which was \$110 less than three times as much as he paid for his buggy; and his buggy cost \$6 more than 4 times the price of the harness. How much did the harness cost?

506. When 402 is taken from a certain number, and the remainder is divided by 5, the quotient obtained is 42021. What is the number?

507. A ton of coal lasts a family 14 days; if coal is worth \$5.25 a ton, what will their coal cost from October 1, 1885, till March 31, 1886, inclusive?

508. What is the difference in value between 620 cords of wood at \$3.47 a cord, and 520 tons of coal at \$4.65 a ton?

509. A purse contains ten-dollar bills, five-dollar bills, and one-dollar bills, an equal number of each; when the tens are taken out \$42 remains; when the fives are taken out \$77 remains; and when the ones are taken out \$105 remains. How many bills of each kind does the purse contain?

510. You find an old book with the date MDCXLVII. printed at the bottom of the title page. In what year was it published?

511. A grocer bought 15 tubs of butter, each containing 48 pounds, at 28 cents a pound, and sold the same at 35 cents a pound. What was his gain ?

is 228.

gits to

divided

making did he

of wine gallon ?

ess than buggy w much

nd the What

s worth 885, till

eords of ?

lls, and cens are emains; any bills

printed olished?

ning 48 cents a

REVIEW.

512. A produce dealer bought 1488 bags of potatoes at \$1.22 a bag, and sold them at \$1.57 a bag. What did he gain ?

513. How many times in succession can 3589 be subtracted from 241462, and what will be the final remainder ?

514. What number added to 909900190 makes 3000000201?

515. A merchant gained \$7387 in two years; he gained the second year \$1053 more than the first. What was his gain each year?

516. How many pounds of tea at 78 cents a pound must be given for 375 bushels of wheat at \$1.56 a bushel?

517. What number must be taken from 20010032 so that it may be exactly divisible by 909 ?

518. What number besides 137 will exactly divide 11371?

519. The President of the United States receives \$50,000 a year. If he received \$5 more a year, how much would he receive a day ?

520. How many times can 1440 be subtracted from 8235460800?

521. When 9 is added to the dividend the quotient is 39, and when 2 is subtracted from the dividend the quotient is 38. What is the dividend?

522. The quotient is 6 times the remainder. The divisor is 7 times the quotient. Find the dividend, the remainder being 45.

Norg.-To find the average, divide the sum of the several numbers by the number of numbers.

523. Find the average of 263, 425, 373, 29, 47, 120, 263, 428, 32, and 40.

524. Find the average of \$22.35, \$68.42, \$33.21, \$16.80, \$15.65, and \$24.35.

525. What is the smallest number divisible by 7 which added to 3264 makes the sum divisible by 12?

526. The aggregate attendance at a public school during 157 days was 31,557. What was the average daily attendance ?

FIRST DEPARTMENT.

527. A merchant mixes 1 pound of tea worth 50 cents with 3 pounds worth 70 cents. What will a pound of the mixture be worth ?

528. A farmer mixes 12 bushels of oats worth 35 cents with 13 bushels of barley worth 60 cents. What is a bushel of the mixture worth ?

529. A grocer mixes 15 pounds of coffee worth 27 cents, 3 pounds worth 35 cents, and 3 pounds worth 40 cents. What is a pound of the mixture worth ?

530. A merchant's cash receipts for a week are \$231.14, \$125.63, \$632.84, \$321.15, \$424.17, and \$563.85. Find his daily average.

531. When 179 is added to the dividered the quotient is 237, and when 253 is subtracted from the dividend the quotient is 233. What is the divisor?

532. For each dollar bill that I have, I have five silver half-dollars; and for each silver half-dollar that I have, I have 27 fiveeent pieces. I have \$51.25 in all How many five-cent pieces have I?

533. Find a number to which if 369 be added the sum will be 1001 less than 9090.

534. If 54 clerks receive \$7776 for 16 weeks' work, how much a day does each receive ?

535. Two men had \$7583 divided between them; the difference between their shares was \$223. What did each get?

536. A has 11 times and C 25 times as much money as B. The difference between A's money and C's money is \$472.50. How much money has B?

537. A farmer's horses, cattle and sheep together number 96. He has three times as many cattle as horses, and 4 times as many sheep as cattle. How many of each has he ?

I. FACTORS AND MULTIPLES.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

An integer is a number that represents whole things.

An even number Is a number exactly divisible by 2.

An odd number is a number not exactly divisible by 2.

The **factors** of a number are the integers whose product will equal the number. Thus 2 and 3 are the factors of 6; 5 and 7 are the factors of 35; 3, 2, and 11 are the factors of 66.

A prime number is a number exactly divisible by only itself and one. Thus 3, 5, 7, 11, 13, and 17 are prime numbers.

A composite number is a number that has other factors or divisors than itself and one.

A prime factor is any prime number used as a factor.

A common factor of two or more numbers is a number that will exactly divide each of the given numbers. Thus 9 is a common factor of 27 and 63, or of 36 and 72.

The **highest common factor** of two or more numbers is the largest number that will exactly divide each of the given numbers.

A multiple of a number is an exact dividend of that number. Thus 36 is a multiple of 3, or 6, or any number that will divide it exactly.

A common multiple of two or more numbers is any number that is exactly divisible by each of them. Thus 20 is a common multiple of 4 and 5.

The least common multiple of two or more numbers is the least number that is exactly divisible by each of them.

Any number is divisible by 3 if the sum of its digits is divisible by 3.

Any number is divisible by 4 if it end with two or more ciphers, or if the number expressed by its two right-hand figures be divisible by 4.

Any number is divisible by 5 if its right-hand figure be 5 or 0.

Any number is divisible by 9 if the sum of its digits be divisible by 9.

Any number is exactly divisible by 7, 11, and 13, if the units' period and the thousands' period are the same.

The product of all the prime factors of a number is equal to that number.

The product of the greatest common measure and least common multiple of two numbers is equal to the product of the two numbers.

th 3 be

vith the

s, 3 t is

.14, aily

237, at is

nalffiveeces

l be

uch

erce

s B. 2.50.

r 96. any

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Note .--- Do not use pen or pencil.

1. Find the sum of the even numbers between 1 and 15.

2. Find the sum of the odd numbers between 2 and 14.

3. Find the sum of all the prime factors of 210.

4. Name the prime numbers from 1 to 30.

5. Name the largest prime number expressed by two figures.

6. Name the smallest prime number expressed by three figures.

7. Find the sum of the six smallest prime numbers.

8. Find the sum of the seven smallest composite numbers.

9. What is the highest common factor of 21, 28, and 35?

10. What is the least common multiple of 3, 5, and 7?

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

What are the prime factors of 390? 495? 968?
 What are the prime factors of 756? 1089? 8064?
 What are the prime factors of 1728? 3465? 3003?
 What are the prime factors of 4158? 3150? 2310?
 What are the prime factors of 6552? 7826? 5368?
 What are the prime factors of 5075? 9576? 1155?
 What is the sum of the prime factors of 34650?
 What is the sum of the prime factors of 172800?
 Find the prime factors common to 144 and 180.
 Find the prime factors common to 462 and 440.
 Find the prime factors common to 168, 256, and 320.

22. Find the prime factors common to 325, 540, and 635.

FACTORS AND MULTIPLES.

23. What is the largest prime factor common to 1561 and 1477?

43

24. What is the largest prime factor common to 385 and 735?

25. What is the greatest common divisor of 272 and 425?

26. What is the greatest common divisor of 394 and 672?

27. What is the greatest common divisor of 825 and 960?

28. What is the greatest common divisor of 2121 and 1313?

29. What is the greatest common divisor of 348, 609, and 580?

30. What is the largest multiple of 3 and 5 that can be expressed by three figures ?

res.

iree

s.

31. What is the smallest multiple of 2 and 7 that can be expressed by three figures ?

32. What is the largest multiple of 5 and 7 that can be expressed by four figures?

33. What is the smallest multiple of 2, 3, and 5 that can be expressed by three figures (

34. What is the lat whit is altiple of 3, 5, and 7 that can be expressed by three figur.

35. What is the least number of which 2, 3, and 5 are factors?

36. What is the least number of which 3, 5, and 7 are factors?

37. What is the lca' number of which 2, 3, 5, and 7 are factors?

38. What is the least number of which 3, 4, 5, 6, and 8 are factors?

39. Find the least common multiple of 3, 5, 6, 7, and 8.

40. Find the least common multiple of 4, 5, 9, 12, 15, and 20.

41. Find the least common multiple of 10, 16, 24, 40, and 64.

42. Find the least number which, divided by 3, 7, 11, or 13, will give a remainder of 2 in each case.

43. Find the greatest number that will divide 748 and 927 and give the remainders 13 and 17 respectively.

44. Find the sum of all the prime numbers between 10 and 100.

45. What is the smallest prime number that can be expressed by four figures ?

Note.-L. C. M. stands for "least common multiple," and H. C. F. for "highest common factor."

46. The L. C. M. of 391 and another number is 12121, and the H. C. F. is 23. What is the other number?

47. The product of the H. C. F. and L. C. M. of two numbers is 1728; one of the numbers is 96. Find the other.

48. The sum of two numbers is 550; their common factor is 11; the difference between the other two factors is 12. What are the numbers?

49. The sum of two numbers is 686; their common factor is 7; the difference between the other two factors is 16. What are the numbers?

II. COMMON FRACTIONS.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A fraction is one or more of the equal parts of a unit.

A fraction is usually expressed by two numbers, one written above the other, with a line between.

The **denominator** of a fraction is the number written below the line, and shows the number of equal parts into which the unit is divided.

The **numerator** of a fraction is the number written above the line, and shows how many of the equal parts are used.

A mixed number is a whole number and a fraction united.

Multiplying the numerator, or dividing the denominator, multiplies the value of a fraction.

Dividing the numerator, or multiplying the denominator, divides the value of a fraction.

Multiplying or dividing both terms by the same number does not change the value of a fraction.

COMMON FRACTIONS.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Nore.-Do not use pen or pencil.

50. In 3 fourths how many sixteenths?

51. One third of a year is how many sixths of a year ?

52. Two thirds of a mile are how many ninths of a mile ?

53. Four fifths of a month are how many fifteenths of a month?

54. Express three of the seven equal parts of a unit.

55. Express seven of the twelve equal parts of a unit.

56. How many thirds in 5?

57. In 18 units how many fourths?

58. Reduce $\frac{3}{4}$ to a fraction whose denominator is 32.

59. Change $\frac{7}{12}$ to an equivalent fraction having 60 for its denominator.

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

DIRECTION.-The twenty-five fractions which follow are to be reduced to their lowest terms.

60 . $\frac{4}{8}$.	65. $\frac{32}{48}$.	70. $\frac{28}{42}$.	75. 34.	80. 72.
61. $\frac{3}{9}$.	66. $\frac{45}{60}$.	71. $\frac{34}{85}$.	76. 25 .	81. 85.
62. $\frac{10}{12}$.	67. ⁴⁸ / ₆₄ .	72. 36 81.	77. <u>48</u> .	82. <u>90</u> .
63. $\frac{12}{18}$.	68. $\frac{63}{81}$.	73. ²⁵ / ₃₀ .	78. $\frac{27}{90}$.	83. 18.
64. $\frac{18}{24}$.	69. ² / _{3 6} .	74. 44.	79. ##.	84. 96

DIRECTION.—The twenty-five mixed numbers which follow are to be reduced to fractional form, with numerator and denominator only.

85. $27\frac{1}{2}$.	90. $13\frac{1}{8}$.	95 . $3\frac{3}{5}$.	100. 45.	105. $7\frac{3}{10}$.
86 . 32 ¹ / ₄ .	91. $29\frac{1}{6}$.	96 . °3.	101. 6 7 .	106 . 8 ⁴ / ₁₁ .
87 . 43 ¹ / ₃ .	92. 40 ¹ / ₉ .	97. 4 ³ / ₄ .	102. 7 ⁷ / ₈ .	107. 53.
88. 18 ¹ / ₅ .	93 . 82 ¹ / ₁₀ .	98. 5 2 .	103 . 8 ³ / ₇ .	108. 6.5.
89. 16 ¹ / ₇ .	94 . 63 ¹ ₁₁ .	99. 6 ³ / ₈ .	104 . 9 5 .	109. 97.

nd

he

ers

r is hat

is iat

ows

ows

e of

o of

the

DIRECTION.—7 numbers.	The thirty-five f	ractions which f	ollow are to be	reduced to mixed
110. 12.	117. 57.	124. $\frac{101}{2}$.	131. 375.	138. 1005.
111. 18.	118. ⁶³ / ₁₀ .	125. $\frac{103}{3}$.	132. 376.	139. 2008.
112. 18.	119. 32.	126. 111.	133. 427. 12.	140. 1013.
113. $\frac{19}{4}$.	120. 43.	127. 135.	134. 303 18.	141. 2068.
114. ¹⁷ / ₂ .	121. $\frac{42}{11}$.	128. $\frac{123}{5}$.	135. 444.	142. 30 #6.
115. 21.	122. $\frac{75}{12}$.	129. ¹⁹² / ₁₁ .	136. 518.	143. ¹⁰⁹⁸ / ₂₁ .
116. 😵.	123. 2 ⁷ .	130. ¹³³ / ₁₀ .	137. $\frac{873}{4}$.	144. 8001.

Nore.-In order that fractions may be added they must have like denominators and be parts of like units.

145. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3}$.	155. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{7}$.	165. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{3}$.	175. $\frac{3}{8} + \frac{3}{7}$.
146. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{4}$.	156. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{5}$.	166. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{3}{4}$.	176. $\frac{3}{8} + \frac{2}{3}$.
147. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{5}$.	157. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{7}$.	167. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{3}{4}$.	177. $\frac{3}{8} + \frac{3}{10}$.
148. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{6}$.	158. $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{9}$.	168. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{3}{5}$.	177. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{5}{12}$.
149. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{7}$.	159. $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{8}$.	169. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{4}{5}$.	179. $\frac{3}{7} + \frac{2}{11}$.
150. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{8}$.	160. $\frac{1}{6} + \frac{1}{9}$.	170. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{3}{5}$.	180. $\frac{4}{7} + \frac{5}{11}$.
151. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{9}$.	161. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{11}$.	171. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{4}{5}$.	181. $\frac{3}{10} + \frac{7}{12}$.
152. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{4}$.	162. $\frac{1}{6} + \frac{1}{11}$.	172. $\frac{3}{4} + \frac{3}{5}$.	182. $\frac{5}{16} + \frac{3}{4}$.
153. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{5}$.	163. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{11}$.	173. $\frac{3}{4} + \frac{4}{5}$.	183. $\frac{3}{20} + \frac{4}{5}$.
154. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{6}$.	164. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{12}$.	174. $\frac{3}{4} + \frac{2}{5}$.	184. $\frac{3}{13} + \frac{19}{20}$.

Note.—The small figures to the right of the numbers below represent *fourths*. Thus $48^2 = 48^2_4$ or 48^1_2 . This method of writing small fractions is frequently made use of by business men.

185.	Add 24 ² , 25, 26 ¹ , 27 ³ , 29 ³ , 28 ² , 24, 23 ² , 27 ³ , and 29 ² .
186 .	Add 293, 222, 273, 292, 223, 213, 263, 281, 251, and 323.
187.	Add 492, 542, 482, 472, 563, 513, 52, 48, 472, and 461.
188.	Add 731, 722, 733, 743, 752, 763, 771, 722, 732, and 742.
189.	Add 641, 622, 63, 642, 653, 621, 662, 643, 621, and 632.

COMMON FRACTIONS.

ixed

2. 2. 3. 4. 4. 4. 4.

ths.

2.

28.

1

4².

3².

DIRECTIONIn adding the fractions, then add their sum	fractions in the first column below, add the first two
190. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{6}$.	205. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{7} + \frac{1}{7}$
191. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{5}{12}$.	206. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{5} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{4}$
192. $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{8} + \frac{7}{15}$.	207. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{3}{5} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{3}{5} + \frac{1}{8} + \frac{3}{8}$.
193. $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{4} + \frac{11}{20}$.	208. $\frac{7}{8} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{7} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{5}{8} + \frac{3}{7} + \frac{2}{8}$.
194. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{4}{15}$.	209. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{4} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{20}$.
195. $\frac{3}{4} + \frac{2}{5} + \frac{17}{20}$.	210. $\frac{3}{7} + \frac{2}{3} + \frac{4}{5} + \frac{6}{7} + \frac{1}{9} + \frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{15}$.
196. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{2}{3} + \frac{11}{15}$.	211. $\frac{5}{8} + \frac{1}{6} + \frac{7}{8} + \frac{8}{4} + \frac{4}{8} + \frac{6}{7} + \frac{7}{10}$.
197. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{20}$.	212. $\frac{4}{5} + \frac{2}{3} + \frac{5}{6} + \frac{5}{5} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{6} + \frac{1}{18}$.
198. $\frac{4}{5} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{15}$.	213. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{5} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{6} + \frac{9}{10} + \frac{1}{12}$.
199. $\frac{4}{5} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{9}{20}$.	214. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{5}{6} + \frac{9}{10} + \frac{7}{20}$.
200. $\frac{2}{7} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{8}{21}$.	215. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{3}{7} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{6} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{5}{12} + \frac{4}{21}$.
201. $\frac{3}{8} + \frac{2}{3} + \frac{23}{24}$.	216. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{5}{6} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{3}{8} + \frac{5}{12} + \frac{1}{24}$.
202. $\frac{1}{7} + \frac{1}{11} + \frac{1}{77}$.	217. $\frac{4}{5} + \frac{3}{5} + \frac{3}{4} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{11} + \frac{7}{10} + \frac{3}{20}$.
$200. \frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{6} + \frac{3}{12}.$	218. $\frac{2}{5} + \frac{3}{8} + \frac{4}{5} + \frac{7}{8} + \frac{1}{12} + \frac{1}{20} + \frac{1}{20}$.
201. $12 + 11 + \frac{43}{132}$.	219. $\frac{4}{5} + \frac{3}{7} + \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{35} + \frac{1}{25} + \frac{1}{45} + \frac{1}{45}$

Note.--In adding mixed numbers add the fractions first, and to their sum add the sum of the whole numbers.

220.	$2\frac{1}{2} + 3\frac{1}{4}$.	225. $5\frac{2}{5} + 3\frac{1}{2}$.	230. $2\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{2}$.	235 . $10\frac{1}{4} + 3\frac{1}{4}$.
221.	$3\frac{1}{3} + 2\frac{1}{2}$.	226. $4\frac{2}{5} + 5\frac{1}{3}$.	231. $3\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{3}$.	236 . $11\frac{1}{1}$ + 41
222.	$3\frac{1}{4} + 5\frac{1}{3}$.	227. $6\frac{4}{5} + 2\frac{1}{8}$.	232. 4+++.	237 123 ± 91
223.	$8\frac{1}{5} + 3\frac{1}{2}$.	228. $3\frac{1}{5} + 4\frac{1}{8}$.	233. $3\frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{3}$.	238 134 ± 1.3
224.	$4\frac{1}{2} + 5\frac{1}{4}$.	229. $4\frac{1}{7} + 5\frac{1}{9}$.	234. $4\frac{1}{9} + \frac{3}{5}$.	239. $18\frac{2}{5} + 1\frac{5}{5}$.
CZ4.	$4\frac{1}{2} + 0\frac{1}{4}$.	229. $4\frac{1}{7} + 5\frac{1}{9}$.	234. $4\frac{1}{9} + \frac{3}{5}$.	239 . $18\frac{2}{5} + 1\frac{4}{5}$

240. Add $101\frac{1}{2}$, $305\frac{1}{3}$, $402\frac{1}{4}$, $361\frac{1}{5}$, and $222\frac{2}{3}$. **241.** Add $35\frac{1}{3}$, $624\frac{3}{4}$, $620\frac{1}{2}$, $1013\frac{2}{3}$, and $1056\frac{1}{4}$. **242.** Add $6510\frac{3}{4}$, $2004\frac{2}{5}$, $6\frac{1}{2}$, $3005\frac{1}{3}$, and $113\frac{1}{6}$. **243.** Add $35\frac{1}{2}$, $621\frac{5}{12}$, $324\frac{5}{6}$, $302\frac{2}{3}$, $463\frac{1}{4}$, and $2015\frac{1}{2}\frac{9}{4}$.

NOTE.-In order that fractions may be subtracted they must have like denominators and be parts of like units.

244. $\frac{2}{3} - \frac{1}{2}$.	249. $\frac{3}{5} - \frac{1}{2}$.	254. $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{9}$.	259. $\frac{5}{12} - \frac{1}{4}$.
245. $\frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{3}$.	250. 8-8.	255. $\frac{1}{3} - \frac{1}{6}$.	260. $\frac{7}{12} - \frac{2}{5}$.
246. $\frac{2}{3} - \frac{1}{5}$.	251. $\frac{5}{6} - \frac{2}{5}$.	256. $\frac{3}{5} - \frac{1}{7}$.	261. $\frac{5}{7} - \frac{3}{11}$.
247. $\frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{6}$.	252. $\frac{5}{6} - \frac{3}{4}$.	257. $\frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{7}$.	262. $\frac{19}{20} - \frac{4}{5}$.
248. $\frac{4}{5} - \frac{1}{3}$.	253. $\frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{6}$.	258. $\frac{2}{3} - \frac{2}{3}$.	263. $\frac{3}{11} - \frac{1}{10}$.
264. $2\frac{1}{2} - 1\frac{3}{4}$.	267. $1\frac{3}{5} - \frac{3}{4}$.	270. $2\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{3}$.	273. $10\frac{2}{5} - 3\frac{1}{3}$.
265. $3\frac{1}{3}-\frac{4}{3}$.	268. 24 - 3.	271. $3\frac{1}{4} - 1\frac{2}{5}$.	274. $10_{12}^7 - 5_5^4$.
266. $6\frac{3}{4} - 1\frac{1}{3}$.	269. 31 - 4.	272. $5\frac{6}{7} - 3\frac{2}{3}$.	275. $3\frac{1}{4} - 1\frac{2}{3}$.
276. $205\frac{3}{5}-67$. 279 . 25	$22 - 35 \frac{4}{5}$. 2	82. 364 – 199§.
277. $324\frac{2}{3} - 48$. 280. 4	$25-37\frac{1}{2}$. 2	83. $524 - 225\frac{5}{12}$.
278. $573_0^1 - 29$. 281. 65	$25-68\frac{3}{4}$. 2	84. $312 - 195^3_5$.
285. $346\frac{2}{3} - 42$	$\frac{1}{2}$. 289. 29	$91\frac{1}{3}-14\frac{2}{5}$. 2	93. $212\frac{1}{2}112\frac{1}{3}$.
286. $402\frac{1}{2} - 13$	§. 290 . 3	$63\frac{3}{4} - 18\frac{1}{2}$. 2	94. $403\frac{1}{4} - 314\frac{1}{2}$.
287. $624\frac{3}{5} - 62$	4 . 291 . 4	$24\frac{5}{6}-82\frac{1}{4}$. 2	95. $562\frac{3}{4} - 421\frac{3}{5}$.
288. $225\frac{5}{6} - 13$	1. 292. 3	$21\frac{1}{5} - 81\frac{3}{4}$. 2	96. $628\frac{3}{5} - 219\frac{5}{6}$.

Note.—To multiply a fraction by a whole number, multiply the numerator or divide the denominator by that number.

297 . $\frac{3}{4} \times 8$.	303. $\frac{3}{5} \times 16$.	309. $\frac{1}{2} \times 22$.	315. $\frac{1}{20} \times 4$.
298. * ×7.	304. § × 18.	310. $\frac{1}{3} \times 24$.	316. $\frac{3}{14} \times 2$.
299. $\frac{5}{6} \times 6$.	305. $\frac{4}{5} \times 20$.	311. $\frac{1}{4} \times 36.$	317. $\frac{8}{35} \times 7.$
300 . ³ / ₄ × 12.	306. § × 27.	312. $\frac{1}{8} \times 42$.	318. $\frac{11}{42} \times 6$.
301. $\frac{5}{7} \times 21$.	307. $\frac{2}{3} \times 15$.	313. $\frac{1}{9} \times 54$.	319. $\frac{19}{27} \times 8$.
302 . § × 36.	308. $\frac{3}{8} \times 17.$	314. $1_{10}^1 \times 90.$	320. 17 × 8.

COMMON FRACTIONS.

nomi-

. 1₀.

54.

5

.

23. 1<u>1</u>. 3.)<u>5</u>.

tor or

4. 2. 7. 6. 8. 8. 7

49

NorsWhen the minteger separately, and	ultiplicand is a mixed numbe	er multiply the fraction and
321. $5\frac{1}{2} \times 4$.	331. $221\frac{1}{2} \times 4.$	341. $201\frac{1}{2} \times 10.$
322. $6\frac{3}{5} \times 5$.	332. $362\frac{1}{3} \times 3$.	342. 403 ² × 12.
323. $8\frac{2}{3} \times 6$.	333. 6553 × 6.	343. 621 * × 18.
324. $9\frac{3}{4} \times 8$.	334. $421\frac{2}{3} \times 5$.	344. 3691 × 25.
325. $4\frac{2}{5} \times 5$.	335. $853\frac{1}{4} \times 8$.	345 . 624 ² / ₃ × 98.
326. $6\frac{3}{4} \times 6$.	336. $321\frac{2}{5} \times 6$.	346. 421 × 47.
327. $9\frac{1}{2} \times 7$.	337. $423_9^1 \times 4$.	347 . $328\frac{1}{2} \times 64$.
328. $6\frac{2}{3} \times 8.$	338. 630 ⁴ × 8.	348. $427\frac{2}{5} \times 86.$
329. 7 $\frac{4}{5} \times 9$.	339. $263\frac{3}{4} \times 5$.	349 . 625 ¹ / ₄ × 89.
330. $8\frac{3}{4} \times 3$.	340. $100\frac{1}{4} \times 9$.	350. $321\frac{1}{3} \times 25$.

NOTE .- Multiply by the numerator of the fraction, and divide the product by the denominator. When the multiplier is a mixed number multiply by the fraction and integer separately, and add the results.

351. $103 \times \frac{1}{2}$.	357. $263 \times 2\frac{1}{2}$.	363. $224 \times 21\frac{4}{5}$.
352. $422 \times \frac{1}{3}$.	358. $365 \times 3\frac{1}{3}$.	364. $638 \times 42\frac{3}{8}$.
353. $632 \times \frac{2}{5}$.	359. $242 \times 4\frac{3}{4}$.	365. $219 \times 32\frac{2}{3}$.
354. $321 \times \frac{3}{4}$.	360. $325 \times 5\frac{3}{5}$.	366. 631 × 19 4 .
355. $624 \times \frac{4}{5}$.	361. $263 \times 3\frac{1}{8}$.	367 . 298 × 32 ¹ / ₈ .
356. 583 × §.	362. $201 \times 5\frac{2}{7}$.	368. 215 × 18 ⁴ .

NOTE .- Reduce mixed numbers to fractions; cancel all factors common to the numerators and denominators; multiply the remaining numerators for the numerator, and the remaining denominators for the denominator.

369. $\frac{1}{2} \times \frac{2}{5} \times \frac{3}{4}$.	375. $\frac{2}{3}$ of $12 \times \frac{3}{4}$ of $16 \times \frac{4}{5}$ of 20.
$370. \tfrac{3}{8} \times \tfrac{2}{5} \times \tfrac{2}{3}.$	376. $\frac{3}{5}$ of $15 \times \frac{3}{4}$ of $18 \times \frac{3}{7}$ of 21.
371. *** * ³ / ₄ .	377. $\frac{4}{5}$ of $18 \times \frac{3}{5}$ of $20 \times \frac{4}{5}$ of 27.
372. $8 \sim 7 \times \frac{2}{3}$.	378. $2\frac{1}{2} \times 3\frac{1}{3} \times \frac{18}{25} \times \frac{3}{7} \times 4\frac{1}{6} \times \frac{1}{5}$.
373. $\frac{2}{7} \times \frac{3}{4} \times \frac{5}{12}$.	379. $3\frac{1}{3} \times \frac{3}{10} \times 4\frac{2}{5} \times \frac{3}{11} \times 3\frac{2}{3} \times 22.$
374. $\frac{5}{13} \times \frac{13}{25} \times \frac{1}{5}$.	380. $8\frac{1}{4} \times \frac{19}{19} \times 3\frac{1}{5} \times \frac{18}{18} \times 4\frac{1}{2} \times \frac{1}{5}$.

Note, - To divide a fraction by a whole number, divide the numerator or multiply the denominator by that number.

381. $\frac{3}{4} \div 8$.	364. 3÷4.	387 . ‡÷3.	390. $\frac{2}{3} \div 6$.
382. $\frac{1}{5} \div 2$.	385. $\frac{4}{9} \div 2$.	388. $\frac{3}{7} \div 4$.	391. ∄÷4.
383. $\frac{5}{6} \div 5$.	386 . $\frac{6}{7} \div 9$.	389 . ⁴ ₁₁ ÷9.	392 . 7 ÷ 2.

Norg.--When the dividend is a mixed number divide the whole number and the fraction separately, and add the results.

393. $213\frac{1}{2} \div 4$.	403. $4210\frac{1}{7} \div 8$.	413. $263\frac{1}{2} \div 12.$
394. $321\frac{1}{3} \div 3$.	404 . $2632\frac{7}{8} \div 2$.	414. $321\frac{1}{3} \div 18$.
395. $622\frac{1}{4} \div 5.$	405. $4021\frac{3}{5} \div 4$.	415. $420\frac{2}{5} \div 16$.
396. $220\frac{1}{2} \div 6$.	409. $3032\frac{3}{4} \div 3$.	416. $332\frac{3}{4} \div 22$.
397. $321\frac{1}{3} \div 8$.	407. $6200^3_7 \div 5.$	417. $601\frac{1}{2} \div 25.$
398. $101\frac{2}{5} \div 9$.	408. $2101\frac{1}{2} \div 3.$	418. $423\frac{1}{3} \div 18.$
399. 216 ¹ / ₄ ÷7.	409. $1021\frac{2}{3} \div 5$.	419. $632\frac{3}{4} \div 16.$
400. $321\frac{2}{5} \div 8$.	410. 62135÷6.	420. $213\frac{3}{8} \div 19.$
401. $622\frac{3}{8} \div 5$.	411. $2631\frac{3}{5} \div 9$.	421. $212\frac{1}{4} \div 22.$
402 . 400 ¹ / ₄ ÷ 8.	412 . 2121 ⁴ ÷ 2.	422. $121\frac{1}{2} \div 30.$

Norg.—To divide an integer, a fraction, or a mixed number by a fraction, invert the terms of the divisor and proceed as in multiplication; if by a unixed number, reduce the mixed number to a fraction before inverting the terms.

423. $\frac{3}{5} \div \frac{4}{5}$.	431 . $12 \div \frac{1}{2}$.	439. $25 \div 2\frac{1}{2}$.	447. $18\frac{1}{2} \div 3\frac{1}{4}$.
424. $\frac{2}{3} \div \frac{3}{4}$.	432 . $18 \div \frac{2}{3}$.	440. $38 \div 3\frac{1}{4}$.	448. $22\frac{1}{3} \div 8\frac{2}{5}$.
425. $\frac{5}{6} \div \frac{1}{2}$.	433. $16 \div \frac{3}{4}$.	4.1. $49 \div 2\frac{1}{5}$.	449. $33\frac{3}{4} \div 3\frac{1}{3}$.
426. $\frac{2}{3} \div \frac{3}{8}$.	434 . $29 \div \frac{2}{5}$.	442. $68 \div 3\frac{3}{4}$.	450. $18\frac{1}{2} \div 2\frac{1}{2}$.
427. $\frac{5}{7} \div \frac{5}{6}$.	435. $18 \div \frac{3}{8}$.	443. $99 \div 2\frac{2}{3}$.	451. $27\frac{1}{4} \div 3\frac{1}{3}$.
428. $_{10}^{3} \div \frac{2}{5}$.	436. 26÷ ⁴ / ₅ .	444. $87 \div 3\frac{1}{8}$.	452. $18\frac{2}{5} \div 3\frac{3}{5}$.
429. $\frac{3}{11} \div \frac{1}{2}$.	437 . 29÷ ² / ₇ .	445. $46 \div 1\frac{1}{2}$.	453. $16\frac{1}{9} \div 1\frac{1}{6}$.
430. $\frac{2}{19} \div \frac{2}{3}$.	438 . 18÷ ³ / ₅ .	446. $28 \div 3\frac{2}{5}$.	454. $29\frac{1}{5} \div 1\frac{1}{2}$.

\$

COMMON FRACTIONS.

51

455. Change 32 to an equivalent fraction whose denominator is 32.

ly

ei t

er,

456. How many poor families can be supplied with $\frac{1}{2}$ of a ton of coal each from $7\frac{2}{7}$ tons?

457. The sum of three numbers is 84; the least is $4\frac{1}{2}$, the greatest $47\frac{3}{4}$. What is the product of the three?

458. What number diminished by $\frac{2}{5}$ of itself leaves a remainder of 240?

459. If § of a mill is worth \$25^, what is § of the mill worth?

460. The sum of two fractions $a \in \frac{1}{T}$; one of them is $\frac{1}{3}$. What is the other?

461. What number diminished by $\frac{2}{3}$ of $\frac{3}{7}$ of itself leaves a remainder of 580?

462. If $\frac{5}{9}$ of a mill is worth \$5225, what is $\frac{3}{4}$ of the remainder worth?

463. Add $\frac{5}{6}$ of a dozen to $\frac{2}{5}$ of a hundred, and subtract the sum from $\frac{19}{26}$ of a thousand.

464. A lady bought 3 pieces of cloth; the first contained $39\frac{1}{2}$ yards, the second $28\frac{1}{4}$ yards, and the third $25\frac{3}{5}$ yards. How many yards in all?

465. How many vests, each containing $\frac{3}{4}$ of a yard, can be made out of 24 yards?

466. If an acre of land is worth \$28, what is $\frac{3}{4}$ of an acre worth?

467. What fraction divided by $\frac{2}{3}$ of 12 will give $\frac{4}{5}$ for quotient?

468. A house and lot cost \$2400; the lot cost $\frac{1}{7}$ of what the house cost. Find the cost of each.

469. Multiply 200002 by $\frac{2}{3}$ and divide the product by $\frac{1}{3}$.

470. Divide 30103 by $\frac{2}{3}$ and multiply the quotient by $\frac{1}{2}$.

471. A man sold two houses for \$1200 each; on the one he gained $\frac{1}{3}$ of the cost price, and on the other he lost $\frac{1}{5}$ of the cost price. How much did he gain or lose on the two houses?

III. DECIMALS.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A decimal fraction expresses one or more of the *decimal* divisions of a unit. Decimal fractions, commonly called *decimals*, are usually expressed by writing the numerator only.

The **decimal sign** (.) or point determines by its position the *denominator* of the fraction.

Annexing clphers to a decimal does not alter its value.

Each removal of the decimal point one place to the right multiplies the value of the decimal by 10.

Each removal of the decimal point one place to the left divides the value of the decima' by 10.

A terminate decimal is one that either terminates, or can be made to terminate, without a common fraction.

An interminate decimal is one that cannot terminate without a common fraction, expressed or understood.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Note .- Do not use pen or pencil.

472. How many letters will it take o write .008 in words?

473. Find the sum of .08, .005, 2.3, 3.04, and .1.

474. Write the smallest decimal that can be expressed by the figures 0, 5, 1, and 7.

475. Write the smallest decimal that can be expressed by the figures 0, 0, 1, 2, 5, 3, and 9.

476. Find the difference between .05 and .025.

477. Ten times a certain decimal is .3. What is one tenth of the decimal ?

478. Express $\frac{1}{2}$ of one-hundredth as a decimal.

479. How many tenths in 50 hundredths?

480. How many thousandths in 2 units?

481. Find the difference between the two smallest decimals that can be expressed by the figures 9, 8, and 2.

DECIMALS.

53

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

DIRECTION.-Change to equivalent decimals.

nit. ing r of

the mi-

 \mathbf{he}

he

of

ls

482.	2 .	485.	3.	488.	²⁵ / ₃₂ .	491.	3.	494.	51.
483.	3 4	486 .	3.	489.	$2\frac{1}{20}$.	492.	37.	495.	61 _T .
484 .	3.	487.	10.	490.	3 <u>1</u> .	493.	5.	496.	710.

DIRECTION. - Change to equivalent fractions.

497 25.	500 05.	503 128.	506016.	509331.
498 75.	501 375.	504 875.	507025.	510, .16%.
499. .5.	502 625.	505125.	508 , .512.	511444.

DIRECTION. — Find the sum of the numbers in each exercise. **512.** .321; 4.005; 32.062; 5.121; .005; .0006. **513.** 92; 2.05; .025; 3.2; .001; .0051; 3.215. **514.** 3.5; 21.06; 191.04; 312.005; .05; .006; 9. **515.** $2\frac{1}{2}$; 2.5; 21.0 $\frac{1}{2}$; 5.05; 6.06; 3.05; $3\frac{1}{5}$; .9. **516.** .005; 32.00005; 2.2; 30.03; 3000.1; .25; 8. **517.** 625; 300; .003; .625; 5.051; .5105; .256. **518.** 5.215; .00505; 3.3; 60.06; 311.01; $2\frac{1}{2}$; $3\frac{1}{4}$; 25. **519.** $.25\frac{1}{2}$; $.35\frac{1}{4}$; $.0\frac{1}{5}$; .00 $\frac{1}{5}$; .00 $\frac{1}{5}$; $\frac{1}{4}$; .025; 100. **520.** 31.0005; 29800.0026; 31.012; 215.0152; 2.2. **521.** .3121.9; .99; .09; 99; 9.9; 200.009; .005; 21.

 DIRECTION. -- Find the difference between the numbers in each exercise.

 522. 32.05; 9.005. **526.** 1.1; .11. **530.** $3.06\frac{1}{3}$; 2.002.

 523. $2.03\frac{1}{2}$; $2.003\frac{1}{2}.$ **527.** 11; .0011. **531.** $2.11\frac{1}{4}$; $1.00\frac{1}{2}.$
524. 9.25; .925. **528.** $2\frac{1}{2}$; .05. **532.** $42.0\frac{2}{3}$; $3.62\frac{2}{3}.$
525. $.003\frac{1}{4}$; $30.0\frac{1}{4}.$ **529.** $5\frac{1}{2}$; $.05\frac{1}{2}.$ **533.** $3.01\frac{1}{6}$; $.001\frac{1}{3}.$

DIRECTION.-Find the product of the numbers in each exercise.

534. $2.05 \times \frac{1}{2}$.	539. 3.21 × 2.31.	544. $21\frac{1}{2} \times .21\frac{1}{2}$.
535. $3.004 \times \frac{1}{4}$.	540 . 9.99 × 90.9.	545 . 9.021 × 100.
536. 42.01 × .01.	541. $2.06 \times .00^{1}_{2}$.	546 . 21.39 × 1000.
537. 2.5 × .003.	542. 4.05 × .03.	547. $.66_3^2 \times .05.$
538. 32.1 × .05.	543. $6.02 \times 33\frac{1}{3}$.	548. 39.09 × .06 ¹ / ₄ .

NOTE.—Divide as in ordinary numbers, and point off from the right of the quotient as many decimal places as the number in the dividend exceeds the number in the divisor.

549. 2.05÷2.	554. 36.9÷9.6.	559. $.0062 \div .33\frac{1}{3}$.
550. 30.5÷3.	555. 9.04÷99.4.	560 . $.0051 \div .16\frac{1}{2}$.
551 . 21.6÷.3.	556. 30.12÷6.21.	561 42÷2.12.
552. 3.05÷.2.	557. 4.21÷5.12.	562. 9984.01÷2.1.
553. 90.8÷.01.	558. .005÷.006.	563. .1÷.01.

564. From the sum of 22.52¹/₈ and 3.000¹/₄ take 10.059¹/₅.

565. To the difference between 5 and .5 add .05.

566. $\frac{1}{2} - .05 + \frac{1}{4} + .5 - .025 + \frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{8} + 2.03$.

567. $12\frac{1}{2} - 2.02 + \frac{3}{4} - .001 + 2.1 - .03 + \frac{2}{5} - .00\frac{1}{2}$.

568. Multiply.006 by .06 and divide the product by 2.

569. How many letters will it take to write 2.005 in words?

570. One hundred times a certain decimal is 2.003. What is one-twentieth of the decimal?

571. Find the product of the two smallest decimals that can be expressed by the figures 0, 0, 9, and 3.

572. The sum of two numbers is 20.02; one of them is 1000 times the other. What are the numbers?

573. The product of two numbers multiplied by $\frac{1}{2}$ is .0005; one of the numbers is .05. What is the other?

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

55

IV. BUSINESS EXERCISES

MIXED NUMBERS.

Illustrative Exercise.

Find the cost of $234\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of cheese at $9\frac{5}{5}$ cents.

234 <u>1</u> 9 §	ti
$117\frac{1}{1}$ $29\frac{5}{16}$ $110\frac{1}{2}$	ANALYSIS. $-\frac{5}{2}=\frac{1}{2}+\frac{1}{6}$. Multiply $234\frac{1}{2}$ by $\frac{1}{2}$ by dividing by 2. Multiply $234\frac{1}{2}$ by $\frac{1}{6}$ by dividing by 8. Multiply $234\frac{1}{2}$ by 9 and add the results.

2110 \$22.57 1 6

he

ber

is

n

0

Norg.-In multiplying small numbers it will be found easier to reduce to fractions and multiply in the ordinary way. The above method is well adapted to commercial operations, in which the fractions are usually small.

574. $3\frac{1}{2} \times 2\frac{1}{4}$.	578. $10\frac{1}{3} \times 4\frac{1}{5}$.	582. $10\frac{1}{4} \times 2\frac{1}{2}$.	586. $25\frac{1}{2} \times 2\frac{1}{2}$.
575. $4\frac{1}{4} \times 3\frac{1}{3}$.	579. $3\frac{1}{2} \times 5\frac{1}{4}$.	583. $18\frac{1}{8} \times 3\frac{1}{3}$.	587. $32\frac{1}{2} \times 3\frac{1}{2}$.
576. $2\frac{1}{9} \times 2\frac{1}{5}$.	580. $12\frac{1}{3} \times 2\frac{1}{9}$.	584. $15\frac{1}{5} \times 2\frac{1}{4}$.	588. $45\frac{1}{4} \times 1\frac{1}{2}$.
577. $3\frac{1}{8} \times 8\frac{1}{3}$.	581. $18\frac{1}{4} \times 10\frac{1}{2}$.	585. $23\frac{1}{2} \times 2\frac{1}{2}$.	589. $32\frac{1}{2} \times 3\frac{1}{3}$.

Note.-In the answers to the following business transactions the fraction, if less than 1, is omitted, and if 1 or more, 1 is added.

590. Find the cost of $203\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of tea at $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound.

591. What is the cost of 25_4^3 pounds of coffee at 18_5^1 cents a pound?

592. Find the cost of $3021\frac{3}{4}$ pounds of ham at $12\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound.

593. What is the cost of $2031\frac{1}{2}$ bushels of wheat at \$1.124 a bushel?

594. Find the cost of 1021 bushels of oats at $62\frac{1}{2}$ cents a bushel.

595. Find the cost of 8312 yards of muslin at $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents a yard.

596. Find the cost of $32\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of butter at $16\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound.

597. Find the value of 2993 pounds of sugar at $7\frac{2}{3}$ cents a pound.

598. What is the value of 2132¹/₂ yards of print at $6\frac{1}{2}$ cents a yard ?

599. Find the cost of 32³/₄ dozen eggs at 12¹/₂ cents a dozen.

600. Find the cost of $421\frac{1}{8}$ bushels of oats at $27\frac{1}{2}$ cents a bushel.

601. What is the value of $62\frac{1}{4}$ yards of sheeting at $8\frac{3}{4}$ cents a y :rd?

DECIMALS.

Note.—To divide a decimal by $10, 100, 1000, \epsilon tc.$, remove the decimal point as many places to the left as there are ciphers in the divisor, prefixing ciphers to the dividend if necessary.

602. Find the cost of 3235 pounds of coal at \$5.25 a ton.

Norg.—If the third declinal figure in the product be less than 5, omit it and all following lt; lf 5 or more, add one to the second declinal figure and omitall following. A ton equals 2000 pounds.

603. Find the cost of 4325 pounds of coal at \$5.75 a ton.

604. Find the cost of 6984 pounds of coal at \$4.85 a ton.

605. Find the cost of 21,535 pounds of coal at \$5.25 a ton.

606. Find the cost of 6284 feet of lumber at \$12.35 a M.

607. Find the cost of 936 feet of lumber at $2.37\frac{1}{2}$ a hundred.

608. Find the cost of 936 feet of lumber at \$24.25 a M.

609. Find the cost of 8463 feet of lumber at \$27.35 per M.

610 Find the cost of 3684 pounds of pork at \$9.24 a hundred.

611. Find the cost of 945 pounds of pork at \$8.32 a hundred.

612. Find the cost of $837\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of beef at \$6.48 a hundred.

613. Find the cost of 428 pounds of bran at 75c. a hundred.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

614. Find the cost of 8462 pounds of hay at \$22.50 a ton.

615. Find the cost of 6521 pounds of hay at \$43.25 a ton.

616. Find the cost of 2198 pounds of straw at \$9.55 a ton.

617. Find the cost of 6225 bricks at \$8.25 a thousand.

618. Find the cost of 4750 envelopes at \$1.37 per thousand.

619. Find the cost of 3250 lath at $18\frac{1}{2}$ c. a hundred.

620. Find the cost of constructing 5984 feet of sidewalk at \$137.50 per thousand feet.

SHORT METHODS.

Illustrative Exercises.

1. Find the sum of $\frac{1}{3}$ and $\frac{1}{4}$.

 $\left. \begin{array}{c} 3+4=7\\ 3\times 4=12 \end{array} \right\} = \frac{7}{12}$

Here there are two fractions, and the numerator is 1 in each case. To find their sum, a:ld 3 and 4 for the numerator and multiply them for the denominator.

2. Find the difference between $\frac{1}{3}$ and $\frac{1}{4}$.

 $\frac{4-3=1}{3\times 4=12} \bigg\} = \frac{1}{12}$

Here there are two fractions, and the numerator is 1 in each case. To find the^{j-} difference, subtract 3 from 4 for the numerator and multiply them for the denominator.

3. Find the sum of $\frac{2}{3}$ and $\frac{3}{2}$.

 $\begin{array}{l} 2 \times 5 = 10 \\ 3 \times 3 = 9 \end{array} \right\} = 19 = \text{numerator.} \\ 3 \times 5 = 15 = \text{denominator.} \end{array}$

 $\frac{19}{16} = 1_{15}^4$

Here the numerators are greater than 1. To find the sum of the fractions, multiply the numerator of the first by the denomiuator of the second, and the denominator of the first by the numerator of the second, and add the products for the numerator of the answer. Multiply the denominators for the denominator of the answer.

4. Find the difference between $\frac{2}{3}$ and $\frac{2}{5}$.

 $2 \times 5 = 10$ $3 \times 3 = 9$ $3 \times 5 = 15 = \text{denominator.}$ $1_{5} = \text{difference.}$

To find the difference between the fractions, subtract after multiplying, instead of adding.

57

its a

its a

its a

ts a

ts a

t as the

ali ow-

d.

d. 1.

ł.

	NoteDo not	use pen or pencil.	
621. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3}$.	633 .' $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{3}$.	645. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{3}{4}$.	657. 2 - 1.
622. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{4}$.	634. $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{4}$.	646. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{3}$.	658. 3 - 1 .
623. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{5}$.	635. $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{3}$.	647. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{3}{8}$.	659 , 3 - 3 ,
624. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{6}$.	636. $\frac{1}{3} - \frac{1}{3}$.	648. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{2}{5}$.	660. 2 - 1 .
625. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{4}$.	637. $\frac{1}{3} - \frac{1}{7}$.	649. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{4}{3}$.	661. $\frac{3}{5} - \frac{1}{5}$.
626. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{7}$.	638. $\frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{7}$.	650. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{3}{5}$.	662. 4 - 4.
627. $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{9}$.	639. $\frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{9}$.	651. 1+ 4.	663. 3 - 1.
628. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{7}$.	640. $\frac{1}{5} - \frac{1}{6}$.	652. $\frac{1}{5} + \frac{3}{4}$.	664. $\frac{3}{7} - \frac{1}{6}$.
629. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{5}$.	641. $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{6}$.	653. $\frac{2}{3} + \frac{3}{4}$.	665. $\frac{2}{3} - \frac{3}{2}$.
630. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{5}$.	642. $\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{9}$.	654. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{3}{4}$.	666. 4 - 3 .
631. $\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{7}$.	643. $\frac{1}{3} - \frac{1}{9}$.	655. $\frac{3}{5} + \frac{2}{3}$.	667. $\frac{5}{7} - \frac{1}{4}$.
632. $\frac{1}{3} + \frac{1}{6}$.	644. $\frac{1}{3} - \frac{1}{4}$.	656. $\frac{3}{7} + \frac{2}{5}$.	668. 5 - 3.

V. REVIEW.

EXERCISES IN ANALYSIS.

669. If 5 pounds of tea cost \$3.25, what will 9 pounds cost ?

5 pounds cost \$3.25,

1 pound cost . \$3.25 ÷ 5 = 65 cents,

9 pounds cost 65 cents \times 9 = \$5.85.

670. If 9 pounds of butter cost \$1.98, what will 21 pounds cost ?

671. If 27 yards of cloth cost \$12.42, what will 113 yards cost?

672. If 12 men can do a piece of work in 42 days, in how many days can 28 men do it?

12 men can do the work in 42 days,

1 man can do the work in $42 \times 12 = 504$ days,

28 men can do the work in 504 days \div 28 = 18 days.

REVIEW.

673. If 16 men can build a house in 20 days, how long will it take 40 men to build it?

- 5.

4.

3.

].

1.

3.

ł.

급.

3.

1.

1.

1.

?

ıds

 $\mathbf{st}?$

JW.

674. If 7 tons of coal can be bought for \$42, how many tons can be bought for \$72?

675. If it require 250 bushels of wheat to make 50 barrels of flour, how many bushels will be required to make 19 barrels?

676. If 26 acres of land cost \$2236, what will 127 acres cost at the same rate?

677. In what time will a boy, at $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents a day, earn as much as a man earns in 75 days, at \$2.27 a day?

678. If $\frac{3}{10}$ of a farm be worth \$963, what is the value of $\frac{2}{3}$ of the farm ?

679. If $\frac{9}{10}$ of a bin of coal be worth \$63, what is $\frac{3}{7}$ of it worth?

680. If $\frac{6}{5}$ of a pound of tea cost 50c., what will $16\frac{3}{4}$ pounds cost?

681. A drain is dug by 45 men in 95 days; how many men would have been required to dig it in 25 days?

682. If $\frac{4}{5}$ of a patent-right be worth \$1200, what is the value of the whole patent-right ?

683. A firm had $\frac{1}{4}$ of its capital invested in goods, $\frac{2}{3}$ of the remainder in land, and the remainder, \$1224, in cash. What was the capital of the firm ?

684. If the 4-pound loaf cost 9 cents when flour is \$5.50 a barrel, find its cost when flour is \$7 a barrel.

685. If 24 pounds of rice are worth as much as 18 pounds of sugar, how many pounds of rice are worth as much as 217 pounds of sugar?

686. If 12 men earn \$72 in one week, how much will 18 men earn, at the same rate, in the same time ?

687. If $2\frac{3}{4}$ yards of broadcloth be worth \$23.10, what is the value of $16\frac{5}{5}$ yards at the same rate ?

688. If $\frac{3}{4}$ of an acre of land cost \$60, what will $87\frac{1}{2}$ acres cost at the same rate?

MISCELLANEOUS EXERCISES.

689. What are the prime factors of 25920 ?

690. Find the H. C. F. of 235 and 685.

691. Find the L. C. M. of 3, 25, 60, and 100.

692. Find the greatest number that will divide 392 and 257, leaving as remainders 7 and 12.

693. What is the H. C. F. of 182, 364, and 455?

694. Four cheeses, weighing respectively $32\frac{1}{2}$ pounds, $41\frac{1}{4}$ pounds, $37\frac{3}{4}$ pounds, and 51 pounds, were sold at 22 cents a pound. How much was received for them ?

695. Five-sevenths of $\frac{1}{2}$ of a number is 75. What is the number?

696. Write down all the common multiples of 720 and 1008 that are less than 30000.

697. Divide .012261 by 2.01.

698. A can cut $1\frac{1}{4}$ cords of wood in $\frac{5}{6}$ of a day; B can cut as much in $\frac{1}{3}$ of a day as A can cut in $\frac{1}{2}$ of a day. How long will it take them to cut 30 cords working together ?

699. The H. C. F. of two numbers is 17, and their L. C. M. is 3876. One number is 204. Find the other.

700. I spent $\frac{1}{5}$ of my money and \$6 more, then $\frac{1}{3}$ of the remainder and \$5 more, then $\frac{2}{5}$ of what was left and \$15 more. I then had \$18. How much had I at first?

701. A farmer sold 24 dozen eggs at $22\frac{1}{2}$ cents a dozen, and 12 pounds of butter at $27\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound. He was paid in tea at 87 cents a pound. How many pounds of tea should he receive?

702. Find three numbers less than 125 which are multiples of both 12 and 18.

703. A gentleman gave away $\frac{1}{5}$ of the books in his library, lent $\frac{1}{4}$ of the remainder, and sold $\frac{1}{3}$ of what was left. He found that he had 400 books remaining. How many had he at first?

REVIEW.

704. A man engaged to work a year for \$600 and a suit of clothes. At the end of 8 months a just settlement was made by giving him \$390 and the suit of clothes. What was the value of the clothes?

705. There are on a lighthouse three revolving lights. One revolves in 260 seconds, another in 195 seconds, and the third in . 390 seconds. They are all bright at 11 p.m. When will they next be so?

706. A train leaves a certain station at 9.30 a.m., and goes $27\frac{1}{3}$ miles an hour. Another train leaves at 10.15 a.m., and goes 41 miles an hour. When will the latter overtake the former?

707. A boy can dig 25 bushels of potatoes in a day, and he can pick 50 bushels in a day. How many bushels can he dig and pick in 5 days?

708. Two-thirds of a number of persons received 15 cents each, and $\frac{1}{3}$ received 9 cents each. They all received \$4.68. How many persons were there ?

709. A man and his wife use a bag of flour in 16 days. When the man is away a bag of flour lasts his wife 48 days. How long would it last the man if alone?

710. Divide $125\frac{1}{2}$ acres of land among A, B, and C, giving C $7\frac{1}{4}$ acres more than B, and B $12\frac{3}{4}$ acres more than A.

711. A can do a piece of work in 5 days; B can do the same in 7 days. How long will it take them to do the work jointly?

712. A sold to B a watch for $\frac{1}{2}$ more than it cost him. B sold it to C for \$36, which was $\frac{1}{4}$ less than it cost him. What did A pay for it?

713. The difference between $\frac{1}{2}$ and $\frac{1}{3}$ of a number is 6 less than $\frac{1}{3}$ of the number. Find the number.

714. What must be the divisor and quotient when the dividend is 4352, and the remainder, 17, is the H. C. F. of the divisor and quotient?

257,

414 is a

the

008

as l it

M.

he re.

12 at

e?

of

y, nd

- 715. Find the least number of soldiers that can be divided into co: panies of 16, 30, 48, 56, or 72?

716. A fine of \$7 had to be raised among a number of boys. One-fourth of them paid 5 cents each; one-fourth paid 9 cents each; one-fourth paid 10 cents each; and the others 11 cents each. How many boys were there ?

717. Find the least number which, when divided by 3, 4, 6, or 9, gives 2 as a remainder in each case.

718. Find the greatest number that will divide 2293, 4245, and 5348, leaving 18, 20, and 23 respectively as remainders.

719. If a turkey weighing 9½ pounds costs \$1.33, what should one cost that weighs 14½ pounds?

720. There is a number that will divide every one of the numbers 637, 504, 756, and 1001. What is it?

721. If $\frac{1}{2}$ of the time since midnight is equal to $\frac{1}{2}$ of the time since noon, what time is it?

722. What number is that to which if $\frac{3}{5}$ of itself plus 42 be Ladded, the result will be three times the number?

723. The marbles in a box can be made into groups of 17 and none remain, but when made into groups of 16, 18, or 24, 9 remain in each case. How many marbles are there?

724. What number taken from the sum of $10\frac{3}{4}$ and $12\frac{1}{2}$ will leave $5\frac{1}{4}$?

725. A piece of cloth when measured by a yard measure which is .6 of an inch too short appears to be $88\frac{1}{2}$ yards long. What is its true length?

726. Find the smallest number which, when divided by any number between 10 and 20, will leave a remainder.

727. Three persons, B, C, and D, bought a city lot for \$10,400, of which B paid \$3200, C \$2400, and D \$4800. What part of the lot belongs to each?

728. By what number must .001 be multiplied to produce 221 ?

vided

boys. cents cents

4, 6,

1245,

ould

the

time

2 be

and 9 re-

will

hich at is

any

400, t of

 $2\frac{1}{2}$?

REVIEW.

729. Ten is added to a certain decimal. The point is then moved one place to the left and ten is added. The sum is equal to $4\frac{1}{2}$ times the original decimal. Find the original decimal.

730. $\frac{1}{2} - .05 + \frac{1}{4} + .5 - .025 + \frac{3}{4} - \frac{1}{8} + 2.03 - .01.$

731. The sum of two numbers is 1357. Their difference is $\frac{1}{11}$ of the smaller number. What are the numbers?

732. The sum of two numbers is 4816. Their difference is $\frac{2}{3}$ of the larger number. What are the numbers?

733. Find the sum of all the *proper* fractions that can be formed having only one figure in the numerator and one in the denominator.

Note. -- The denominator of a proper fraction is greater than the numerator.

734. Divide \$28,217 between two men, giving one $\frac{3}{4}$ of what the other receives.

735. A, B, and C have 540 acres of land. One-third of A's share is equal to $\frac{1}{2}$ of B's, and $\frac{3}{4}$ of B's share is equal to $\frac{4}{7}$ of C's. How many acres has each?

736. If $\frac{1}{5}$ of the time past midnight is equal to $\frac{1}{3}$ of the time until noon, what time is it?

737. Divide \$490 between two men, giving one \$3 as often as the other gets \$4.

738. The sum of two numbers is 3150, and one bears the same relation to $\frac{1}{2}$ as the other does to $\frac{3}{4}$. Find the numbers.

739. Divide 279 acres among A, B, and C, so that B may get twice as much as A, and C three times as much as B.

740. Three men hired a pasture for \$42. The first put in 3 horses, the second 7 horses, and the third 11 horses. How much should each pay?

741. An estate dealer bought a house and lot for \$6420. He spent \$342 in repairs. He then sold it for \$2130 in cash, and a boat valued at \$5900. The boat was burned shortly after the sale. How much did he lose?

742. Two persons join in purchasing some property, one paying \$1250 and the other \$1000. If the property rise in value to \$3750, what will be the value of each one's share ?

743. Bell metal contains 78 parts copper and 22 parts tin. What weight of each of these metals will there be in a bell weighing 490 pounds?

744. An army of 12,000 men has provisions for 24 days. How long will these provisions last if the army is reinforced by 9000 men?

745. A, B, and C together have \$645. C has twice as much money as B, and if \$12 be deducted from A's money it will be $\frac{1}{3}$ of B's. How much has each?

746. Divide \$375 among 2 men, 3 women, and 4 boys, so that as often as each boy gets \$2, each woman may get \$3, and each man \$4.

747. A farmer bought three farms of 200 acres each at \$5.25 an acre. He built three barns, one on each, at a cost of \$735 a farm, and 920 rods of fence at \$2.50 a rod. He spent \$125 in improving the houses. He then sold the farms at \$11.25 an acre. Did he gain or lose, and how much?

748. A man walked from A to B at the rate of $3\frac{1}{2}$ miles an hour, remained there an hour and a half, rode back at the rate of 8 miles an hour, reaching A 14 hours after he started. How far is it from A to B?

749. Bought 60 geese and turkeys for \$53, paying 75 cents each fc the geese. How many turkeys did I buy, and at what price?

750. A drover bought 100 sheep and calves for \$387, paying \$4.50 each for the sheep. Had the number of sheep and calves been interchanged they would have cost \$413. How many were there of each?

THIRD DEPARTMENT.

I. MEASURES.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Avoirdupois weight is used in weighing all articles except precious metals and dry medicines.

One ton equals twenty hundredweight, or 2000 pounds .

One pound equals 16 ounces. One stone equals 14 pounds. A barrel of beef or pork weighs 200 pounds.

Linear measure is used in measuring lengths, breadths, depths, heights, or distances.

One mile is equal to 320 rods, or 1760 yards, or 5280 feet.

One rod is equal to 51 yards, or 161 feet.

There are 12 inches in a foot, and 3 feet in a yard.

A shocmaker's size is one-third of an inch. A hand is 4 inches. A fathom is 6 feet.

Surveyor's linear measure is used by surveyors and engineers in measuring the boundaries of land, the length of roads, etc.

The unit of measurement is the chain, which is 4 rods or 66 feet long.

There are 100 links in a chain, and a mile is equal to 80 chains.

Square measure is used in measuring surfaces, such as land, boards, plastering, etc.

There are 144 square inches in a square foot, and 9 square feet 11 a square yard. There are 301 square yards in a square rod, and 160 square rods in an acre.

Surveyors' square measure is used in measuring land.

There are 10 square chains in an acre, and 640 acres in a square mile.

Liquid measure is used in measuring liquids

There are 4 gills in a pint, 2 pints in a quart, and 4 quarts in a gallon.

There are 31} gallons in a barrel.

Dry measure is used in measuring dry articles.

There are 8 quarts in a peck, and 4 pecks in a bushel.

The quart and peck of dry measure have about i greater capacity than the quart and peck of liquid measure.

All years divisible by 4, except centennial years, are leap years. All centennial years divisible by 400 are leap years.

There are 12 units in a dozen, and 12 dozen in a gross.

There are 24 sheets of paper in a quire, and 20 quires in a ream .

E

paye to

tin. bell

low 000

uch be

hat ach

1.25 5 a in an

ลบ ate low

nts hat

ing ves ere

THIRD DEPARTMENT.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

1. Find the value of 280 pounds of oat meal at 45 cents a stone.

What will a hundredweight of beef cost at $18\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound?

3. How much should a farmer receive for 3 tubs of butter, each containing 63 pounds, at 22 cents a pound ?

4. Find the cost of 427 pounds of rice at 64 cents a stone.

5. What will 18 pounds of baking powder cost at $2\frac{1}{2}$ cents an ounce.

6. If 25 pounds of coal cost 15 cents, what will 2 tons of coal cost ?

7. A grocer buys 3 tubs of butter, containing 84 pounds each, for \$37.50, and sells the whole at 18 cents a pound. How much does he gain or lose ?

8. A butcher buys a barrel of pork for \$24, and sells the whole at 19 cents a pound. Find his profit.

9. Find the cost of 18 tons of hay at 75 cents a hundred-weight.

10. Find the cost of 56 ounces of candy at 18 cents a pound.

11. How much will 924 pounds of feed cost at \$1.50 a hundredweight?

12. A load of hay with the wagon weighs 2348 pounds. The wagon weighs 829 pounds. Find the value of the hay at \$24.50 a ton.

13. A barrel of beef which cost \$18.75 is retailed at $12\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound. How much is gained ?

14. Find the cost of 375 pounds of straw at 25 conts a hundredweight.

15. What will 5680 pounds of bran cost at \$27.50 a ton?

MEASURES.

16. Find the cost of 2985 pounds of bran at 54 cents a hundredweight.

. \neg :—Grain, seeds, and similar produce, are usually sold by the bushel. The number of pounds in a bushel differs in different States and Provinces. The exercises given in this book are based upon the following table :--

Darley	In California, 50; Louisiana, 32; Massachusetts, Ver-
Wheat 60 lbs.	In Connecticut, 56.
Oats	In Canada, 34; Ce necticut, 28; Iowa, 35; Maine.
	Massachusetts, North Carolina and New Jersey, 30: Kentucky 331
Corn	In Illinois and California, 52; New Hampshire, 54;
Rye	In California and Illinois 54
Peas	the statistic, br.
Clover Seed 60 lbs.	In New Jersey, 64.
Timothy Seed 45 lbs.	In Canada, 48; New York, 44; Wisconsin 46

DIRECTION.—In the exercises which follow, the cost or selling price of the grain is to be found. Omit fractions of a cent in the answer, when less than $\frac{1}{2}$. When $\frac{1}{2}$ or more, at 1 cent.

17. Wheat-1240 pounds at 90 cents a bushel.

18. Wheat-2150 pounds at 85 cents a bushel.

19. Wheat-3265 pounds at \$1.20 a bushel.

20. Wheat-6428 pounds at \$1.12 a bushel.

21. Wheat—3529 pounds at \$1.15 $\frac{1}{2}$ a bushel.

22. Wheat-5965 pounds at \$1.02 a bushel.

23. Barley-3246 pounds at 88 cents a bushel.

24. Barley-6487 pounds at 92 cents a bushel.

25. Barley-4005 pounds at 39 cents a bushel.

26. Corn-5684 pounds at 58 cents a bushel.

27. Corn-2469 pounds at 88 cents a bushel.

28. Corn-3425 pounds at 72 cents a bushel.

29. Corn-5680 pounds at 99 cents a bushel.

30. Oats-1000 pounds at 36 cents a bushel.

nts a

nts a

itter,

le.

ts an

ns of

each, nuch

hole

hod-

nd.

hun-

The 24.50

cents

hun-
31. Oats-2569 pounds at 56 cents a bushel.

32. Peas-9845 pounds at 64 cents a bushel.

33. Rye-2485 pounds at 98 cents a bushel.

34. Rye-3215 pounds at 92 cents a bushel.

35. Rye-4621 pounds at 75 cents a bushel.

36. Clover Seed-1984 pounds at \$2.90 a bushel.

Note .- In a few citics produce is bought and sold by the cental of 100 pounds.

37. When wheat is quoted at \$1.20 a bushel, how much is it worth per cental ?

38. When corn is quoted at 90 cents a bushel, how much is it worth per cental ?

39. When barley is quoted at 96 cents a bushel, how much is it worth per cental ?

40. When wheat is quoted at $1.37\frac{1}{2}$ per cental, what is it worth per bushel?

41. When corn is quoted at \$1.10 per cental, what is it worth per bushel ?

42. A produce dealer buys 3360 pounds of wheat in Maxsachusetts at \$1.15 per bushel, and sells it in Connecticut at the same price. How much does he gain ?

43. A produce dealer buys 4480 pounds of oats in Iowa at 63 cents per bushel, and sells the same in Illinois at 60 cents. Does he gain or lose, and how much?

44. A produce dealer buys 5600 pounds of oats in Kentucky at 54 cents, and sells the same in North Carolina at 55 cents. How much d. 3 he gain ?

45. A dealer in corn buys 22,736 pounds in New York State at 72 cents, and sells the same in Ohio at 75 cents. How much does he gain?

46. A dealer in barley buys 27,830 pounds in California at 93 cents, and sells the same in Oregon at \$1. How much does he gain ?

MEASURES.

47. Find the total weight, in pounds, of
Three tons of hay and two tons of straw.
Twenty-four ounces of iron and 32 ounces of lead.
Four stone of oat meal and 3 stone of rice.
A barrel of beef and a barrel of flour.
Three bushels of wheat and 4 bushels of barley.
A cental of oats and a bushel of corn.

48. How many inches are there in $3\frac{1}{2}$ rods?

49. How many inches are there in a chain ?

50. A horse is 151 hands high ; how many inches high is he ?

51. A lake is 1123 fathoms deep ; how many feet deep is it ?

52. How many yards in 24 chains?

53. How many links are there in 110 yards?

54. How many inches are there in three miles ?

55. Find the cost of 20 miles of telephone wire at 35 cents a pound, supposing one pound stretches 80 feet.

56. Find the cost of 4 miles of barbed wire at $\frac{3}{4}$ cents per foot.

57. What will it cost to survey 25 miles of road at 25 cents a - chain ?

58. What is the cost of a cable 921 feet long at 95 cents a yard ?

59. Find the total length, in feet, of

180 rods, 22 yards, 3 miles.
55 inches, 16 hands, 8¹/₂ fathoms.
12 chains, 3 sizes, 150 links.

60. How many square inches are there in a square yard ?

61. How many square feet are there in a square chain ?

62. How many square rods are there in 250 square chains?

63. Find the cost of 15 square yards of canvas at 12 cents a square foot.

is it

ch is

is it

orth

ansat the

va at ents.

ucky ents.

State nuch

ia at does

64. Find the cost of 221¹/₂ yards of cloth at \$1.32 a yard.

65. Find the cost of 18 square feet of gold leaf at $2\frac{1}{2}$ cents a square inch.

66. Find the cost of a square mile of farm land at \$4.25 an acre.

67. What will 3200 square rods of land cost at \$1.25 per square chain ?

68. How many pints of oil in a vessel containing 15 gallons ?

69. A fruit dealer bought 5 bushels of cherries at \$2.50 a bushel, and sold them at 15 cents a quart. Did he gain or lose, and how much ?

70. How many quarts of bern is are there in 12 pails, if each contain $\frac{3}{4}$ of a peck?

71. What is the value of 3426 bushels of potatoes at 42 cents a peck ?

72. A grocer bought a barrel $(31\frac{1}{2} \text{ gallons})$ of syrup for \$7.50. He sold half of it at 18 cents a quart, and the remainder at 22 cents a quart. How much did he gain ?

73. How many weeks are there in the years 1884, 1885, 1886, 1887 and 1888?

74. How many hours are there in 3 weeks ?

75. How many minutes from 7.30 p.m., Monday, until 3.15 a.m., Tuesday.

76. How many minutes from 2.35 p.m., Saturday, until 8.43 a.m., Monday ?

77. How many hours from 1.22 a.m., February 24, 1885, until 9.22 p.m., March 3, 1886 ?

78. How many leap years between 1775 and 1905?

79. A boy bought a gross of penholders for 80 cents, and sold them at 3 cents each. How much did he make ?

80. How many sheets of paper in 3 reams?

CURRENCY.

71

81. A stationer bought 4 reams of foolscap at \$2.75 a ream, and sold half of it at 25 cents a quire and the remainder at the rate of 4 sheets for 5 cents. Find his entire profit.

82. Find the cost of 25 gross of writing-pads at 75 cents a dozen.

II. CURRENCY.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The term legal tender is applied to money which may be legally offered in the payment of debts.

Sterling money is the name applied to the legal currency of Great Britaln.

The unit of this currency is the pound (£) or sovereign, the value of which in dollars and cents is \$4.86.

There are 12 pence (d.) in a shilling (s.) and 20 shillings in a pound.

A crown is one-quarter of a pound, and a guinea is equal to 21 shillings, or \$5.11 In American currency.

The **franc** of France, Belgium, and Switzerland is equal to about 19[§] cents. The **crown** of Norway, Sweden, and Denmark is equal to about 26[§] cents. The **mark** of Germany is equal to about 23[§] cents.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Note .- Do not use pen or pencil.

83. How many five-cent pieces in \$12?

84. How many pence are there in $\pounds 3$?

85. Write the value of an English crown in cents.

86. Write the value of two guineas in dollars and cents.

87. What is the difference in value between two guineas and one eagle ?

88. What is the difference in value between a pound sterling and five dollars?

89. What is the difference in value between four marks and one dollar?

ł.

.25 an

cents a

25 per

llons ?

2.50 a

r lose,

each

cents

\$7.50. at 22

1886,

3.15

8.43

until

sold

90. What is the difference in value between a *franc* and a quarter of a dollar?

91. What is the difference in value between an English and a Danish crown?

92. A boy has three sovereigns, four half-dollars, and five marks. His money is equal to how many cents?

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

Norg.—The following method of reducing shillings and pence to the decimal of a pound is sufficiently accurate for most business purposes :—

Write one-half of the greatest even number of shillings as tenths, and if there be an odd shilling write five hundredths; reduce the pence to farthings, and write their number as thousandths. If the number of farthings is between 12 and 36, add 1 to the thousandths; if between 36 and 48, add 2 to the thousandths.

Illustrative Exercises.

1. Reduce £3 14s. 6d. to the decimal of a pound.

Put down the £3; then divide the 14 by 2, and put down 7; then multiply 6 by 4 and add 1. The result will stand thus: £3.725.

2. Reduce £4 15s. 10d. to the decimal of a pound.

In this exercise one-half of 15 is 7¹/₂, an uneven number. We put it down in the decimal form: .75. Four times 10 are 40; add 2 and we have 42, or .042, which, added to .75, gives .792. The work will stand thus:

£4 15s. 10d. = £4.742 = £4.792.

DIRECTION.—The shillings and pence in the following exercises are to be reduced to the decimal of a pound by the method explained above.

£2 3s.	6d.	100.	£2 :	1s.	11d.	107.	£12	11s.	9d.
£4 6s.	5d.	101.	£3 :	2s.	10d.	108.	£22	12s.	8d.
£8 7s.	4d.	102 .	£4 :	3s.	9d.	109.	£25	13s.	7d.
£9 3s.	5d.	103.	£5 4	4s .	8d.	110.	£24	14s.	6d.
£4 7s.	8d.	104.	£6 (ŏs.	7d.	111.	£23	15s.	7d.
£2 8s.	7d.	105.	£7 (6s.	10d.	112.	£22	16s.	5d.
£3 3s.	9d.	106.	£8 7	īs.	11d.	113.	£31	175.	8d.
	£2 3s. £4 6s. £8 7s. £9 3s. £4 7s. £2 8s. £3 3s.	£2 3s. 6d. £4 6s. 5d. £8 7s. 4d. £9 3s. 5d. £4 7s. 8d. £2 8s. 7d. £3 3s. 9d.	$\pounds 2$ 3s. 6d. 100. $\pounds 4$ 6s. 5d. 101. $\pounds 8$ 7s. 4d. 102. $\pounds 9$ 3s. 5d. 103. $\pounds 4$ 7s. 8d. 104. $\pounds 2$ 8s. 7d. 105. $\pounds 3$ 3s. 9d. 106.	$\pounds 2$ 3s. 6d. 100. $\pounds 2$ $\pounds 4$ 6s. 5d. 101. $\pounds 3$ $\pounds 8$ 7s. 4d. 102. $\pounds 4$ $\pounds 9$ 3s. 5d. 103. $\pounds 5$ $\pounds 4$ 7s. 8d. 104. $\pounds 6$ $\pounds 2$ 8s. 7d. 105. $\pounds 7$ $\pounds 3$ 3s. 9d. 106. $\pounds 8$	£2 3s. 6d.100. £2 1s.£4 6s. 5d.101. £3 2s.£8 7s. 4d.102. £4 3s.£9 3s. 5d.103. £5 4s.£4 7s. 8d.104. £6 5s.£2 8s. 7d.105. £7 6s.£3 3s. 9d.106. £8 7s.	£2 3s. 6d.100. £2 1s. 11d.£4 6s. 5d.101. £3 2s. 10d.£8 7s. 4d.102. £4 3s. 9d.£9 3s. 5d.103. £5 4s. 8d.£4 7s. 8d.104. £6 5s. 7d.£2 8s. 7d.105. £7 6s. 10d.£3 3s. 9d.106. £8 7s. 11d.	£2 3s. 6d.100. £2 1s. 11d.107.£4 6s. 5d.101. £3 2s. 10d.108.£8 7s. 4d.102. £4 3s. 9d.109.£9 3s. 5d.103. £5 4s. 8d.110.£4 7s. 8d.104. £6 5s. 7d.111.£2 8s. 7d.105. £7 6s. 10d.112.£3 3s. 9d.106. £8 7s. 11d.113.	£2 3s. 6d.100. £2 1s. 11d.107. £12£4 6s. 5d.101. £3 2s. 10d.108. £22£8 7s. 4d.102. £4 3s. 9d.109. £25£9 3s. 5d.103. £5 4s. 8d.110. £24£4 7s. 8d.104. £6 5s. 7d.111. £23£2 8s. 7d.105. £7 6s. 10d.112. £22£3 3s. 9d.106. £8 7s. 11d.113. £31	£2 3s. 6d.100. £2 1s. 11d.107. £12 11s.£4 6s. 5d.101. £3 2s. 10d.108. £22 12s.£8 7s. 4d.102. £4 3s. 9d.109. £25 13s.£9 3s. 5d.103. £5 4s. 8d.110. £24 14s.£4 7s. 8d.104. £6 5s. 7d.111. £23 15s.£2 8s. 7d.105. £7 6s. 10d.112. £22 16s.£3 3s. 9d.106. £8 7s. 11d.113. £31 17s.

and a

and a

d five

cimal of

there be d write and 36,

oly 6 by

in the which,

educed

9d. 8d.

7d.

3d.

7d.

őd.

Bd.

CURRENCY.

Norg.—When money is at par value, and fet nearly all practical purposes, the following is the best and shortest method of reducing English money to dollars and cents :—

\$4.00 $.80 = \frac{1}{5}$ of 400. $6\frac{2}{3} = \frac{1}{7}$ of 400. \$4.86 $\frac{2}{3}$ The pound sterling is equal to \$4.86\$. Now, \$0 is $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$00, and 6\$ is $\frac{1}{12}$ of \$00. Then, to multiply by 486\$, multiply by 400, divide the product by 5 and place the quotient under; then divide this quotient by 12, and place the second quotient under the first. Add, and the sum will be the same as though the number were multiplied by 486\$ in the ordinary way.

Illustrative Exercise.

Find the value of £3.725 in dollars and cents.

 $\pm 3.725 \times 4.863$

£3.725 4

5

12

 14.900
 by

 2.980
 and

 .248
 by

Multiply by 4 for the dollars. Then divide this product by 5, which is equivalent to multiplying £3.725 by .80; and dividing 2.98 by 12 is equivalent to multiplying £3.725 by .063, for $\frac{1}{12}$ of $\frac{1}{5}$ of 400 is 63.

\$18.128

DIRECTION.-Find the value of the following sums in dollars and cents :---

114.	£2.643.	119.	£2.213.	124.	£0.432.	129.	£12.219.
115.	£3.425.	120.	£4.421.	125.	£0.569.	130.	£16.190.
116.	£4.216.	121.	£5.563.	126.	£0.982.	131.	£18.263.
117.	£5.319,	122.	£6.428.	127.	£0.846.	132.	£21.508.
118.	£8.214.	123.	£9.365.	128.	£0.912.	133.	£13.009.

134. Find the value in dollars and cents of a P. O. money order for £2 6s. 10d.

135. Find the value in dollars and cents of a P. O. money order for £12 13s. 4d.

136. What is the value in American currency of 800 crowns of . Denmark ?

137. If 5 shillings be worth \$1.22, how much should one receive for an English P. O. money order for £24 11s. 6d.?

138. What is the value in American currency of 330 france of France?

139. What is the difference in value (dollars and cents) between 1200 crowns of Great Britain and 1200 crowns of Sweden ?

140. A New York manufacturer owes an advertising bill of £1 11s. 6d. in London, England. How much will a foreign money order for this sum cost him, supposing the charges to be 50 cents?

141. Find the value in Swiss frances of \$5.80.

142. Find the total value in American currency of the following :--

Three pounds sterling. Twenty-five shillings. One hundred and eight pence. Twenty-three guineas. One hundred marks.

III. WAGES.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

Note. —Wages are usually calculated on a scale of ter hours' labor per day. Six days are considered one week.

143. A man earns \$2.25 a day. How much will he earn in a month of August the first day of which is Wednesday?

144. A man earns \$3,35 a day. How much will he earn in a month of March the first day of which is Friday?

145. A man working $11\frac{1}{2}$ hours a day at 30 cents an hour will - earn how much in a week?

146. How much will a boy earn in a week who earns 18 cents an hour and works $12\frac{1}{2}$ hours a day?

147. Thirty-five cents an hour is equivalent to how much a month (four weeks)?

ics of

) beden ? ill of reign to be

llow-

n in 1 in

Six

will

ents

h a

WAGES.

148. A farmer hi.ed a man on March 15, at \$24 a month. The man left on November 31 following. How much did he earn?

149. A mechanic's wages are \$2.75 a day. On a certain day he began work at 9.30 a.m. and left off at 4 p.m. How much did he earn on that day if he took an hour at noon?

150. A man earning \$1.75 a day works on a certain day from 1 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. How much does he earn on that day?

151. A man earning \$2 a day lost $13\frac{1}{2}$ hours in one week. What were his wages for that week?

152. At \$2.20 a day, how much should a machinist receive for 142½ hours' labor?

153. A foreman receives \$2.90 a day, and 50 cents an hour for overtime. During a certain week he works from 6.30 a.m. until 10.30 p.m. (less 2 hours for meals) each day. What are his wages for that week?

154. A foreman receives \$3 a day, and 60 cents an hour for overtime. He is charged 20 cents for each hour he is absent. His time for a week is as follows: $12\frac{1}{2}$ hrs., 8 hrs., $8\frac{1}{2}$ hrs., 13 hrs., $10\frac{1}{2}$ hrs., and 13 hrs. What should his wages be?

155. A carpenter worked a certain number of days and received \$41.25; if he had worked 21 days more he would have received \$67.50. How many days did he work?

156. A boy commenced work on Tuesday, April 7, 1885, at 60 cents a day. He worked (six days each week) until the evening of September 17th, 1885, except during a sickness which lasted from June 27 until July 8 inclusive. Upon August 3 his wages were increased to 75 cents a day. He paid \$1.26 a week for his board and other expenses. The rest of his money he sent to his mother. How much did he send her?

157. Three brothers, A, B, and C, worked together 12 days. Their wages amounted to \$63.60. C received as much per day as A and B together, and B received 15 cents per day more than A. Find A's daily wages.

Disaction.—In each exercise which follows find the total wages for the week. The number written after the names represent the number of hours that each man worked so a particular day.

158. BUILDER'S TIME SHEET.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat	Kate nar day
John Adair	81	10	10	10	8	5	00 75
Fred Rogers	10	21	5	10	10	4	\$2 60
Thos. Wells	10	10	8	73	31	2	\$2.60
Will Ring	5	10	10	10	21	5	\$2.20
Amos Pudsey	9	7	10	8	10	3	\$2.50
Jas. Anderson	4	10	7	9	4	4	Q0 05

159. CONTRACTOR'S TIME SHEET.

Wm Eston	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat.	Rate per day.
Dala Ga	92	103	10	10	3	10	\$1.75
Robt. Gilray	81	10	10	$2\frac{1}{2}$	10	10	\$2.00
R. Ball	7	10	6	3	10	9	\$1 60
James Reid	$6\frac{1}{2}$	3 <u>1</u>	9	8	4	10	\$1.40
Thos. Watt	$2\frac{1}{2}$	3	4	5	6	7	\$1.25
Jas. Courtney	8	10	10	9	7	4	\$1 75

160. MANUFACTURER'S TIME SHEET.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur	Fri	Sat	Rate
J. Parker	12	12	12	131	ß.	Sat.	per day.
R. Fisher	10	10	10	102	U	U	\$2.10
The D.	10	10	10	4	5	3	\$2.20
Thos. Brown	2	16	8	6	9	41	\$2.00
James Welch	$5\frac{1}{2}$	6	3	10	10	10	\$2.50
H. Cooper	9	10	10	9 1	12	10	\$2 25
T. Wilson	7	9	8^{3}_{4}	10	10	7	\$2.50
161. MILLER'S	Гіме	SHEET.					<i>"</i> ·
1	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat	Rate
R. Kelley	10	12	11	101	13	5	\$1 85
J. Watson	16	$12\frac{1}{2}$	71	8	4	6	\$1 15
M. Brier	10	10	10	31	6	7	\$1 40
F. King	$10\frac{1}{2}$	15	$3\frac{1}{2}$	43	8	8	\$1.25
J. Looce	18	6	12	31	10	10	\$1.15

76

ĺ

DIRECTION. - In the two exercises which follow deduct 10 cents an hour for lost time, and allow 40 cents an hour for overtime.

WAGES.

162. PRINTER'S TIME SHEET.

e week.

ch man

Rate sr day. 2.75 2.60 2.60 2.20 2.50 2.25

Late r day. 1.75 2.00 1.60 1.40 1.25 1.75

ate day.

.10 .20 .00 .50 .25 .50

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat.	per day.
R. Miln	10	12	4	$3\frac{1}{2}$	6	8	\$3.00
J. Smith	8	10	5	4	$12\frac{1}{2}$	5	\$2.75
C. Woods	7	10	61	6	13	6	\$2.50
W. Sim	10	0	71	10	14	4	\$2.50
J. Mortimer	$12\frac{1}{2}$	0	10	12	$13\frac{1}{2}$	3	\$2.40
E. Casweil	5	11	10	10	10	8	\$2:25

163. FOUNDRY TIME SHEET.

	Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat.	Rate per day.
R. Hood	. 10	8	10	$14\frac{1}{2}$	10	4	\$2.15
K. Hall	. 12	$9\frac{1}{2}$	10	81	10	4	\$3.10
R. Bell	. 12	8	10	9	10	5	\$1.75
S. Root	. 10	8	10	10	10	4	\$2.00
C. Blackhall	. 9	10	6	9	10	5	\$2.50

DIRECTION.-In the two exercises which follow consider eight nours' labor a full day.

164. FACTORY TIME SHEET.

		Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur.	Fri.	Sat.	per day.
J.	Seymour	7	8	8	71	6	5	90c.
T.	Wyndham	7	8	8	6	6	5	85c.
s.	Marshall	$7\frac{1}{2}$	8	81	4	8	4	90c.
E.	Thornton	7	8	8	3	8 1	5	75c.
R.	Mønwell	6	8	8	2	9	5	650

165. CABINETMAKER'S TIME SHEET.

		Mon.	Tues.	Wed.	Thur,	Fri.	Sat.	Rate per day.
F.	Allan	8	8	8	8	8	8	\$1.15
. E.	Smith	7	71/2	7	$7\frac{1}{2}$	7	8	\$1.40
T.	Brown	6	7	6	6	5	6	\$1.80
K.	Faddis	2	$8\frac{1}{2}$	9	9	71	5	\$1.75
J:	Coulter	8	6	7	5	8	4	\$1.50

IV. BILLS AND ACCOUNTS.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A bill or an account is a detailed statement of merchandles sold, or of services rendered.

A person who owes money, goods, or services, is called a **debtor**; and the person to whom the money, goods, or services are due, is called a **creditor**.

A bill should state the names of the buyer and seller, the place and thue of the transaction, and any special terms agreed upon by the parties.

A bill is receipted when the words "Received Payment," or "Pald," are written at the bottom, and the creditor, or some one acting for him, affixes his name.

After an *itemized* bill has been rendered and not paid, the creditor does not usually make out a second bill complete, but simply the form of a bill with the words "To Merchandise," "To Labor," or "To Account rendered," and the total amount. This incomplete form is termed a **statement**.

If goods at a sold on *credit* after an itemized bill of a previous purchase has $b \otimes n$ rendered, the new bill will have the words "To old Account," or "To Account rendered," at the top; that is, if nothing has been paid.

Goods are sold on account, or on credit, when they are not paid for when delivered.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

166.

Transactions.

Aug. 20, 1885. The Cne Price Store, Collingwood. Richard Ball buys of C. E. Brown & Co., on account, 26 yds. Silk at 1.45; 4 yds. Lining at 15c.; $2\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Lining at 20c.; 4 yds. Muslin at 11c.; 2 doz. Buttons at 25c.; 12 yds. Flannel at 38c.; 5 yds. Cotton at 14c.; 2 pair Kid Gloves at 1.25; $3\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Ribbon at 42c.; 1 Silk Handkerchief, 1.45; $6\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Embroidery at 36c.

Oct. 15, 1885. Richard Ball buys of C. E. Brown & Co., on account, 15 yds. Black Cloth at \$2.10; 5 yds. Tweed at \$1.85.

Nov. 13, 1885. Richard Ball pays C. E. Brown & Co., on account, cash, \$45.25.

Dec. 15, 1885. Richard Ball pays C. E. Brown & Co., cash, \$48.26 to belance account.

BILLS AND ACCOUNTS.

Jugils' Nork.

Take out and render an itemized bill, August 31. Render a statement on September 30. Make out the account to be rendered October 31. Credit this last bill with the amount paid November 13. Render a statement on November 30.

Receipt this last statement in full, December 15.

[ITEMIZED BILL.]

Collingwood, Aug. 31, 1885.

79

Mr. Richard Ball,

To C. E. Brown & Co., Dr.

Accounts rendered monthly.

Ang	20	96	nda	Q:11-				0	@1 4F	07	-		
mug.	20	20	yus.	SIIK	•	•	•	w	\$1.40	31	10		
		4	yds.	Lining .	•	•		@	.15		60		
		$2\frac{1}{2}$	yds.	Lining .				@	.20		50		
		4	yds.	Muslin .				@	.11		44		
		2	doz.	Buttons .				@	.25		50		
		12	yds.	Flannel .				@	.38	4	56		
		5	yds.	Cotton .				@	.14		70		i
		2	pair	Kid Glove	8		•	@	1.25	2	50		
		$3\frac{1}{2}$	yds.	Ribbon .				@	.42	1	47		
		1	\mathbf{Silk}	Handkerel	hief			@		1	45		
		$6\frac{1}{2}$	yds.	Embreider	ry	•	•	@	.36	2	34		
												52	76

[STATEMENT.]

COLLINGWOOD, Sept. 30, 1885.

I

Mr. Richard Ball,

To C. E. Brown & Co., Br.

Accounts rendered monthly.

	To Account	rendered Aug. 31.	•	52	76
1				1	1

rvices

e per-

of the

ritten s not h the

total boon

when

ard t at ds. Sc.; ds.

o., at

ģ

on

h,

[STATEMENT AND BILL.]

Collingwood, Oct. 31, 1885.

Mr. Richard Ball,

To C. E. Brown & Cc., Dr.

Accounts rendered monthly.

		To Account rendered Sept. 30			52	76
Net.	15	15 yds. Black Cloth @ \$2.10 5 yds. Tweed @ 1.85	31 9	50 25		
					40	75
		Received cash, \$45.25. C. E. BROWN & CO.			93	51

[STATEMENT.]

COLLINGWOOD, Nov. 30, 1885.

Mr. Richard Ball,

To C. E. Brown & Co., Dr.

Accounts rendered monthly.

To Balance of Account	48 26
Received payment in full. C. E. BROWN & CO.,	
per B. K.	

NOTE.—When a clerk receipts a bill lt is customary and necessary to write his initials under the name of the creditor, or to write his own name, and directly underneatt his own name that of his employer, preceded by the word for; as,

Received eash, \$45.25.

JAMES ALLAN, for C. E. Brown & Co.

BILLS AND ACCOUNTS.

Transactions.

167.

March 15, 1886. The District Exchange, Jamestown. Robert Walker buys of T. Myers & Co., on account, 22 lbs. Sugar at 11c.; 12 lbs. Butter at 23c.; 18 lbs. Chouse at 19c.; $14\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Tea at 55c.; $15\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Dried Apples at $\delta_{\mathbb{C}}$: $7\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Currants at Sc.; 17 lbs. Biscuits at 13c.

April 2, 1886. Robert Walker pays his account in full.

Pupil's Work.

Render an itemized bill, March 31. Receipt the bill in full, April 2.

Transactions.

168. un Cash S

April 10, 1886. Cheap Cash Store, Williamsburg. John Hopkins buys of Alfred Hunt, on account, 13 yds. Silk at \$1.95; 42½ yds. Sheeting at 18c.; 32 yds. Muslin at 12½c.; 6 pair Kid Gloves at \$1.37; 42 yds. Print at $9\frac{1}{2}$ c.; $22\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Drilling at 14c.

May 12, 1886. John Hopkins pays his account in full.

Pupil's Work.

Transactions.

Render an itemized bill, April 30. Receipt the bill in full, May 12.

169.

May 3, 1886. The Leading Grocery and Provision Store, Thomasville. Marshall Watson buys of C. E. Charters & Co., on account, 18 lbs. Sugar at 9c.; 12 lbs. Butter at 28c.; $3\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Tea at 70c.; $8\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Coffee at 34c.; 14 lbs. Biscuits at 11c.; 16 lbs. Soap at 14c.; $3\frac{1}{2}$ lbs. Cheese at 18c.; $1\frac{1}{2}$ doz. Eggs at 22c.

June 25, 1886. Marshall Watson pays his account in full.

Pupil's Work.

F

Render an itemized bill, May 31. Receipt the bill in full, June 25.

Qr.

2 76

3 51

]r.

26 ite his

rectly s,

D.

81

Transactions.

170.

January 3, 1887. The Golden Lion, Niagara. Thomas Gibson buys of James Currie & Son, on account, 25 yds. Flannel at 36c.; 2 doz. Silk Buttons at 22c.; 13 yds. Muslin at 14c.; 16 yds. Sheeting at $18\frac{1}{2}$ c.; 2 Boys' Suits, \$9.50 and \$12.; 1 Overcoat, \$13.50; 2 Silk Ties at 75c.; $\frac{1}{2}$ doz. Handkerchiefs at 16c. each; $14\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Velvet at \$2.40; 1 Fur Cap, \$2.75.

January 22, 1887. Thomas Gibson buys of James Currie & Son, on account, 35 yds. Tweed at \$1.20; 14 yds. Drilling at 12¹/₂c.

March 5, 1887. Thomas Gibson pays his account in full.

Pupil's Work.

Render an itemized bill, January 31. Render a statement, February 28. Receipt the statement in full, March 5.

171.

Transactions.

March 15, 1887. The Oak Hall Clothing Store, Topeka. Mrs. J. Adair buys of T. Crompton & Co., on account, 16 yds. Silk at \$3.25; 6 pair Hose at $62\frac{1}{2}c.$; 2 pair Gloves at \$1.35; 13 $\frac{1}{2}$ yds. Cambric at 12c.; 1 Umbrella, \$3.45.

March 22, 1887. Mrs. J. Adair buys of T. Crompton & Co., on account, 5 Handkerchiefs at 27¹/₅c.; 2 doz. Buttons at 37¹/₅c.

April 12, 1887. Mrs. J. Adair buys of T. Crompton & Co., on account, 15 yds. Ribbon at 26c.; 13 yds. Silk Velvet at \$3.25.

June 7, 1887. Mrs. J. Adair pays her account in full.

Pupil's Work.

Render an itemized bill, March 31. Render a statement and new bill, April 30. Render a statement, May 31. Receipt the last statement, June 7.

BILLS AND ACCOUNTS.

83

Transactions.

172.

July 5, 1886. The Central Book Depot, Whitby. W. H. Huston buys of J. S. Robertson & Bros., on account, 3 quires Foolscap at 27c.; $5\frac{1}{2}$ quires Letter at 22c.; 1 McLellan's Algebra, \$1.75; 1 set Dickens, 12 vols., \$22.50; 3 Ancient Classics at 65c.

July 18, 1886. W. H. Huston buys of J. S. Robertson & Bros., on account, 15 Irving Library at 45c.; 6 quires Foolscap at $23\frac{1}{2}c$; 1 doz. Lead Pencils at 3c. each.

August 5, 1886. W. H. Huston buys of J. S. Robertson & Bros., on account, 3 Maury's Physical Geography at \$1.65.

August 10, 1886. W. H. Huston pays \$10 to apply on account.

September 12, 1886. W. H. Huston buys of J. S. Robertson & Bros., on account, 12 Drawing Books at 12½c.

October 14, 1886. W. H. Huston pays his account in full.

Pupil's Work.

Transactions.

Render an itemized account, July 31. Render a statement, bill, etc., August 31. Render a statement and bill, September 30. Receipt this last statement in full, October 14.

173.

November 3, 1886. John Wallace buys of the Keewatin Lumber Co., on account, 1350 ft. Pine at \$32.50 per M.; 6250 ft. Hendock at \$24.50 per M.; 3650 Cedar Posts at \$9.50 per C.

November 15, 1886. John Wallace buys of the Keewatin Lumber Co., on account, 4500 Shingles at \$4.40 per M_: 12,250 Hence Pickets at \$6.80 per M.

December 13, 1886. John Wallace pays \$122 on his account.

January 14, 1887. John Wallace pays \$35 on his account. February 12, 1887. John Wallace pays the balance of his account in full.

omas Flan-14c.; 2.; 1 hiefs . rie & lling

11.

eka. yds. .35 ;

Co., 37<u>1</u>c. Co.,

elvet

Pupil's Work.

Render an itemized account, November 30. Render a *credit* statement, December 31. Render a *credit* statement, January 31. Receipt this last statement in full, February 12.

174.

EXERCISE 167.—Robert Walker encloses the amount of his account in a letter to T. Myers & Co. Write the letter. Date, April 2.

EXERCISE 169.—Pupil, as C. E. Charters & Co's clerk. Write a short note to Marshall Watson, requesting a settlement of his account. Date, June 20.

EXERCISE 170.—Write a short note at the bottom of the statement of February 28, requesting payment.

EXERCISE 172.—Pupil, as W. H. Huston. Write a letter to J. S. Robertson & Bros., ordering the books, etc., named in the transaction of July 5.

EXERCISE 172.—Pupil, as J. S. Robertson & Bros' clerk. Answer the letter received from W. H ton, July 5.

EXERCISE 173.—Write a letter to the Wallace, enclosing statement of his account, and requesting on immediate settlement. Date, February 10.

V. REVIEW.

LOSS AND GAIN EXERCISES.

175. A lumber dealer bought 32,450 feet of lumber at \$22 per M., and sold 11,750 feet at \$34 per M., and the remainder at \$28 per M. How much did he gain ?

176. A grocer bought 100 loads of potatoes, of 30 bushels each, at $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents a bushel. Allowing $7\frac{1}{2}$ bushels for waste, how much will he gain by retailing the rest at 15 cents a peck ?

177. A milk dealer buys 27 ten-gallon cans of milk each day at \$1.75 a can. He keeps three delivery wagons at an expense of \$1.75 each a day, and sells the milk at 7 cents a quart. Find his gain in ten weeks, including Sundays.

178. A fruit dealer bought 5 barrels of apples at \$2.75 a barrel. The 5 barrels contained 4956 apples. He sold them at the rate of 7 for 5 cents. How much did he gain ?

179. A farmer bought 13 head of young cattle for \$215. He kept them for six months at an expense of \$3 a head per month, and then sold them at \$32 each. Did he gain or lose, and hew much ?

180. Three brothers chopped wood during 20 weeks of a certain winter. They averaged 7 cords a day. Their board cost \$2.50 a week each. They sold the wood at \$1.75 a cord. How much did each make ?

181. A man bought a house and lot for \$7842. He built an addition to the house at a cost of \$1643. The house was destroyed by fire, and he received insurance \$3520. He then sold the lot for \$5215. How much did he lose ?

182. A well digger agreed to dig a well upon the following terms: 40 cents for the first foot, 45 cents for the second, 50 cents for the third, 55 cents for the fourth, and so on to any depth. He paid a man \$1 a day to assist him. If it took him six days to dig the well 22 feet deep, and he paid 40 cents a day for board, how much did he make ?

183. A merchant had goods on hand January 1, 1885, valued at \$12,324. He bought goods at a cost of \$7623, and sold goods to the amount of \$14,265 during the year. On December 31, 1885, his stock book showed goods on hand valued at \$8937. How much did he gain during the year?

184. Two farmers hired a steam thrasher for six months at 322 a month. They were employed during 127 days of that time, and their expenses were \$3.25 a day. They thrashed 63,246 bushels of grain, for which they received $3\frac{1}{2}$ cents a bushel. How much did they make during the six months?

his ate,

rite his

ate-

r to the

erk.

sing ttle-

per r at

hels how

MISCELLANEOUS EXERCISES.

185. Find the cost of 9600 sheets of paper at \$4.20 a ream.

186. How many hours from 10.15 a.m., Tuesday, until 7.45 p.m., Sunday?

187. One peck of clover seed will sow an acre. What will it cost to sow 8 acres, if the seed costs 11 cents a pound?

188. A train passes a telegraph pole every 4 seconds. If the poles are 66 yards apart, how many miles an hour is the train going?

189. At 5 cents a quart, how much will a bushel of chestmuts cost?

190. If a man's income is 5 cents a minute, what will be his total income during the three summer months?

191. A schoolboy is 5 minutes late every day. How much time does he lose in 112 days?

192. A clock was 15 minutes fast at **11.30** a.m. on Monday. It lost time gradually, and was 10 minutes slow at 3.15 p.m. on Tuesday. At what time was it exactly right?

193. A race course measures 1 fur. 8 rods 2 yds. 2 ft. How often must one go around it to travel 5 miles?

194. How many reams of paper are there in an edition of 6000 copies of a book of 160 pages, each sheet of the paper being folded four times?

195. A dealer bought 5 gross of steel pens at \$1.50 a gross, and sold them at 15 cents a dozen. How much did he gain?

196. If one quart of nuts cost 11 cents, how many bushels can be bought for \$13.20?

197. A clock which gains 15 minutes in every 15 hours is right at noon on Monday. When will it again be right?

198. How much did I gain on 40 bushels of berries, bought at \$4 a bushel, and sold at 15 cents a quart?

199. Find the value of the rails in a straight fence 40 rods long, each rail being 11 feet long, and the fence 6 rails high, at \$22.50 per M.

200. A stationer buys 3 gross of lead pencils at \$3.75 a gross, and retails them at 7 cents each. How much does he gain on the lot?

201. Find the cost of 26,300 pounds of hay at \$14.50 a ton.

202. Water expands $\frac{1}{10}$ in freezing, and one cubic foot of water weighs 1000 ounces. Find the weight in tons of the ice 9 inches deep formed on a pond having an area of 3 acres.

203. There are 50 pupils in a room 36 feet long, 30 feet wide, and 15 feet high. How many cubic yards of air are there for each pupil?

204. How many half-pint bottles can be filled from a tengallon can of milk?

205. A man was born February 29, 1824, and died March 18, 1885. How many birthdays had he?

206. A horse requires three gallons of oats a day. When oats are worth 50 cents a bushel what will it cost to feed him during the months of December and January?

207. Show that if the price in pounds of laying a mile of rails be multiplied by 2 and divided by 11 the result is the price in farthings of laying a foot of rails.

208. How many bullets, each weighing $\frac{1}{2}$ oz., can be moulded from 2 pounds 4 onnees of lead?

209. A man bought 34,750 pounds of hay at \$15 a ton, and sold the same at 85 cents a hundredweight. How much did he gain?

210. If one bushel of wheat makes 40 pounds of flour, how many barrels of flour, containing 196 pounds each, ought a grain merchant to receive from 4263 bushels of wheat?

211. A drover bought 29 head of cattle for \$928, and sold them for \$1015. How much did he gain on each?

m. 7.45

ill it

f the train

tnuts

be his

nnch

nday. n. on

How

6000 being

gross, n ?

ls can

right

ght at

212. The wages of 20 men for 4 days is \$84. What is a man's daily wages ?

213. Divide \$1976 among 15 persons, giving to four of them a double portion.

214. Twenty men can do a piece of work in 40 days. If 5 men assist them how long will it take?

215. A company of 45 men have victuals for 30 days. How many men must leave that the provisions may last 50 days?

216. Two trains start at the same time and place, and go in the same direction; the first goes 35 and the second 28 miles an hour. At the end of 25 hours the first begins to go in the opposite direction. In how many hours from the time of starting will they meet?

217. A man who can row 4 miles an hour in still water can row 2 miles down stream in 20 minutes. How long will it take him to row 2 miles up stream?

218. How many times can a vessel containing $3\frac{1}{2}$ quarts be filled from a barrel containing 105 gallons?

219. What number is that to which if $\frac{2}{3}$ of itself be added the sum will equal 77?

220. The H. C. F. of two numbers is 39, and their L. C. M. is 190905. One of the numbers is 2145; find the other.

221. Find the cost of 298,400 shingles at \$4.80 per M.

222. How many thirty-inch steps will a soldier take in marching $5\frac{1}{4}$ miles ?

223. Find the value of 427 pounds of oat meal at 47 cents ϑ stone.

224. A man has 2568 English crowns. How many Danish coins of the same name should he receive for them ?

225. A horse and carriage are valued at \$350; $\frac{1}{3}$ of the value of the horse is equal to $\frac{1}{4}$ of the value of the carriage; find the value of each.

89

226. If 5s. be equal to \$1.22, find the value of £3 14s. 6d. in American currency.

227. The numerators of two fractions are 5 and 11, and $\frac{1}{2}$ the sum of the fractions is equal to $\frac{3}{4}$ of $\frac{1}{3}$. What are the fractions?

228. Find the value of 21 baskets of strawberries, each containing 14 quarts, at $12\frac{1}{2}$ cents a quart.

229. Find the value of 3 dressed hogs, weighing respectively $289\frac{1}{2}$ pounds, $211\frac{1}{2}$ pounds, and 234 pounds, at \$7.25 a hundred-weight.

230. A boat moves 17 feet 6 inches at each stroke. How far in miles will it move in 12,000 strokes?

231. How many days of 12 hours each will a man take to count a million gold dollars at the rate of 80 a minute?

232. If a grocer use a 15 ounce instead of a pound weight, how much does he cheat a customer who buys what he supposes to be 12 pounds of tea at 75 cents a pound?

233. How much must be paid in Canada for 85 hundredweight of oats at 75 cents a bushel?

234. If 5 square miles of land be equally divided among 48 settlers, how many acres will each have ?

235. How many carats fine is a ring which is composed of $\frac{5}{8}$ pure gold ?

236. A bought apples at the rate of 6 for 5 cents, and B bought oranges at the rate of 3 for 4 cents. How many oranges should B give A for 48 apples?

237. If you buy a pound of tea at 65 cents, 3 dozen eggs at 13 cents, 2 pounds of soda at 11 cents, 7 yards of ribbon at 24 cents, and a hat at \$1.25, and the merchant threws off 10 cents from every dollar's worth bought, how much change should you get out of a \$5 bill?

238. There are two numbers whose difference is 245, and whose sum is 965; find their product.

n's na

5

ЭW

in les he rt-

an ke

be

he

M.

h-

sh

ue he

239. If telegraph poles cost 25 cents each, and wire $\frac{3}{4}$ of a cent a yard, how much will the material cost for 3 miles of telegraph line, consisting of 3 wires, the poles being 66 yards apart?

240. A locomotive burns a ton of coal while going 75 miles, and moves forward 10 yards every time the driving wheels turn round. How many times does the driving wheel revolve for every pound of coal burned?

241. Wheat has been bought at 85 cents a bushel. At what price per cental must it be sold so that after paying freight charges of 8 cents a bushel the gain may be $\frac{1}{3}$ of the entire cost?

242. A grain merchant shipped 8500 bushels of barley at a cost of 6 cents a bushel; he sold it at 75 cents, and gained \$340 on the lot. How much did he pay for each bushel?

243. There are 36 men employed on a job, all receiving the same wages; at the end of 42 days they receive \$3402. What does each man receive per day?

244. In what time will a boy, at 75 cents a day, earn as much as a man earns in 90 days at \$2.75 a day ?

245. A number of cattle that cost \$9792 were sold for \$12,096, by which a profit of \$12 a head was made. How many head of cattle were there?

246. Find the cost of 9846 cedar rails at \$3.25 a hundred.

247. When a train is moving at the rate of 24 miles an hour, how long will it take it to pass 24 telegraph poles, the distance between the poles being 66 yards?

248. A merchant pays \$8.96 for butter at 24 cents a pound, but in buying, uses a weight of $16\frac{1}{2}$ ounces instead of a pound. In selling, he uses a weight $\frac{1}{4}$ of an ounce less than a pound. How much *dishonest* profit does he make by retailing the butter at 27 cents a pound?

249. A drover bought 247 sheep at \$4.75 each, and 42 more at \$4.40 each. Eight of them died, and he sold the rest at \$6 each. How much did he gain ?

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

I. SURFACE MEASUREMENT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

+A surface has length and breadth without thickness.

A rectangle is a plane figure bounded by four straight lines, and having four right angles.

A rectangle is called a square when all its sides are equal.

The area of a reetangle is expressed by the product of the length and the breadth.

Before multiplying, it is necessary that both dimensions be expressed in units of the same denomination.

A triangle is a plane figure bounded by three straight lines.

The United States and Canadian **public lands** are divided, by lines running north and south, according to the true meridian, and by others crossing them at right angles, into **townships** six miles square.

Townships are sub-divided into sections, containing 640 acres, or one square mile each.

Sections are subdivided into half-sections, quarter-sections and half-quarter-sections.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

1. How many square inches in the surface of a table 9 feet by $4\frac{1}{2}$ feet ?

2. How many square yards in a blackboard 32 feet long by $4\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide?

3. How many square rods in a garden 231 feet long by 165 feet wide ?

4. Find the cost of a piece of oil cloth 24 feet long by 15 feet 9 inches wide at 85 cents a square yard.

5. What will it cost to cement a cellar bottom 36 feet long by 23 feet 7 inches wide at 96 cents a square yard?

ent iph

les, urn for

hat ght st ?

t a 340

the hat

96, of

ıch

ur, nce

nd, nd. nd. ter

e at ch.







FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

6. Find the cost of painting a blackboard 23 feet long by 2 feet 3 inches wide at 48 cents a square yard.

7. What was the total cost of paving a street 1 mile long and $1\frac{1}{2}$ chains wide at 45 cents a square foot?

8. A rectangular garden is 48 yards long by 48 feet wide; what is its area in square yards?

9. How many yards of satin, $\frac{3}{4}$ yard wide, will it take to line $22\frac{1}{2}$ yards of velvet $\frac{1}{2}$ yard wide?

10. A certain city is 5 miles square. Its population is 211,200. How many square feet of land are there to each person?

DIRECTION.-The dimensions of rectangular pieces of ground are given, and the area of each in acres is to be found.

8	11.	36	rods	by	4 0	rods.	
	10	25	,		~~		

12. 25 rods by 60 rods.

13. 80 rods by 36 rods.

14. 16 rods by 10 rods.

15. 48 rods by 50 rods.

- 9 21. 24 chains by 10 chains.
 22. 36 chains by 25 chains.
 23. 96 chains by 55 chains.
 24. 50 chains by 49 chains.
 25. 39 chains by 76 chains.
 26. 75 chains by 96 chains.
 27. 25 chains by 19 chains.
 28. 27 chains by 65 chains.
 29. 63 chains by 35 chains.
 30. 48 chains by 95 chains.
- 16. 75 rods by 32 rods.
 17. 84 rods by 20 rods.
 18. 96 rods by 60 rods.
 19. 38 rods by 80 rods.
- 20. 70 rods by 96 rods.
- 31. 28 rods by 10 chains.
 32. 32 rods by 15 chains.
 33. 64 rods by 25 chains.
 34. 40 rods by 36 chains.
 35. 50 rods by 48 chains.
 36. 96 rods by 240 chains.
 - 37. 215 rods by 50 chains.
 - 38. 240 rods by 96 chains.
 - 39. 144 rods by 100 chains.
 - 40. 100 rods by 144 chains.

SURFACE MEASUREMENT.

g by 2 ng and

wide;

o line

1,200.

nd the

3

41. How many square yards are there in the walls of a room 24 feet long, 15 feet wide, and 14 feet high?

42. If a rectangular field which contains 16 acres is 40 rods wide, how long is it?

43. A field containing 18 acres is 80 rods long. Find the cost of fencing it at \$1.25 a rod.

44. A rectangular field containing 27 acres is 30 rods wide. What will it cost to fence it at 5 cents a yard?

45. The perimeter of a rectangle is 400 feet. The difference between the length and breadth is 40 feet. Find the area.

46. How many acres of land in a half-quarter-section?

47. What are the dimensions in rods of a quarter-section of land?

48. Find the value of a township of land at the rate of \$120 for each half-section.

49. How many quarter-sections in a piece of land 16 miles long by 4 miles wide?

50. What is the value of the land in a piece of country 42 miles square at \$1.50 an acre?

II. SOLID MEASUREMENT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A solid has length, breadth, and thickness, or height.

A rectangular solid is a body bounded by six rectangular surfaces.

If all the surfaces or faces of a rectangular solid are equal, it is called a cube.

The **volume** of a rectangular solid is expressed by the product of the length, breadth, and height.

The three given dimensions must be expressed in the units of the same denomination.

A cubic yard of earth is called a load.

The standard cordwood pile is 8 feet long, 4 feet high, and 4 feet wide, and hence contains $8 \times 4 \times 4$, or 128 cubic feet.

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

51. How many cubic inches in a cube, one edge of which is 3. feet ?.

52. What is the volume of a solid 6 feet 4 inches long, 4 feet 6 inches wide, and 8 feet high ?,

53. How many cubic yards of earth must be removed in diggang a cellar 12 feet long, 10 feet wide, and $5\frac{2}{5}$ feet deep?

54. A room is 25 feet long, 24 feet wide, and 18 feet 6 inches high. How many cubic feet of air does it contain?

55. What will it cost to dig a cellar 60 feet long, 48 feet wide, and 7 feet 4 inches deep, at 60 cents a load?

56. If a block of soap 3 inches long, 2 inches wide, and $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick weighs 8 bunces, what will be the weight in pounds of a cubical block of soap, each dimension of which is 3 feet?

57. How many cubic inches in 3 cords of wood?

58. How many cubic-inch blocks will it take to fill a mortise 14 inches long, 3 inches wide, and 6 inches deep?

59. How many cubic feet in a block of stone 15 feet long, 13 feet wide, and 14 feet thick?

60. How many cords of wood in a pile 12 feet long, 12 feet high, and 8 feet wide?

61. Find the value of a pile of tan-bark 120 feet long, 44 feet wide, and 16 feet high, at \$2.25 a cord.

62. Find the value of a pile of wood 242 feet long, 28 feet wide, and 12 feet high, at \$3.75 a cord.

63. A sleigh upon which four-foot wood is piled is 10 feet long. How high should the wood be piled to make two cords?

64. What should be the length of a cord of five-foot wood, 4 feet high?

65. What should be the length of a cord of three-foot wood, 6 feet high? 4 feet high?

LUMBER MEASUREMENT.

66. A cord of $2\frac{1}{2}$ -foot wood is 6 feet long; how high is it?

67. Find the cost of a block of marble $6\frac{1}{2}$ feet long, 3 feet wide, and 2 feet 3 inches thick, at \$2.25 a cubic foot?

68. How many cut stones, each 8 inches by 4 inches by 5 inches, will it take to construct a wall one-half a mile long, 10 feet thick, and 27 feet high ?

69. How many cords of wood can be piled into a woodshed 20 feet long, 18 feet wide, and 16 feet high?

Nore .--- A cubic foot of water weighs 1000 ounces.

 \times

70. What weight of water will a rectangular eistern contain, the length being 5 feet, the breadth $3\frac{1}{2}$ feet, and the depth 12 feet?

III. LUMBER MEASUREMENT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Lumber, as the term is used here, includes boards, plank, scantling, joists, and sawed timber.

A board foot is the unit of measurement. It is one foot long, one foot wide, and one inch thick.

All lumber less than one inch in thickness is considered inch lumber in measuring.

To find the number of board feet, or feet of lumber in a board or plank, multiply the length in feet by the width and thickness in inches, and divide the product by 12.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

71. Find the number of board feet in a board-

1. 12 feet long, 12 inches wide, 1 inch thick.

- 2. 12 feet long, 10 inches wide, 1 inch thick.
- 3. 13 feet long, 18 inches wide, 1 inch thick.
- 4. 14 feet long, 7 inches wide, 1 inch thick.

72. Find the number of board feet in a plank-

- 1. 12 feet long, 18 inches wide, $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.
- 2. 12 feet long, 14 inches wide, $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.
- 3. 13 feet long, 16 inches wide, 14 inches thick.
- 4. 16 feet long, 13 inches wide, 14 inches thick.

1 is 3.

feet

dig-

nches

wide,

d 1] unds ;?

rtise

g, 13

feet

feet

feet

ong.

d, 4

d, 6

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

96

73. Find the number of board feet in a plank-

1. 19 feet long, 12¹/₂ inches wide, 2 inches thick.

2. 18 feet long, 131 inches wide, 3 inches thick.

3. 15 feet long, $14\frac{1}{2}$ inches wide, 2 inches thick.

4. 16 feet long, 151 inches wide, 2 inches thick.

74. Find the number of board feet in a plank-

1. $9\frac{1}{2}$ feet long, 18 inches wide, $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

2. $8\frac{1}{2}$ feet long, 16 inches wide, $3\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

3. 7 feet long, 15 inches wide, $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

4. 9 feet long, 9 inches wide, $3\frac{1}{4}$ inches thick.

75. Find the number of board feet in a scantling-

1. 10 feet long, 3 inches wide, $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

2. 14 feet long, 4 inches wide, 31 inches thick.

3. 16 feet long, 6 inches wide, $4\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

4. 20 feet long, 5 inches wide, $3\frac{3}{4}$ inches thick.

76. At \$18 per thousand find the total cost of

2 boards 12 feet long, 2 feet wide, 1 inch thick.

3 boards 14 feet long, $1\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide, $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick.

4 boards 15 feet long, $2\frac{1}{4}$ feet wide, $1\frac{1}{4}$ inches thick.

77. At \$20 per thousand find the total cost of

3 planks 12 feet long, 14 inches wide, 2 inches thick.

5 planks 18 feet long, 15 inches wide, 3 inches thick.

7 planks 8 feet long, 12 inches wide, 2 inches thick.

78. At 77.50 per thousand find the total cost of

5 scantlings 18 feet long, 4 inches wide, 3 inches thick.

9 scantlings 14 feet long, 5 inches wide, 4 inches thick.

8 scantlings 12 feet long, 6 inches wide, 5 inches thick.

79. How many feet of lumber in a stick of timber 36 feet long and 18 inches square?

80. How many feet of lumber in a floor 18 feet long by 15 feet wide, and 1 inch thick?

81. How many feet of lumber in a stick of timber 28 feet long and 20 inches square?

LUMBER MEASUREMENT.

82. How many feet of lumber in a sidewalk 100 yards long, 6 feet wide, and $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick?

83. How many feet of lumber in a board fence 40 rods long, 5 feet high, and 1 inch thick?

84. Find the cost of 2346 feet of lumber at \$37.50 per thousand.

85. Find the cost of 6520 feet of flooring at \$64.25 per thousand.

86. Find the cost of 12 planks each 12 feet long, 12 inches wide, and 3 inches thick, at \$12 per thousand.

87. Find the cost of the lumber for a platform 220 feet long, 132 feet wide, and 2 inches thick, at \$24 per thousand.

88. How many board feet in a plank 14 feet long, 12 inches wide, and $\frac{21}{2}$ inches thick?

89. What is the cost of 468 fence boards 16 feet long and \Im inches wide, at \$16 per thousand.

90. At \$22 per thousand find the cost of the lumber required to enclose a square ten-acre field with a board fence; the boards to be 11 feet long, 6 inches wide, and 1 nich thick, and the fence four boards high.

91. How much inch lumber will be required to cover a walk 4 feet wide around a rectangular garden 300 yards by 250 yards?

92. Find the cost of 26,340 feet of lumber at \$27.50 per thousand.

93. A bridge 132 yards long and 18 feet wide is covered with plank $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick. Find the value of the plank at \$18.50 per thousand.

94. Find the cost of 3 boards, each $\frac{3}{4}$ of an inch thick, 18 feet long, and 14 inches wide, at \$24 per thousand.

95. A plank sidewalk 18 feet wide and 2 inches thick is to be built around a block 5 chains square. What will the lumber cost at \$18 per thousand?

a

k. nick. nick.

ck.

ek.

ek.

k.

k.

k.

k.

k.

hick. hick. hick.

thick. thick. thick. et long

by 15

et long

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

IV. BUILDING AND FURNISHING.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Excavations are estimated by the cubic yard.

Brickwork is usually estimated by the thousand bricks.

The dimensious of an ordinary brick are 8 inches by 4 inches by 2 inches.

For ordinary calculation it is sufficiently accurate to reckon 27 bricks to the cubic foot, laid dry, or 20 bricks laid in mortar.

Stonework is usually estimated by the perch, containing 243 cubic feet.

In estimating material, allowance is made for doors, windows, and corners. In estimating the work, the measure is usually taken on the outside of the walls.

To find the number of perches in a wall, divide the contents in cubio feet by 243. To find the number of common bricks in a wall, multiply the contents in cubic feet by 20.

Plastering and painting are estimated by the square yard. Carpet is usually either 27 inches or 36 inches wide.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

96. Find the cost of excavating a cellar 20 feet square and § feet deep at 90 cents a cubic yard.

97. What will it cost to build a stone wall 990 feet long, 3 feet wide, and 12 feet high, at \$7.50 a perch?

98. How many perches of masonry in a wall 9 feet high and 2 feet thick, enclosing a garden 13 rods long and 9 rods wide (outside measurement)?

99. How many bricks will be required to build a wall 224 feet long, 12 feet high, and 1 foot 6 inches thick?

100. What will it cost to plaster a room 32 feet long, 18 feet wide, and 13 feet high, at 12 cents a square yard, allowing 200 square feet for doors and windows?

101. How many yards of carpet, 27 inches wide, will be required for a hall 11 feet 3 inches wide and 64 feet long?

102. A pile of ordinary bricks is 8 feet 6 inches high, 14 feet long, and 15 feet wide. What is the pile worth at \$12.50 a thousand?

BUILDING AND FURNISHING.

99

103. How many yards of wall paper 2 feet wide will be required for the sides of a hall 72 feet long and 14 feet high?

104. How many bricks laid in mortar will be required for a wall 120 feet long, 18 feet high, and 2 feet thick ?

105. A stone wall contains 2970 cubic feet; find its cost at \$22 a perch.

106. A brick wall contains 2970 cubic feet; find its cost at \$18.50 per thousand bricks.

_____ 107. Find the cost of plastering the walls and ceiling of a church 64 feet long, 48 feet wide, and 21 feet high, at 17 cents a yard, allowing 900 square feet for doors and windows.

108. A parlor 20 feet by 18 feet is carpeted with 36-inch carpet at \$1.20 a yard, surrounded by a carpet border one foot wide at 75 cents a yard. Find the total cost.

109. Two strips of moulding at $12\frac{1}{2}$ cents a foot are placed around a drawing room 24 feet by 16 feet. Find the cost?

110. The floor, walls and ceiling of a room 18 feet long, 16 feet wide, and $12\frac{1}{2}$ feet high, are made of inlaid walnut, oak, and rosewood. Find the cost of the work at \$2.50 a square foot for labor, and \$75 a thousand for lumber, surface measurement.

111. How many shingles, laid 4 inches to the weather, will be required for the roof of a barn each side of which is 32 feet wide and 100 feet long.

Nore.-One thousand shingles, laid 4 inches to the weather, will cover 100 square feet of surface.

112. If one thousand laths cover 70 yards of surface, and 11 pounds of lath nails nail them on, what will it cost to lath the walls and ceiling of a school house 42 feet long, 30 feet wide, and 14 feet high, at \$2 a thousand for laths, 6 cents a pound for nails, and $3\frac{1}{2}$ cents a yard for labor?

113. Find the cost of a piece of oil cloth $22\frac{1}{2}$ feet by $17\frac{1}{2}$ feet at 63 cents a square yard.

114. What will it cost to carpet a room 15 feet 9 inches by 12 feet 6 inches with carpet 27 inches wide at \$1.50 a yard?

۱G.

inches. bricks to the

bic feet. d corners. In the walls. bic feet by 243. ntents in cubic

quare and G

feet long, 3

et high and 9 rods wide

vall 224 feet

ong, 18 feet llowing 200

, will be reng?

high, 14 feet at \$12.50 a

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

V. THE METRIC SYSTEM.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The metric system is a system of weights and measures based upon the decimal notation.

The unit of measure for length is a meter ; and from this are derived the units of surface, volume, and weight.

The standard meter is the length of a bar of very hard metel, carefully preserved at Paris. It is about 39.37 inches in length.

The principal units of measure are, the meter for lengths, the square meter for surfaces, the cubic meter for large volumes, the liter for smaller volumes, and the gram for weights.

LINEAR MEASURS :---

A millimeter= .001 of a meter.A centimeter= .01 of a meter.A meterPrincipal unit.A kilometer= 1000 meters.

MEASURES OF SURFACE :--

A square centimeter= .000i of a square meter.A square meterPrincipal unit.A square dekameter= 100 square meters.A square kilometer= 1,000,000 square meters.

MEASURES OF VOLUME :---

A cubic centimeter = .000001 of a cubic meter. A cubic decimeter = .001 of a cubic meter. A cubic meter Frincipal unit.

MEASURES OF WEIGHT :-

A milligram = .901 of a gram.

A gram Principal unit.

A kilogram = 1000 grams.

A metric ton = 1000 kilograms.

In the measurement of land, a square dekameter is called an **are**. One hundred **ares** = one **hectare**, which is equal to about 2.47 acres.

In measuring wood the cubic meter is called a ster.

In measuring liquids, grain, etc., the cubic decimeter is always called a liter.

A cubic centimeter of water weighs a gram.

A liter of water weighs a kilogram.

A cubic meter of water weighs a metric ton.

Norre.-To complete the above tables several other denominations should be added, but as these are rarely used they have been omitted.
THE METRIC SYSTEM.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

115. How many centimeters in 3 kilometers?

116. The surface of a cubic meter contains how many square centimeters?

117. How many grams in a metric ton?

118. What is the value of 60 centimeters of cloth at \$5.20 a meter?

119. A train runs 288 kilometers in 9 hours, how many meters does it run in a minute?

120. How many square meters in 12 ares?

121. How many cubic centimeters in .016 cubic meters?

122. How many liters in 3.7 cubic meters?

123. Give the weight in kilograms of .3243 cubic meters of water.

124. Find the area of a rectangular field 3 kilometers long by 2 kilometers wide.

120. A pile of wood is 3.5 kilon	1
and 320 continuetons high The Att	^D meters wide
and one continueters nigh. Find its	'a a stam

126. Find the area of the walls of e length is 7 meters, breadth 5.2 meters, and height 4 meters

127. How many cubic meters in a block 9 centimeters long, 8 centimeters wide, and 7 centimeters deep?

128. A man buys a ton (metric) of potatoes for \$24, and retails them at 5 cents a kilogram. What profit does he make?

129. What is the weight of water required to fill a vat 90 centimeters long, 64 centimeters wide, and 36 centimeters deep?

130. A liter of air weighs 1.273 grains. How much does a cubic meter of air weigh?

131. If firewood is cut 1.16 meters long, what height must the sides of the ster be to hold a cubic meter?

sed upon the

ved the units

carefully pre-

uare meter ller volumes,

One hundred

called a liter.

ons should be

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

132. What is the value of a kilometer of silk at 1.75 a meter?

133. In 53 ares how many square meters ?

134. How many square meters in a building lot 9 meters by 28 meters?

135. How many cubic meters in a box 4.7 meters by 5.6 meters by 7.3 meters?

136. A pile of wood containing 432 sters is 2.5 meters high and two meters wide. How long is it?

137. How many liters in a vessel whose capacity is 3 cubic meters?

139. What is the weight in grams of 5 cubic meters of water?

139. Find the value of the gold leaf, at 3 cents a square centimeter, required to cover the surface of a cubic decimeter.

VI. REVIEW.

MISCELLANEOUS DRILL EXERCISES.

140. Make six different numbers with the figures 3, 9, and 8, and find their sum.

141. Subtract 3 from every number between 10 and 30, and then find the sum of the remainders.

142. Starting at Chicago I go 200 miles due west, then 150 miles due north, then 100 miles due east, then 350 miles due souch, then 100 miles due east, then 150 miles due north. How far from Chicago am I now? What direction from the city am I?

143. The remainder is 302105. If both subtrahend and minuend be multiplied by 101, what will the remainder be?

144. Pure milk is worth 7 cents a quart. If 2 quarts of water be mixed with every 3 gallons of milk, what will a quart of the mixture be worth i

at \$1.75 a

9 meters by

ters by 5.6

meters high

is 3 cubic

rs of water? quare centieter.

5,

3, 9, and 8,

and 30, and

t, then 150) miles due orth. How e city am I?

d and minuə?

rts of water uart of the

REVIEW.

145. How many days between March 7 and November 23?

146. The sum of the remainder and subtrahend is 100190801. Find 20101 times the minuend.

147. What number must be subtracted from $\frac{1}{4}$ to leave .05?

148. What number subtracted 88 times from 80005 will leave 13 as a remainder?

+ 149. 22 11 men can build a wall in 18 days, how many men will it take to build a wall three times as long in half the time?

150. How many minutes are there between 35 minutes past 7 in the morning and midnight?

151. What will 3240 feet of lumber cost at \$22.50 per M.?

152. How long will it take a train to go 352 mile at the rate f of 2640 feet a minute?

153. What is the nearest number to 10050 that will contain 207 without a remainder?

154. How long will it take 3 men to do what 5 men can do in 30 days?

155. Find the prime factors of 61200.

156. The H. C. F. of two numbers is 15, and their L. C. M. is 450. What are the numbers ?

157. If a train moves 48 feet in a second, what is its rate in miles per hour?

158. Four-foot wood is piled to a height of $6\frac{1}{2}$ feet. How long must the pile be to contain 3 cords?

159. Find in American currency the total value of 22 sovereigns, 13 half-sovereigns, 14 crowns, 22 half-crowns, and 64 shillings.

160. Reduce £5.375 to pounds, shillings, and pence.

161. Reduce £12 18s. 6d. to dollars and cents.

162. Of a mixture of milk and water, $\frac{3}{2}$ of the weight is water. How many ounces of water in a pound of the mixture ?

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

163. A pint of water is put into a gallon of milk. What part of the mixture is water?

164. Subtract 23 from each prime number between 30 and 50, and then find the continued product of the remainders.

165. At the rate of $124\frac{1}{2}$ rods a minute how many hours will a train be in going from Boston to Buffalo, a distance of 498 miles?

166. How many miles an hour does a person walk who takes 2 steps a second and 1800 steps in a mile?

167. A train runs from New York to Philadelphia, 90 miles, in 1 hour 40 minutes. What is its rate per hour?

168. A horse traveled $5\frac{1}{2}$ miles in 33 minutes. What was his average time per mile?

169. A can mow $\frac{3}{4}$ of a field in 6 days; B can mow $\frac{3}{5}$ of it in 4 days. How long will it take both to mow the field?

170. If $\frac{2}{7}$ of a piece of work be done in 28 days, how much will be done in $4\frac{1}{5}$ days.

171. What length of road $49\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide will contain an acre?

172. How many sods, each 2 feet 6 inches by 10 inches, will be required to sod an acre of ground?

173. Find the cost of half an acre of ground at 63 cents per square yard.

174. How many days will 19,734 pounds of hay last 17 horses, if each horse eats 33 pounds a day?

175. Simplify $2\frac{1}{2} \times \frac{3}{3} \times 5\frac{1}{3} \times \frac{3}{4} \times \frac{2}{3}$ of $\frac{3}{4} \times 3\frac{1}{3}$.

176. How many lots of $\frac{1}{4}$ acre each can be made out of a piece of village of property 45 chains square?

177. Find the cost of 2064 pounds of wheat at 75 cents per bushel.

178. From $\frac{3}{4}$ of a score take the difference between $\frac{1}{10}$ of a hundred and $\frac{3}{3}$ of a dozen.

What part

30 and 50,

hours will ce of 498

who takes

90 miles,

at was his

3 of it in

low much

1 an acre ?

ches, will

cents per

17 horses,

of a piece

cents per

u to of a

REVIEW.

179. A piece of cloth, when measured with a yard measure that is $\frac{3}{4}$ of an inch short, appears to be 141 yards long. What is its true length?

180. Find a man's wages for 4 weeks 3 days 6 hours at \$12 a week, reckoning 6 days to a week and 10 hours to a day.

181. Divide \$2652 into three parts, in the ratio of 6, 4, and 3.

182. A and B together have \$136, and $\frac{2}{3}$ of A's money is equal to $\frac{2}{3}$ of B's. How much has each?

183. How many rods of fence will be required to enclose a field in the shape of a rectangle, one side of which is 64 rods, and containing 20 acres?

184. Find the cost of 3920 bricks at \$8.40 per M.

185. How many ties will it take for 20 miles of railway track, each yard requiring 1 tie?

186. How many square yards in the ceiling, walls, and floor of a room 28 feet long, 24 feet wide, and 18 feet high?

187. Find the cost of a scantling 4 inches by $8\frac{1}{2}$ inches, and 22 feet long, at \$18 per M.

188. What will it cost to floor a room 16 feet long and 12 feet wide at \$14.50 per square of 100 square feet?

189. What will it cost to paint the walls and ceiling of a hall 48 feet long, 27 feet wide, and 18 feet high, at \$1.20 per square yard?

190. What will it cost to slate a roof 44 feet by 35 feet at \$5.75 per square of 100 square feet?

191. What will it cost to paint the floor of a room 20 feet by 24 feet at 22 cents per square yard?

192. What will it cost to plaster a room 16 feet by 20 feet, and 15 feet high, at 18 cents per square yard, allowing $\frac{1}{10}$ for doors and windows?

193. How many square feet in a walk 4 feet wide, surrounding a rectangular garden 50 feet by 42 feet?

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

194. How many feet of lumber in a close board fence 6 feet high, 1 inch thick, and 2 miles long?

195. If a field 50 rods long contains 10 acres, how wide is the field ?

196. If a field 200 yards wide contains 15 acres, how long is it ?

197. How many planks 10 inches wide and $13\frac{1}{2}$ feet long will it take to make a sidewalk 600 feet long and $4\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide?

198. If each man occupies a space of 27 inches by 20 inches, how many men can stand in a room 36 feet by 40 feet?

199. How many trees are there in a wood a half a mile square, if there are on an average 8 trees to a square chain?

200. A reservoir is 40 feet 6 inches long and 21 feet 4 inches wide. How many cubic feet of water must be drawn off to lower the surface 5 inches ?

201. How many posts placed 8 feet apart will it take to go around a quarter-section of land?

202. How many cords of wood can be piled in a shed 72 feet long, 48 feet wide, and 16 feet high ?

203. At 26 cents a cubic yard what will it cost to dig a cellar 36 feet long, 28 feet wide, and 7 feet dcep?

204. Find the length in inches of the edge of the largest square marble slab that can be used in flooring a room 33 fect 10 inches long and 24 feet 6 inches wide.

205. From a lot 80 rods square I sold 80 square rods. What is the value of the remainder at \$150 an acre?

206. The area of a certain floor is 1024 square feet. 'The length is 4 times the breadth. What are its dimensions?

207. How many sods, each 8 inches square, will be required to sod a yard 24 feet long and 10 feet 8 inches wide ?

208. A's farm is $\frac{1}{2}$ mile square, B's contains $\frac{1}{2}$ of a square mile, and C's is $\frac{1}{4}$ larger than A's and B's together. How many acres in C's farm?

ce 6 feet

ide is the

ong is it?

long will de?

0 inches,

e square,

4 inches f to lower

ke to go

l 72 feet

g a cellar

st square 10 inches

. What

et. 'The ?

required

are mile, my acres

REVIEW.

209. At 36 cents a square yard how much will it cost to plaster the walls and ceiling of a room 18 feet long, 16 feet wide, and $9\frac{1}{2}$ feet high, allowing 73 square feet for windows and door?

210. The inside dimensions of a rectangular fort are 210 feet and 180 feet. The stone wall surrounding this space is 5 feet thick and 12 feet high. How many cubic feet of masonry are there in the wall?

211. Find the value of the lumber at \$18 per M. that will be required to build 500 yards of plank sidewalk 10 feet wide, 2 inches thick, and resting on 3 continuous lines of scantling 4 inches square.

212. Find the cost of a pile of lumber 16 feet long, 3 feet 3 inches wide, and 5 feet 6 inches high, at \$22.50 per M.

213. A contractor undertakes to dig a ditch $3\frac{1}{2}$ miles long, 12 feet wide at the top, 6 feet wide at the bottom, and 5 feet deep, for 25 cents per cubic yard. How much money should he receive for the work ?

214. The length of a rectangular field whose area is $3\frac{3}{2}$ acres is to its width as 16 is to 9. Find the cost of fencing it at \$1.50 per rod.

215. A man has a square field containing 10 acres. How many furrows must he plough across it to make an acre, supposing each furrow to be 8 inches wide?

216. A map is drawn on a scale of 10 miles to an inch, and a township is represented on it by a square whose side is half an inch. How many acres in the township?

217. How long must a lot be to contain $\frac{1}{3}$ of an acre, if it is 88 feet wide ?

218. Trees are planted 12 feet apart around the sides of a rectangular field 40 rods long, containing 2 acres. Find the number of trees.

219. A square yard is cut from a board 18 feet long and 10 inches wide. Find the length of the remainder i

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

220. A garden, 180 feet long by 150 feet wide, is surrounded by a tight board fence 6 feet high. What will it cost to paint the fence, both sides, at 12 cents per square yard?

221. How many square miles of country will be represented by a map $10\frac{1}{2}$ inches long and 6 inches wide, drawn on a scale of 3 miles (in length) to an inch?

222. A boy takes 924 steps of $2\frac{1}{2}$ feet each to walk round a field 40 rods long. How many acres in the field?

223. A farmer has a bin 18 feet long, 10 feet wide, 6 feet deep, that is $\frac{3}{4}$ full of wheat. What is the wheat worth at \$2 a bushel?

Note. - A bushel contains 21501 cubic inches.

224. I want to cut an acre of land from a long, narrow field, which is 55 yards broad. What length of it must I take?

225. There are 107 square yards in the surface of the walls and ceiling of a room 15 feet by 18 feet. How high is the room?

226. A gallon of paint, worth \$1.75, covers 200 square feet. What will it cost to paint a tight board fence 4 feet high, which encloses a lot 8 rods by 12 rods?

227. What must be the width of a box 6 feet long, 4 feet high, to contain $\frac{3}{4}$ of a cord of wood?

228. A map 6 feet long and 4 feet broad represents 13,824 square miles of the earth's surface. To what scale is it drawn?

229. How many bushels of wheat in a bin 391 inches long, 11 feet wide, and filled $4\frac{1}{2}$ feet deep?

230. A grocer received pay at 72 cents a pound for what he supposed to be $5\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of tea. His pound weight was one-half ounce too heavy. How much money should he have received?

231. How many bushels of barley will weigh as much as 690 bushels of corn ?

232. How many square yards of block pavement in a street $\frac{1}{2}$ a mile long and $1\frac{1}{2}$ chains wide?

ounded o paint

esented scale of

ound a

et deep, bushel ?

w field, ?

ie walls e room?

re feet. , which

4 feet

13,824 rawn?

ong, 11

hat he as onee have

as 690

street

REVIEW.

233. A man divided his money among his five sons. He gave $\frac{1}{2}$ to the eldest, $\frac{1}{3}$ of what was left to the second, $\frac{2}{5}$ of what was then left to the third, $\frac{2}{7}$ of what was then left to the fourth, and the remainder, which was \$280, to the fifth. How much money was divided?

Note.—Multiply the complements of the several fractions together to find the fifth fraction. Thus the complements are $\frac{1}{2}$, $\frac{2}{3}$, $\frac{2}{3}$, and $\frac{4}{7}$, and the product of these fractions equals $\frac{4}{3}$ the fifth son's share.

234. A merchant mixes 22 pounds of coffee worth 45 cents with 18 pounds worth 50 cents. What is a pound of the mixture worth?

235. If 24 men can do a work in 14 days of 9 hours, how many men will do it in 12 days of 7 hours?

236. A can run 10 yards to B's 9. How many yards' start must A give B to make an even race?

237. A garrison of 2000 men has provisions for 60 days. At the end of 20 days a reinforcement arrives, and then the provisions last only 5 days. What is the number of the reinforcement?

238. If a man rows 10 miles in $2\frac{1}{2}$ hours against a stream, the rate of which is 3 miles an hour, how long will he be rowing 5 miles with the stream?

239. If the shadow of an upright pole 9 feet high is $8\frac{1}{2}$ feet, what will be the height of a church spire which casts a shadow 221 feet long?

240. Show that the highest common factor of two numbers is the least common multiple of all their common measures.

241. A can do $\frac{2}{3}$ of a piece of work in 8 hours, and B can do $\frac{3}{4}$ of the remainder in 2 hours, and C can finish it in 40 minutes, in what time will they do it, all working together ?

242. By using false weights a grocer receives 33 cents instead of 32 cents. Find the number of ounces in his false pound.

243. Find the number of feet, board measure, in 25 joists, each 6 inches by 5 inches, and 18 feet long.

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS EXERCISES.

244. Cash.—On hand at the beginning of the day, \$572.20. Received during the day, \$425.95. Paid, \$65.80. What is the cash balance at the end of the day?

245. Cash.—On hand at the beginning of the day, \$273.87. Received during the day, \$243.10. On hand at the close of the day, \$362.42. How much was paid?

246. Cash.—On hand at the beginning of the day, \$5200.25. Paid during the day, \$353.98. On hand at the close of the day, \$6056.83. How much was received?

247. Cash.—Received during the day, \$10.23. Paid during the day, \$15.63. On hand at the close of the day, \$2.45. How much was on hand at the beginning of the day?

248. Cash.—On hand January 1, \$240. On deposit in the Merchants' Bank, \$524.80. Received during January, \$485.50. Paid during January, \$562.80. Deposited cash, \$55. Find the amount of cash on hand and the amount on deposit January 31.

DIRECTION.-Fill the blanks below with the answers to Exercise 248.

250. Cash.—On hand March 1, ——. On deposit in the Merchants' Bank, ——. Received during March, \$463.42. Paid during March, \$69.34. Deposited, \$510.45. Find the amount of cash on hand and the amount on deposit March 31.

251. Merchandise.—On hand at the beginning of the year,
\$1428. Bought during the year, \$2143. Sold during the year,
\$3627. None on hand. Find the gain or loss.

252. Merchandise.--None on hand at the beginning of the year. Bought during the year, \$4215.74. Sold during the year, \$1565.85. On hand at the close of the year, \$2742.79. Find the gain or loss.

572.20. is the

273.87. of the

00.25. e day,

luring How in the 85.50. nd the

n the 29.84. d the ry 28.

y 31.

n the Paid nount

year, year,

f the year, Find

REVIEW.

253. Merchandise.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$2431.20. Bought during the year, \$3142.80. Sold during the year, \$5117.35. None on hand. Find the gain or loss.

254. Merchandise.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$31,243.84. None bought during the year. Sold during the year, \$17,342.96. On hand at the close of the year, \$16,399.13. Find the gain or loss.

255. Merchandise.—None on hand at the beginning of the year. Bought during the year, \$13,242.87. Sold during the year, \$9836.44. On hand at the close of the year, \$5241.54. Find the gain or loss.

256. Merchandise.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$7246.24. Bought during the year, \$3624.87. Sold during the year, \$8319.54. On hand at the close of the year, \$2143.82. Find the gain or loss.

257. Merchandise.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$16,120.25. Bought during the year, \$5321.70. Sold during the year, \$13,617.18. On hand at the close of the year, \$125.18. Find the gain or loss.

258. Hardware.—On hand January 1, \$15.624. None bought during the year. Sold during the year, \$7,342.94. On hand at the close of the year, \$6524. Find the gain or loss.

259. Boots and Shoes.—On hand January 1, boots and shoes valued at \$5921.47, and stock valued at \$2320. Bought during the year, boots and shoes at a cost of \$3462. Manufactured the stock into boots and shoes at an expense of \$1462. Sold during the year, \$9634. Gave free to friends goods valued at \$145. On hand at the close of the year, boots and shoes valued at \$4964. Find the gain or loss.

260. Real Estate.—Owned at the beginning of the year property valued at \$15,620. Bought during the year property amounting to \$6540. Sold during the year property amounting to \$12,400. Value of property on hand at the close of the year, \$9020. Find the gain or loss.

FOURTH DEPARTMENT.

261. Real Estate.—Owned on January 1, 1884, property valued at \$5621: Bought during the year, \$9846. Property destroyed by fire during the year, \$1276. Sold during the year, \$7263. On hand December 31, \$5364. Find the gain or loss.

262. Real Estate.—Owned at the beginning of the year, \$16,324. Bought during the year, \$11,372. Property destroyed by fire during the year, \$3621. Sold during the year, \$20,115. On hand at the close of the year, \$6389. Received insurance on property destroyed, \$1225. Find the gain or loss.

263. Dry Gocds.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$12,248.50. Received free, from a friend, goods valued at \$4200. Sold during the year, \$16,240. On hand at the close of the year, \$1,142.85. Find the gain or loss.

264. Groceries.—On hand at the beginning of the year groceries valued at \$9324.80. Bought during the year, \$2421.75. Groceries destroyed by fire during the year, \$1314. Sold during the year, \$8465.25. On hand at the close of the year, \$3652.80. Find the gain or loss.

265. Provisions.—None on hand at the beginning of the year. Bought during the year, \$7321.75. Provisions destroyed by fire, \$984.20. Sold during the year, \$4241.80. Received insurance, \$500. On hand at the close of the year, \$2115.90. Find the gain or loss.

266. Lumber.—On hand at the beginning of the year, lumber and logs valued at \$4620. Bought during the year, logs at a cost of \$3610. Manufactured lumber valued at \$7956, at an expense for labor of \$810. Sold lumber during the year, \$8650. Lumber and logs on hand December 31 are valued at \$5625. Find the gain or loss.

267. Furniture.—On hand at the beginning of the year, \$4935.55. Bought during the year, \$7428.40. Sold during the year, \$8420.90. Furniture destroyed by fire during the year, \$1049. On hand at the close of the year, furniture valued at \$5620. Received insurance on furniture destroyed, \$850. Paid insurance expenses, \$25. Find the gain or loss.

property Property the year, or loss.

the year, lestroyed \$20,115. trance on

the year, at \$4200. e of the

the year \$2421.75. Sold durhe year,

g of the estroyed Received 2115.90.

ie year, ear, logs 7956, at ie year, alued at

ie year, ring the he year, alued at 0. Paid

1

FIFTH DEPARTMENT.

I. PERCENTAGE.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The term **percentage** is applied to certain arithmetical exercises in which 100 is used as the basis of computation.

Per cent is an abbreviation of the Latin per centum, meaning by the hundred. The **sign** % is used for the words per cent.

The **base** is the number on which the percentage is computed.

The rate per cent is the number which denotes how many hundredths of the base are to be taken.

Fractional Equivalents.

$50\% = .57 = \frac{1}{2}.$ $33\frac{1}{3}\% = .33\frac{1}{3} = \frac{1}{3}.$ $25\% = .25 = \frac{1}{2}.$ $20\% = .20 = \frac{1}{2}.$	$16\frac{3}{6}\% = .16\frac{3}{2} = \frac{1}{6}.$ $12\frac{1}{2}\% = .12\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{6}.$ $10\% = .10 = \frac{1}{16}.$ $8\frac{1}{2}\% = .081 = 1$	$\begin{array}{l} 6\frac{1}{4}\% = .06\frac{1}{4} = \frac{1}{16} \\ 5\% = .05 = \frac{1}{20} \\ 3\frac{1}{8}\% = .03\frac{1}{8} = \frac{1}{30} \\ \end{array}$
	$8\frac{1}{3}\% = .08\frac{1}{3} = \frac{1}{12}$.	$2\frac{1}{2} = .021 - 1$

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Note.-Do not use pen or pencil.

1. What is $\frac{1}{3}$ of 396?	11. Find 81% of \$679
2. What is \$ of 488?	12. Find 25% of \$490
3. What is 1 of 595?	13 Find 20% of \$400.
4. What is $\frac{1}{6}$ of 966?	14 Find 10 % of \$660.
5. What is 1 of 968?	15. Find 75 % 6 \$327.
6. What is ² / ₄ of 428?	16. Find 60 % of \$244.
7. What is $\frac{3}{5}$ of 535?	10. Find 00% of \$720.
8. What is 3 of 816?	17. Find 335% of \$792
9. What is 1 of 950 ?	10. Find $10\frac{2}{3}\%$ of \$624.
0. What is 1 of 732?	19. Find $12\frac{1}{2}\%$ of \$848.
H	20. Find 371% of \$960.

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

21. What fraction of 88 is 11? What per cent?

22. What fraction of \$200 is \$5? What per cent?

23. What is the difference between $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ and $3\frac{1}{2}\%$ of \$800?

24. A clerk who received \$325 a year had his salary raised 40%. What does he receive now?

25. Some property which cost \$3256 increased in value 125%. What was the increased value?

26. A regiment went into battle with 1050 men, and came out with 588 men. What per cent was lost?

27. The rent of a house is \$330, which is 11% of its value. What is its value?

28. A merchant sold \$4800 worth of goods, and had $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ of his stock left. What was his entire stock worth?

29. A lawyer collected \$3264, and charged 5% for his services. How much did he pay over?

. 30. Ten years ago the population of a city was 32,480. It has increased 20%. What is its present population?

31. An estate agent sells a house and lot for \$8565, and receives 6% for his services. How much money does he receive?

32. A horse that cost \$220 was sold for \$242. What was the gain per cent.

33. A farm was sold for \$7490, which was $16\frac{2}{3}\%$ more than it cost. What did it cost?

34. What number increased by $\frac{1}{4}$ of 25% of itself equals 867?

35: Ten years ago the population of a city was 26,275. Its present population is 31,530. Find the increase per cent.

36. If gunpowder contains 75% of saltpetre, 10% of sulphur, and 15% of charcoal, how many pounds of each are there in a ton of powder?

PERCENTAGE.

37. A dealer sold 120 barrels of flour for \$792, which was 12% less than he paid for it. What did he pay per barrel?

38. A town, after decreasing 11%, has 4539 inhabitants. How many inhabitants had it at first?

39. A farmer sold 32 sheep for \$128, which was $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ more than he paid for them. What did he pay per head?

40. If goods are bought for \$8728 and sold for \$9819, what is the gain per cent?

41. A farmer buys 18 head of cattle at \$25 per head, and after losing 3 sells the remainder at \$33 per head. How much does he gain per cent?

42. Teas at 59 cents, 65 cents, and 76 cents per pound, are mixed in equal quantities and sold at \$1 per pound. Find the gain per cent?

43. If to 48 gallons of wine 2 gallons of water are added, what per cent of the mixture is water?

44. If to 64 gallons of alcohol 16 gallons of water are added, what per cent of the mixture is alcohol?

45. By selling a farm for \$3500 the owner will lose $12\frac{1}{2}\%$. What will be gained per cent by selling the farm for \$5000?

46. A merchant marks an article \$2.80, but takes off 5% for cash. If his profit is 33%, what was the cost of the article?

47. What would a dishonest dealer gain per cent by using a weight of 15 ounces instead of a pound?

48. What per cent above cost must a man mark his goods in order that he may take off 10% from the marked price and still make 20% on the cost.

49. If, by selling goods for $16\frac{2}{3}\%$ profit, a merchant clears \$749, what was the cost of the goods?

50. A dry article was exposed to damp air and absorbed 4 ounces of water; it then weighed 9 pounds. What per cent of its present weight is water?

8

\$800?

ry raised

ue 125%.

came out

its value.

331% of

his ser-

480. It

, and re-

was the

e than it

als 867? 275. Its nt.

sulphur, ere in a

51. By selling a farm for \$2340 an estate dealer lost 10% of the cost. What ought he to have sold it for to make 10%?

52. If resin is melted with $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ of its weight of tallow, what per cent of tallow does the mixture contain?

53. How many gallons of water must be mixed with $29\frac{1}{2}$ gallons of wine in order that the mixture may contain $17\frac{1}{2}\%$ of water?

54. A merchant increases his capital annually by 20% of itself. At the end of four years his capital is \$95,040. What was his capital at first?

55. The sum of 10% of a number and 5% of half the remainder is what per cent of a quarter of the number?

56. A quantity of sugar was sold at 10% gain. If it had cost \$120 more the same selling price would have entailed a loss of 10%. Find the cost of the sugar.

II. TRADE DISCOUNT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

When a reduction is made from the *nominal* price of an article, from the amount of a debt, or from the face of a note, it is called a **discount**.

Some kinds of merchandise-books, furniture, musical instruments, etc.-have fixed prices. Manufacturers and wholesale dealers invoice such merchandise to the trade, or retail dealers, at the fixed or list prices.

The list prices are usually the retailer's selling prices.

The manufacturer or wholesale dealer allows the retailer a trade discount, which is deducted at a certain rate per cent from the face of the invoice.

The amount of the discount allowed depends sometimes upon the amount of the order, and sometimes upon the terms of settlement.

Very often two or more discounts are deducted in succession. Thus 10% and 5% off, or as it is generally expressed in business, 10 and 5 off, means a discount of 10%, and then 5% from what is left; 20, 10, and 5 off, means three successive discounts.

A retailer's profit is smaller when he is allowed 10% and 5% oil than if he were allowed 15% off.

The result is not affected by the order in which the discounts are taken.

TRADE DISCOUNT ..

lost 10%

low, what

h 29½ gal-17½% of

of itself. at was his

remainder

t had cost l-a loss of

the amount , etc.—have ndise to the

discount,

ount of the

us 10% and discount of successive

if he were

en.

ILLUSTRATIVE EXERCISES.

1. Goods are invoiced at \$80, less 20% and 10%. What do they cost ?

\$80.00 16.00	Multiply by 2 and carry one place to the right
\$64.00	and place to the right.
6.40	Muitiply by 1 and carry one place to the right.
\$57.60	Ane.

To take 10%, 20%, 30%, 40%, etc., of a number, multiply the number by 1, 2, 3, 4, etc., and divide the product by 10.

2. Goods are invoiced at \$243.27, with 40, 20, and 5 off. Find the cost.

\$243.27	
97.30 8	Muitiply by 4 and carry one place to the right.
\$145.96	
29.19 2	Multiply by 2 and carry one place to the right.
\$116.77	
5.83 8	Take haif and carry two places to the right.
\$110.93	4.000

In the \$97.308 above, omit the 8 and add 1, making 31 cents. In the \$29.192, omit the 2. In the \$5.838, omit the 8 and add 1, making 84 cents. In all such cases, if the decimal is 5 or more, add 1 cent; if less than 5, cmit it entirely.

3. Goods are invoiced at \$324.45, with $33\frac{1}{3}$, $2\frac{1}{2}$, and 1 off. Find the cost.

\$324.45 108.15	Take one-third.
\$216.30 5.41	Take one-fourth and carry two places to the right.
\$210.89	
2.11	Multiply by 1 and carry two places to the right
\$208.78	Ane

117

٠,

4. Goods are invoiced at \$236.18, with 40, 6, and $\frac{1}{2}$ off. Find the cost.

\$236.18	· · ·
94.47	Multiply by 4 and carry one place to the right.
\$141.71	
8.50	Multiply by 6 and carry two places to the right.
\$133.21	
.67	Multiply by 1 and carry two places to the right.
\$132.54	Ans.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Find the cost price.

57.	List price, \$243.	Trade discount, 5 and 20 off.
58.	List price, \$380.	Trade discount, 5 and 30 off.
59.	List price, \$340.	Trade discount, 30 and 5 off.
60.	List price, \$649.	Trade discount, 50 and 5 off.
61.	List price, \$954.	Trade discount, 60 and 5 off.
6 2.	List price, \$472.	Trade discount, 20 and 3 off.
63.	List price, \$380.	Trade discount, 10 and 8 off.
64 .	List price, \$684.	Trade discount, 20 and 1 off.
65.	List price, \$998.	Trade discount, 10 and 4 off.
66.	List price, \$651.	Trade discount, 30 and $\frac{1}{2}$ off.
67.	List price, \$690.	Trade discount, 40 and $\frac{1}{4}$ off.
88 .	List price, \$200.	Trade discount, 20 and 10 off.
69.	List price, \$485.	Trade discount, 10 and 20 off.
70.	List price, \$320.	Trade discount, 40 and 20 off.
71.	List price, \$252.	Trade discount, 10 and 10 off.
72.	List price, \$843.	Trade discount, 30 and 40 off.

TRADE DISCOUNT.

119

73. List price, \$50	0. Trade	discount, 21 and 1 off.
74. List price, \$38	4. Trade	discount, 10 and 21 off.
75. List price, \$33	3. Trade	discount, 50 and 121 off.
76. List price, \$480). Trade	discount, 33] and 5 off.
77. Invoiced price,	\$1020.45.	Discount, 10, 5, and 3 off
78. Invoiced price,	\$2142.45.	Discount, 5, 21, and 1 off
79. Invoiced price,	\$402.18.	Discount, 20, 5, and 21 off
80. Invoiced price,	\$104.80.	Discount. 10. 81, and 1 off
81. Invoiced price,	\$692.45.	Discount, 40, 10, and 5 off
82. Invoiced price,	\$804.20.	Discount, 50, 30, and 1 off.
83. Invoiced price,	\$201.13.	Discount, 30, 20, and 10 off
84. Invoiced price,	\$404.50.	Discount, 20, 10, and 21 m
85. Invoiced price.	\$930.00	Discount, 20, 10, and 33 off.
86. Invoiced price,	\$224.40.	Discount, 25, $16\frac{2}{3}$, and $2\frac{1}{2}$ off.
		- 4

87. The gross amount of a bill of merchandise is \$186.36; what is the net amount, the rates of discount being 30% and 20%?

88. What direct discount is equivalent to a discount of 20% and 10%?

89. What direct discount is equivalent to a discount of $33\frac{1}{3}\%$, 20%, and 1%?

90. What is the difference on a bill of \$425 between a discount of 50% and a discount of 30% and 20%?

91. A book broker buys books at 20% and 10% from the catalogue prices, and sells them at an advance of 10% on catalogue prices. What per cent profit does he make?

92. An agent buys 3 pianos, the list prices of which are \$420, \$630, and \$800. He is allowed 20 and 10 off. He sells the pianos at an advance of 50% on the cost prices. ind his total profit.

off. Find

right.

right.

right.

93. A retail bookseller buys at a discount of 20, 10, and 5 off, and sells at list prices. What per cent profit does he make?

94. A merchant buys furniture at 20% and 10% from list prices, and sells it at 10% and 5% from list prices. What per cent profit does he make?

95. A sewing machine agent buys \$60 machines at a discount of 30% and 163%. He sells them at an advance of 5% on the list price. Find his profit on each.

III. INVOICES.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

An **invoice** is a detailed statement of merchandles sold by one dealer to another. The place and date of sale, and the names of the buyer and seller, should be given.

A few of the terms, characters, and abbreviations made use of in making out invoices, are given below :---

A 1 First quality.	Inst. Propert month
e/Care of.	Proy Nout month.
DoDitto, the same.	The Lost Mext month.
ComCommission.	Mdgo Manak N
BxsBoxes.	Momo Momo
Bgs Bags.	No. on #
Bbl Barrel	No. or #Number.
Bal	Per By, or by the.
Fol Folio on parts	SniptShipment.
a on or page.	C. O. D Collect on dollars

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

96. Books.—New York, January 3, 1886. S. R. Warner & Co., Toronto, Ont., bought of A. S. Barnes & Co., 12 sets New National Readers at \$1.75; 3 Popular History of the United States at \$5; 5 Monteith's Science Reader at \$1.25; 18 Sill's Lessons in English at 90c.; 14 Comprehensive Geography at 75c.; 24 Practical Arithmetic at 80c.; 18 Steele's Chemistry at \$1.20; 12 Steele's Physiology at \$1.20; 18 Watson's Elocution at 40c. Less 30% and 10%; 36 doz. Copy Books at 65c. per doz. net; 40 doz. Drawing Books at 75c. per doz. net. Packing 75c.

nd 5 off, ake?

rom list That per

discount 6 on the

o another. I be given. aking out

onth. th. h. ise. um.

tine.

delivery.

rner & ts New United 8 Sill's at 75c.; \$1.20; at 40c. z. net; c. INVOICES.

Note.—Invoices are very different in detail. No rules for the guidance of students can be given. The peculiar methods of any particular business house can be isarned only by actual practice in that house. The exercises which follow are intended for general business practice.

[EXERCISE 96.]

NEW YORK, Jan. 3, 1886.

S. R. Warner & Co.,

Terms cash.

' oronto, Ont.,

Bought of A. S. Barnes & Co.

- 1						
	12	Sets New National Readers \$1.75	21	00	1	
	3	Popular History of U.S. 500	**	**	11	
	5	Monteith's Science Primer 1 25	*	**		
	18	Sill's Lessons in English	**	**		
	14	Comprehensive Goography				
	24	Practical Arithmatic				
	18	Steele's Chamister	**	**		
	10	Steele's Chemistry 1.20	**	**	1	1
	14	Steele's Physiology 1.20	**	**		1.0
	19	Watson's Elocution	*	**	•	
	•					1
		T 000/	***	**		
		Less 30% and 10%	**	**		**
	36	Doz. Copy Books. Net			**	**
4	10	Doz. Drawing Books. Net 75			**	**
	1	Packing				75
				1		
		Certified connect			***	**
		Cortined correct.		1		
	1	A. S. BARNES & Co.				
				1		

Note.—When goods are shipped from one country to another the sender of the goods sends a certified invoice—an ordinary invoice with the words "cortified correct," and the signature of the selier. Such an invoice is accepted as correct by the collectors of customs.

....

97. Dry Goods.—Chicago, January 5, 1886. Messrs. E. T. Stone & Co., Grand Rapids, Mich., bought of William Cross & Son, 24 pieces Gordon Prints, 48 yds. each, at $5\frac{1}{2}c.$; 18 pieces Merrimac Prints, 47 yds. each, at $4\frac{1}{2}c.$; 32 pieces Standard Prints, 45 yds. each, at 4c.; 20 pieces American Prints, 50 yds. each, at 6c. Cooperage \$1.25.

98. Canned Goods.—Wilmington, Del., January 9, 1886. S. W. Clark & Bro., Kansas City, Mo., bought of James Morrow & Son, 5 doz. 3 lb. Peaches at \$2.10; 4 doz. 6 lb. Peaches at \$3.45; 4 doz. 3 lb. Tomatoes at \$1.90; 3 doz. 2¹/₂ lb. Apricots at \$3.90. Less 5% for cash. Cooperage 90c.

99. Eooks.—Philadelphia, Pa., February 3, 1886. Canada. Publishing Co., Toronto, Ont., bought of J. B. Lippincott Co., 15 Dickens, People's Edition, 15 vols., at \$22.50; 7 George Eliot, 20 vols., at \$35; 13 Thackeray, Globe Edition, 12 vols., at \$15; 14 Charles Reade, 17 vols., at \$21.25; 36 The "Duchess" Novels at \$1. Less 40%, 10%, and $\frac{1}{2}$ %. Cooperage \$1.20. (A certified invoice necessary).

100. Groceries.—Baltimore, Md., March 12, 1886. James. R. Wallace & Co., Syracuse, N.Y., bought of H. Chisholm & Co., 3 bbls. Granulated Sugar at \$7.50; 17 boxes Raisins at \$1.75; 4 boxes Layer Raisins at \$2.15; 15 lbs Spice at 16c.; 24 boxes. Currants at \$1.40; 2 bags Rio Coffee at \$27.20; 2 bbls. Syrup at. \$18.50; 12 lbs. Nutmegs at 90c. Special discount, 10 and 5 off. Cartage \$1.50.

101. Fruit.—Rochester, N.Y., August 13, 1886. S. R. Riley & Co., Jacksonville, Ill., bought of H. P. Wallace & Son, 273bbls. Winter Apples at \$1.15; 136 bbls. Fall Apples at \$1.05; 362 bush. Plums at \$2.12¹/₂; 163 baskets Peaches at 63c.; 428baskets Pears at 42c. Less 20%. Cartage \$12.85.

102. Flour and Feed.—Montreal, Que., April 15, 1886. Edwin Ball, Sherbrooke, Que., bought of Thompson, Watt & Co., 13 bbls. Best Flour at \$5.30; 14 bbls. No. 2 Flour at \$4.75; 32⁻ bbls. Pork at \$18.90; 942 lbs. Hams at 13c.; 432 bush. Oats at. 31c.; 15 cwt. Bran at 55c. Less $33\frac{1}{3}\%$, 10%, and 2%.

COMMISSION.

103. Hardware.—Toronto, Ont., March 13, 1886. Hugh Cleland, Meaford, Ont., bought of Rice Lewis & Son, 200 Carriage Bolts at \$2.25 per C.; 150 Carriage Bolts at \$3.15; 5 doz. R. S. K. Knives at \$2.14; 4½ doz. Pieced Bread Pans at \$2; 15 Eureka Stoves at \$14.90; 13 Royal Coal Stoves at \$18.40; 6 Iron Posts at \$1.30. Less 7% for cash.

104. Furniture.—San Francisco, Cal., May 3, 1886. G. W. Powell & Bro., Denver, Col., bought of Thompson & King, 22 Bedroom Sets at \$32.50; 18 Parlor Sets at \$42.75; 6 Walnut Sideboards at \$18.25; 12 Walnut Dining Tables at \$21.30; 14 Cherry Book Cases at \$13.50; 17 Easy Chairs at \$4.35. Less 40%, $12\frac{1}{2}\%$, and $2\frac{1}{2}\%$.

105. Lumber.—Detroit, Mich., November 18, 1886. The Western Lumber Co., Milwaukee, Wis., bought of Patterson Bros. & Co., 293,500 ft. Pire, first quality, at \$42; 132,600 ft. Pine, third quality, at \$16; 425,250 ft. Hemlock at \$22; 83,750 ft. Basswood at \$26; 48,650 ft. Elm at \$72.50. Less a regular discount of $37\frac{1}{2}\%$, and 5% additional for cash.

IV. COMMISSION.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Commission is an aliowance or compensation to an agent, commission merchant, or factor.

Commission merchants are usually placed in possession of the goods bought or sold.

The business of a **broker** is similar to that of a commission merchant. Brokers do not have possession of the merchandise bought or sold.

The term broker is more generally applied to these whose business it is to buy and sell stocks, bonds, notes, etc.

The person for whom the business is transacted is called the principal.

The person who sends goods to be sold is called the consignor or shipper.

The name consignment is given to the goods sent.

The person to whom the goods are sent is called the consignee.

The net proceeds of a consignment is the balance due the consignor after charges and expenses have been deducted.

The commission or brokerage for buying or selling merchandise or real estate is usually estimated at a certain per cent of the amount invested or realized.

b. E. T. Cross & pieces andard 50 yds.

1886. lorrow hes at

anada t Co., eorge vols., hess" . (A

ames. Co., 75; 4 Doxes. up at. 5 off.

Riley 273 ..05; 428-

886. Co.,. ; 32[.] s at.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

106. An estate dealer sells a house and lot for \$5620 at $2\frac{1}{2}$ %. What is his commission for selling?

107. A salesman receives $2\frac{1}{2}$ % of his sales. His sales for a certain week amounted to \$943.50. What was his commission for that week?

108. What must be a traveler's sales for one year that he may, at 3% commission, have a yearly income of \$2400?

109. A lawyer collected a note of 242.50; how much should he pay to the owner of the note, his commission being 8%?

110. My attorney collected 80% of a debt of \$5500, and charged $7\frac{1}{2}\%$ commission. What amount should he pay me?

111. My agent sold in house and lot for \$4850. He bought me a new house and lot for \$3725. His commission for selling was 4%, and for buying 2%. How much cash should I receive?

112. What is the amount of the sales when the brokerage charged is \$64 at $\frac{1}{2}$ %?

113. What is the amount of the sales when the net proceeds are \$2493.16, brokerage $\frac{3}{4}\%$?

114. Sent \$414 to an agent to be invested in prints at 13 cents a yard, after deducting his commission of $2\frac{1}{2}$ % of the sum sent. How many yards can he purchase?

Note.--To be accurate the commission should be reckoned on the actual sum invested, and not on the \$414. In ordinary transactions, however, commission is deducted as above.

115. My agent in St. Paul buys for me 3245 bushels of wheat at \$1.08. What is his commission at $\frac{1}{2}\%$?

116. Sent \$6180 to a commission merchant to invest in flour, his commission being 3% on the amount expended. How many barrels of flour, at \$4.80 per barrel, can he purchase?

117. An estate agent sells 420 acres of land at \$18.50 an acre, and charges $2\frac{1}{4}$ % commission. What is his commission?

124.

COMMISSION.

125

l

118. A commission merchant sells a consignment of wheat for \$7240. He pays \$42 for freight and storage, and charges a commission of $2\frac{1}{4}\%$. What are the net proceeds?

119. An agent charges $5\frac{1}{4}$ % commission, and receives \$441 for his services. Find the amount of his sales.

120. A merchant buys, through an agent, 480 yards of carpet at 80 cents per yard, and pays the agent $\frac{3}{4}\%$ commission. The freight amounted to \$1.92. At what price per yard must the carpet be sold to realize a profit of $33\frac{1}{4}\%$?

121. A book agent receives a commission of 25% on the gross amount of his sales, \$1 for each book sold, and a salary of \$120 a year. During a certain year he sold 480 books at \$7 each. What was his income for that year?

122. A country merchant receives a commission of $16\frac{2}{3}\%$ for selling mowing and reaping machines. He sells during a certain season 3 of the former at \$90 each, and 5 of the latter at \$120 each. His expenses connected with the sales were \$17.50. Find his profit.

123. A young man established a newspaper subscription agency. His expenses were \$18.50 a month, and his commission 20%. During 1885 he received 130 subscriptions at \$6 each, 142 at \$4, 360 at \$2, 182 at \$1.50, and 573 at \$1. What was his net income for the year?

124. An agent received \$1269 with which to purchase goods after deducting his commission of $5\frac{3}{4}\%$ of the sum actually invested. Find his commission.

125. A manufacturer sent \$5202 to a leather dealer with which to purchase leather at 2% commission on the sum invested. How much commission should he deduct?

126. A worked B's farm of 320 acres for one year "on shares." A received 25% of the gross receipts for his labor, and the balance was divided equally. Wheat was raised on the entire farm; it yielded 28 bushels to the acre, and was sold at $$1.12\frac{1}{2}$ per bushel. Find B's share of the profits.

 $2\frac{1}{2}\%$.

for a lission

at he

hould ? , and

e ? ought elling eive ?

erage

ceeds

t 13 sum

l sum ion is

heat

our, any

cre,

V. TAXES.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Taxes are sums of money assessed on persons, property, or incomes, to defray the expenses of a country or corporation.

Real estate is fixed property, as lands and houses.

Personal property is movable property, as money, goods, furniture, ships, cattle, stocks, etc.

An assessor is an officer appointed to estimate the value of property.

A capitation or poll tax is a tax assessed, without regard to property, upon the person of every adult male citizen not exempted by law.

A *license* is a written permit to conduct a certain business, and a **license fee** is the sum charged for such permit.

Duties or customs are taxes levied by the government on goods imported from foreign countries. $_{\rm O}$

An ad valorem duty is a tax levied upon imported goods at a certain per cent of their dutiable value.

Duties are not computed on fractions of a dollar. If the cents are less than 50 they are rejected; if 50 or more the dollars are increased by 1.

A specific duty is a tax levied upon imported goods according to their weight or measure, and without reference to their value.

Some goods are subject to both a specific and an ad valorem duty.

PRACTICAL EXERCISES.

127. The assessed value of a property is \$4760, and the rate of taxation $\frac{1}{3}\%$. Find the tax.

128. The assessed value of a house and lot is \$7500, and the rate of taxation $\frac{1}{4}\%$. Find the tax.

129. My real estate is assessed at \$8500. The rate is three mills on the dollar. What taxes have I to pay if I am allowed 4% for prompt payment?

130. A man's property is assessed at \$7200. What is his tax, the rate being \$8.75 on \$1000?

131. The assessed valuation of a town is \$3,500,000. The money to be raised is \$4,900. What is the rate?

132. What is the tax on 9350 pounds of tobacco at 16 cents?

to defray

are, ships,

erty, upon

nse fee is

imported

ertain per

ss than 50

eir weight

the rate

and the

is three allowed

his tax,

00. The

3 cents?

133. A tax of \$5900 is levied for building a school-house. The assessed valuation of the village is \$2,242,000. What is the tax on a property assessed at \$6750?

134. A teacher pays an income tax of 3 mills on the dollar on a salary of \$1250, and a poll tax of \$2. What is his net income?

135. At what rate must property valued at \$65,000 be assessed to raise \$130?

136. What is the valuation of a piece of property that pays a tax of \$273 at a rate of $3\frac{1}{4}$ mills on the dollar?

137. If a tax of \$140 is assessed upon a cotton mill valued at \$24,000, what is the valuation of a piece of property that pays a tax of \$38.50, at the same rate ?

138. What sum must be assessed on a school district to build a school-house at a cost of \$5460, and pay $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ for collection?

139. What sum must be raised in order that \$19,600 shall remain after paying a commission of 2% for collecting the taxes?

140. What is the tax on 9328 gallons of distilled spirits at 70 cents?

141. How much is the semi-annual tax of a national bank whose average circulation is \$335,000 at $\frac{1}{2}\%$, average deposits \$2,346,840 at $\frac{1}{4}\%$, and average capital stock \$800,000 at $\frac{1}{4}\%$.

142. A pedlar pays a license fee of \$12.50 per year. His net income for a certain year is \$875. The tax is equivalent to what rate per cent?

143. What is the duty, at 20%, on 420 boxes of raisins, each containing 40 pounds, and costing 7 cents a pound?

144. A merchant's importation of silks from France was invoiced at 8120 francs. Find the duty in dollars and cents, the rate being 60%.

145. Find the duty on a shipment of books from the United States to Canada, invoiced at \$324.20, at 15%.

146. Woolens valued at \pounds 423 12s. 6d., and weighing 724 pounds, were imported from England. What was the duty at 40 cents per pound and 25% ad valorem.

147. Find, in American currency, the duty on a shipment of linens from Ireland, invoiced at £123 8s. 6d., at 35%?

148. What is the duty on 4368 pounds of wool, invoiced at \$1826, when the rate is 7 cents per pound and 8% ad valorem?

149. Goods invoiced at \$450 have become damaged. Find the amount of the duty at $33\frac{1}{3}\%$, the allowance for damages being 25%.

150. At 40% ad valorem, what is the duty—Americe: currency—upon an importation of 300 dozen kid gloves, invoiced at 72 francs per dozen?

151. A Toronto fruit dealer imports 24 boxes of oranges from Florida. Each box contains 250 oranges. They are invoiced at \$2.75 a box. The freight is \$10.15, the duty 15%, the broker's fee 50 cents, and the expense of delivery 75 cents. How much will be gained by selling the oranges at 25 cents per dozen ?

VI. REVIEW.

MISCELLANEOUS DRILL EXERCISES.

152. Five per cent of a number is what per cent of $\frac{1}{5}$ of the number?

153. By selling cashmere at \$1.40 per yard I gain $16\frac{2}{3}\%$. What is my gain on a sale amounting to \$32?

154. A merchant's collector deducts his commission of 2% from a bill; the balance is \$1960. What was the bill?

155. A merchant buys a quantity of coffee and sells it again so as to gain 10%. Had he bought it at 10% less and sold it for \$5 less, he would have gained 20%. Find the cost price.

ng 724 duty at \

ment of

orem ? Find

e curnvoiced

es from biced at broker's w much en ?

of the

 $16\frac{2}{3}\%$.

of 2%

it again Id it for

REVIEW.

156. A dealer sells a horse at a loss of 4%. Had he sold it for 6 guineas more he would have gained 5%. Find the original cost.

157. A boy buys chestnuts at \$2.50 a bushe¹ and sells them at 5 cents a pint. What per cent does he make?

158. I bought a city lot and immediately sold it for \$1200, thereby gaining 20%. I bought another lot with the \$1200 and sold it at a loss of 20%. Did I gain or lose on the two transactions, and how much?

159. If a merchant marks his goods at 25% above cost, what per cent must he allow a customer in order to make a profit of 10%?

160. A bookseller bought Christmas cards at a discount of 30% and 5%. The clerk, however, in making out the bill deducted 35%. The bookseller's gain on account of the different discount was \$4.50. What should have been the cash price of the cards?

161. I bought 650 yards of silk in Paris at \$5.25 a yard. The charge for freight was \$15.40, and for storage \$5.85. I paid an ad valorem duty of 25%, and sold the goods for \$5716. What was my gain per cent?

162. In the erection of a barn I paid twice as much for lumber as for labor, and twice as much for labor as for stone. Had I paid 6% more for lumber, 8% more for labor, and 2% more for stone, the barn would have cost me 3710. What was the cost of the barn?

163. A sold a carriage to B and gained $7\frac{1}{2}\%$. B sold it to C for \$141.90 and lost 12%. How much did the carriage cost A?

164. A grocer buys two sorts of tea at 2s. 9d. and 3s. 1d. per pound respectively. He mixes them so as to have 3 pounds of the dearer for 1 pound of the cheaper, and sells the mixture at 4s. per pound. What does he gain per cent?

165. If by selling an article for \$9.50 I lose 5%, for how much should I sell it so as to gain 5%?

166. Two persons commenced business with equal capital. One gained 25%, the other $33\frac{1}{3}\%$. What was their capital if the difference between their gains is \$2720?

167. I send my agent \$2075.70 to invest in sugar, after deducting his commission of $1\frac{3}{4}\%$ of the sum invested. How many pounds at $8\frac{1}{2}$ cents should he forward me?

168. Two boys buy apples at a cent each. One sells them at 3 for 4 cents, and the other at 4 for 5 cents. Compare their gains per cent.

169. A merchant sold two overcoats for equal sums of money. He gained 25% on the one and lost 25% on the other. His loss on the whole transaction was \$2.40. Find the cost of each coat.

170. An implement dealer asked for a reaper 30% more than it cost. He finally took 20% less than his asking price, and gained \$5 on the machine. How much did he ask?

171. The proprietor of a factory proposes to reduce wages $12\frac{1}{2}\%$. His men *strike*, but afterwards submit on condition that their wages remain the same, but that their time, which is $10\frac{1}{2}$ hours a day, be increased. How much should it be increased?

1.2. I rold two horses and got $6\frac{1}{4}$ % less for the second than for the first. On the first I gained 20% and on the second I lost 10%. My whole gain was \$15. Find the cost of each horse.

173. What must a merchant ask for boots that cost \$3.60 a pair that he may make a discount of 10% and still gain 25%?

174. A merchant's sales for one week showed an increase of 10% each day on the sales of the previous day. His total sales for the week amounted to $$3857.80\frac{1}{2}$. Find his average sales per day.

175. A grocer Luys sugar at the rate of 12 pounds for \$1 and sells it at the rate of 10 pounds for \$1. What does he gain per cent?

176. If I sell $\frac{6}{7}$ of an article for what $\frac{3}{4}$ of it cost me, what per cent do I lose?

apital. l if the

eductmany

em at their

is loss

e tlian e, and

wages on that is $10\frac{1}{2}$ eased?

d than l 1 lost rse.

3.60 a %?

ease of l sales e sales

\$1 and in per

at per

REVIEW.

177. A bookseller's price for certain books is 25% above cost. He allows teachers a discount of 12%. He receives \$14 from a teacher in payment of a bill. What profit did he make?

178. What is the difference on a bill of \$875 between a discount of 40%, and a discount of 30% and 10%?

179. A miller takes 4 quarts as toll for each bushel ground. What per cent does he take for toll?

180. What per cent of $\frac{9}{17}$ is $\frac{9}{85}$?

181. A girl who attended school 68 days during a term was marked 85% for attendance. How many days was she absent?

182. A horse and carriage were sold for \$459, the horse at a gain of 20% and the carriage at a loss of 10%. The horse cost $\frac{3}{2}$ of what the carriage cost. Find the cost of each.

183. A merchant loses 15% by selling goods at 75 cents below cost. For how much should he sell the goods to gain 10%.

184. If copper is mixed with 20% of its weight of nickel, what per cent of the mixture is nickel?

185. A wholesale bookseller allows retailers a discount of $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ on books having fixed prices. What per cent profit do the retailers make?

186. At what price must a bookseller mark a book which costs \$1.20 in order that he may throw off 10% to a student and still make 20%?

187. A wholesale dealer sold at a profit of 25% to a retailer, who compromised with his creditors at 40 cents on the dollar. What per cent did the wholesale dealer lose?

188. A grocer marked a quantity of tea at an advance of 20% on cost. After selling $\frac{2}{3}$ of it he reduced the price 8 cents a pound. His total gain was $77\frac{7}{9}\%$ of what it would have been had he not reduced the price. What did the tea cost per pound?

189. A broker charges $\frac{2}{11}$ % for investing money, and receives for a certain transaction \$36.80. Find the sum invested.

190. I bought two city lots for \$450 and \$300 respectively. I sold both at the same price, and gained as much per cent on the one as I lost on the other. What did I gain or lose per cent on the transaction?

191. An article is marked to gain 40%, but the seller throws off 10%. A collector is afterwards paid 20% of the debt for collecting it. What per cent is gained?

192. I sold goods at a certain gain per cent. If they had cost me 50% less my gain would have been six times as great. What per cent did I gain ?

193. I marked goods to gain 60%, but on account of using an incorrect yard measure I gain only 40%. What is the length of the measure ?

194. A dealer sells 20 pounds of tobacco at a profit of 5%, and 30 pounds at a profit of 8%. If he had sold it all at a profit of 6% he would have received 20 cents less. What was the cost per pound?

195. A hatter's expenses during a certain year were $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ of his gross gain on merchandise. His hats were marked 30% above cost. At the beginning of the next year he advanced the price of his goods 10% of the marked price, and during the year cnt down his expenses 10%. What did he gain per cent during the second year?

196. A druggist purchases brandy at \$4 a gallon, and adds water so that when he sells it at \$3 a gallon he clears 50%. What per cent of each gallon of the mixture is water?

197. I had a village lot worth \$120; I sold it for \$130; being dissatisfied with my sale, I immediately bought the lot back for \$150. What did I lose per cent by the double transaction ?

198. An engine was sold for \$3525, at a loss of 6%. For how much should it have been sold to gain $12\frac{1}{2}\%$.

199. If I compromise with an insolvent creditor for 70 cents on the dollar, and then discount 2% for immediate payment, what is my total loss on a claim of \$6500?

ely. I on the ent on

throws bt for

id cost What

ing an igth of

%, and rofit of ie cost

31% of above e price ar cut ng the

d adds 50%.

being ick for 12

or how

) cents ment,

SIXTH DEPARTMENT.

I. INTEREST.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Interest is the sum charged for the use of money.

Interest is really the use of money, or the benefit derived from its use.

The principal is the sum for the use of which interest is pald.

The rate of interest is the per cent of the principal charged for its use for one year.

The **amount** is the sum of the principal and interest.

Legal interest is the interest reckoned at the rate per cent fixed by law.

Usury is Interest at a higher than the legal rate.

Simple interest is interest on the principal only, for the full time.

Compound interest is interest on the principal for the full time, and interest on the interest after it becomes due.

EXERCISES FOR MENTAL DRILL.

Norg.-Do not use peu or peneil.

1. At 15 cents an hour how much should be paid for the use of a boat for 12 hours?

2. At \$7.50 a week how much should a farmer pay for the use of a reaper 7 weeks?

3. At $3\frac{1}{2}$ cents a day how much should be paid for the use of a book 18 days?

4. At \$13.50 a month how much should be paid for the use of a bicycle 7 months?

5. At \$6 a year how much should be paid for the use of \$100 3 years?

6. A man hires a horse for 3 hours at \$1.50 an hour. What will his livery hire amount to?

SIXTH DEPARTMENT.

7. A man rents a house for 13 months at \$12 a month. What will his *rent* amount to ?

8. A man borrows \$600 for 1 year at \$7.50 a hundred. How much *interest* will he have to pay?

9. A man borrows \$400 for 3 years at \$6 a hundred a year (6%). How much will he have to pay for its use?

10. What is the interest of \$500 for 4 years at 6%?

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION.—The principal, the time, and the rate are given ; it is required to find the *interest*.

11.	Principal,	\$200.	Time, 2 years.	Rate, 6%.	
12.	Principal,	\$340.	Time, 3 years.	Rate, 7%.	
13.	Principal,	\$420.	Fime, 4 years.	Rate, 4%.	
14.	Principal,	\$720. 7	Fime, 5 years.	Rate, 3%.	
15.	Principal,	\$844.	Fime, 1½ years.	Rate, 6%.	
16.	Principal,	\$933. 7	Fime, $\frac{3}{4}$ year.	Rate, 51 %	
17.	Principal,	\$225.]	lime, 🖁 year.	Rate, $4\frac{1}{2}\%$	
18.	Principal,	\$862.]	l'inie, $2\frac{1}{2}$ years.	Rate, $3\frac{1}{3}\%$	
19.	Principal,	\$1000. 7	l'ime, 3 years.	Rate, 7%.	
20.	Principal,	\$1200. 7	l'ime, 5 years.	Rate, 4%.	
21.	Principal,	\$3200.]	l'ime, 3 months.	Rate, 8%.	
22.	Principal,	\$4850. 7	lime, 9 months.	Rate, 6%.	
23.	Principal,	\$2030.]	Time, 6 months.	Rate, $2\frac{1}{2}\%$	
24.	Principal,	\$1425.30	. Time, 3 years	s. Rate, 6	%.
25.	Principal,	\$1267.50	. Time, 6 years	. Rate, 7	%.
26.	Principal,	\$2102.30	. Time, 1 year.	Rate, 3	%.
27.	Principal,	\$4215.50	. Time, 1 year	months.	Rate, 2%.
28.	Principal,	\$3984.27	. Time, 2 years	9 months.	Rate, 21%.

INTEREST.

135

24

DIRECTION.-In the exercises which follow consider the time even months.

29. What is the interest of \$240 from June 3, 1886, to August 3, 1887, at 6%?

30. What is the interest of \$425.80 from September 15, 1885, to November 15, 1886, at 2%?

31. What is the interest of \$125.50 from May 15, 1885, to December 15, 1887, at 4%?

32. What is the interest of \$480.40 from June 18, 1884, to August 18, 1884, at 5%?

Note.—To find the accurate interest of a sum of money at any rate and for a given number of days, multiply the interest for one year by the number of days and divide the product by 365.

33.	Principal, \$420.	Rate	, 4%.	Time.	73 days
34.	Principal, \$563.	Rate	, 2%.	Time.	48 days
35.	Principal, \$360.	Rate	, 8%.	Time.	33 dava
36.	Principal, \$840.	Rate.	7%.	Time.	33 dava
37.	Principal, \$1200.	Rate.	2%	Time,	146 down
38.	Principal, \$1425.2	20. F	Rate. 3	~ Ti	no 910 J
39.	Principal, \$3268.6	0. R	late. 69	с. 11 7. Т.,	ne, 219 days.
40 .	Principal, \$4232.5	0. R	ate 80		100, 152 days.
11 .	Principal. \$1008 2	0 P	ato 70	· 11	ne, 100 days.
	1 4 2000.2	· 1	ave, 1%	o. Tin	1e, 203 dava

DIRECTION.-In the exercises which follow reckon the interest for the exact number of days. Count one of the two days named and all the days intervening.

10	D.: Miana	-			
4%.	Prin., \$1200.	Rate, 3%.	Time, Jan.	. 3, 1886, to Mar.	15 1886
43.	Prin., \$1420	Rato Ad.	m:		10,1000.
	······································	1000, 470.	Time, Dec.	. 5, 1886, to Apr.	18, 1887.
44.	Prin., \$1730.	Rate 5%	Time M.	0.1000	/
	,	1000,070.	Time, Nov	. 9, 1886, to May	27, 1887.
45.	Prin., \$2190.	Rate. 21%	Time Sont	4 100 1 7 .	
			rime, sept	.4, 1889, to July	19,1888.
46 .	Prin., \$4380.	Rate, 31%.	Time Dec	3 1995 4. 11	
	D 1	-)-2701	1 mile, 1960.	5, 1005, to Mar.	21,1887.
±7.	Prin., \$3625.	Rate, 11%.	Time. Oct	9 1995 4. 37	
			, 000.	a, rooo, to may .	17.1887.

What

How

a year

uired to

2%.

SIXTY-DAY METHOD.

Note.—Consider 360 days one year, and 30 days one month; then the interest for 60 days, or two months, at any rate, will be $\frac{1}{2}$ of the interest for one year; and when the rate is 6% the interest for 60 days is 1% or $\frac{1}{100}$ of the principal.

illustrative Exercises.

1. What is the interest of \$1728 for 80 days at 6%?

17 28 =	interest for 60 days.	The interest of \$1728 for 60 days at 6%
5 76=	interest for 20 days.	is 1% of \$1728, or \$17.28; and the interest
23 04=	interest for 80 days.	for 20 days (4 of 60) is 4 of \$17.28, or \$5.76. Hence for 80 days it will be \$17.28 plus \$5.76, or \$23.04.

2. What is the interest of \$1260 for 106 days at 6%?

\$12	60=interest for 60 days.	Cut off two places to the righ
6	30 = interest for 30 days.	$\frac{1}{2}$ of \$12.60 = \$6.30.
2	10=interest for 10 days.	$\frac{1}{3}$ of \$6.30 = \$2.10.
1	26=interest for 6 days.	k of \$6,30=\$1.26.
		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
\$22	26 = interest for 106 days	

Note.—Any number of days can be divided into convenient parts. Thus, to find the interest for 158 days, we could take twice 60 or 120; then 30, which is $\frac{1}{2}$ of 60; then 5, which is $\frac{1}{6}$ of 30; then 3, which is $\frac{1}{10}$ of 30.

3. What is the interest of \$2340 for 3 months 27 days at 7%?

\$23 | 40 = interest for 60 days or 2 months.

11 70 = interest for 30 days or 1 month.

7	80 = interest for 20 days.	1 of \$23.40 = \$7.80.
2	34 = interest for 6 days.	1 of \$11.70=\$2.34.
	39=interest for 1 day.	t of \$2.35 = .39.
15	63=interest for given time	e at 6%.
7	61 = interest for given time	e at 1%. i of \$45.63=\$7.61.
	the second se	

\$53 25 = interest for given time at 7%.

Note.-Add 1 cent when the fraction is 1 or more.
INTEREST.

137

¥

ys at 6% interest or \$5.76. .28 plus

to find of 60;

t 7 %?

4.	what is the interest of \$3600 for 5 months 19 days at 4%
\$36	00 = interest for 60 days or 2 months.
18	00 = interest for 1 month.
90 9 1	$00 = interest for 5 months.$ \$18.00 × 5 = \$90.00. $00 = interest for 15 days.$ $15 = \frac{1}{3} of 60. \frac{1}{3} of $36.00 = $9.00.$ $80 = interest for 3 days.$ $3 = \frac{1}{3} of 15. \frac{1}{3} of $9.00 = $1.80.$ $60 = interest for 1 day.$ $1 = \frac{1}{3} of 3. \frac{1}{3} of $1.80 = .60.$
\$101	40 = interest for given time at 6%.
33	80 = interest for given time at 2%. Take $\frac{1}{2}$ of \$101.40 from i.self.

\$67 60 = interest for given time at 4%.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Find the interest by the sixty-day method.

48	. Principal, \$245.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 18 days.
49	Principal, \$368.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 14 days.
50	Principal, \$725.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 15 days.
51.	Principal, \$463.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 16 days.
52.	Principal, \$842.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 19 days.
53.	Principal, \$520.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 27 days.
54.	Principal, \$368.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 33 days.
55.	Principal, \$863.	Rate, 6%.	Time, 37 days.
56.	Principal, \$721.	Rate, 7%.	Time, 48 days.
57.	Principal, \$484.	Rate, 7%.	Time, 69 days.
58.	Principal, \$285.	Rate, 7%.	Time, 73 days.
59.	Principal, \$393.	Rate, 5%.	Time, 86 days.
60.	Principal, \$685.	Rate, 5%.	Time, 89 days.
61.	Principal, \$268.	Rate, 4%.	Time, 95 days.
62.	Principal, \$936.	Rate, 8%.	Time, 99 days.

•

63. Principal, \$6000. R	ate, 9%. Time, 147 days.
64. Principal, \$4800. R	ate, 5%. Time, 201 days.
65. Principal, \$1233.45.	. Rate, 6%. Time, 127 days
66. Principal, \$8426.30.	Rate, 6%. Time, 132 days.
67. Principal, \$9635.25.	Rate, 6%. Time, 143 days.
68. Principal, \$7628.35.	Rate, 6%. Time. 214 days
69. Principal, \$8428.13.	Rate, 7%. Time, 121 days.
70. Principal, \$6213.40.	Rate, 8%. Time, 129 days
71. Principal, \$2468.20.	Rate, 4%. Time, 184 days
72. Principal, \$3564.90.	Rate, 3%. Time, 163 days.
73. Principal, \$2104.85.	Rate, 2%. Time, 319 days.
74. Principal, \$6312.24.	Rate, 10%. Time, 119 days.
75. Principal, \$3154.62.	Rate, 12%. Time, 133 days.
76. Principal, \$1009.40.	Rate, 11%. Time, 148 days.
77. Principal, \$1263.84.	Rate, 13%. Time, 101 days.

Note—The interest for years and months is found by the sixty-day method by multiplying the interest for 60 days, or two months, by one half the number of months.

78. Principal, \$1240.	Time, 9 mo. 27 da.	Rate, 3%.
79. Principal, \$3964.	Time, 4 mo. 24 da.	Rate, 21%.
80. Principal, \$6280.	Time, 7 mo. 13 da.	Rate, 41%.
81. Principal, \$3630.	Time, 6 mo. 22 da.	Rate, 51%.
82. Principal, \$1248.	Time, 5 mo. 14 da.	Rate, 11%.
83. Principal, \$1850.	Time, 8 mo. 26 da.	Rate. 21%.
84. Principal, \$4253.	Time, 1 yr. 3 mo. 1	9 da. Rate. 7%
85. Principal, \$5631.	Time, 2 yr. 5 mo. 2	5 da. Rate 8%
86. Principal, \$4280.	Time, 3 yr. 7 mo. 18	da. Rate 10%
87. Principal, \$3216.	Time, 4 yr. 10 mo. 29) da. Rate 21%

INTEREST.

DIRECTION .- Find the exact number of days, and work the exercises by the sixty-day method.

Prin., \$75.63. Rate, 2%. Time, Apr. 3, 1886, to Jan. 19, 1888.
 Prin., \$42.85. Rate, 3%. Time, May 7, 1886, to Dec. 30, 1887.
 Prin., \$95.43. Rate, 5%. Time, Mar. 8, 1886, to Nov. 18, 1886.
 Prin., \$27.68. Rate, ½%. Time, July 5, 1885, to Feb. 22, 1887.
 Prin., \$71.15. Rate, 1%. Time, May 6, 1885, to Aug. 21, 1887.
 Prin., \$39.60. Rate, ½%. Time, July 1, 1885, to Sept. 30, 1887.

Note.—In many examples labor can be saved by having the time and principal exchange places. Thus, instead of finding the interest of \$600 for 139 days, find the interest of \$139 for 600 days. The results will be identical.

94. Find the interest of \$600 for 139 days at 6%.

95. Find the interest of \$120 for 97 days at 7%.

96. Find the interest of \$300 for 219 days at 4%.

97. Find the interest of \$400 for 185 days at 3%.

98. Find the interest of \$180 for 187 days at 2%.

99. Find the interest of \$240 for 287 days at 8%.

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Find the accurate interest except where otherwise directed.

100. Find the amount of \$425 for 16 months at 7%.

101. Find the amount of \$1200 for 1 year 9 months at 8%.

102. What is a banker's gain in 2 years on \$12,000 deposited at 5% and loaned 22 times at $1\frac{1}{4}$ % a month?

103. A man borrows \$1840 at 5% and loans it immediately at $\frac{1}{2}$ %. What does he gain in 9 months?

104. A man invested \$2400 in a publishing business, and at the end of $2\frac{1}{2}$ years he withdrew \$2940, being investment and profits. What annual rate of interest did his investment pay?

ethod by umber of

7%. 8%. 10%. $2\frac{1}{2}\%$.

105. Find the amount of \$453.60 from September 5, 1886, to June 13, 1887, at 9%. (Sixty-day method.)

106. A man pays \$375 a year rent for a house worth \$5400. Will he gain or lose, and how much in 4 years, if he borrows money at 7% to purchase the house?

107. Bought a piece of property for \$3600 and agreed to pay for it in 8 months with interest at 8%. What amount will be due at the expiration of the time?

108. What must be paid for a loan of \$1800 for $3\frac{1}{2}$ months, at 11% a month?

109. A merchant charges 1% a month on over-due accounts. How much should he collect for an account of \$428.30 which is 7 months over-due ?

110. A man invests \$9640 so that it yields him an annual income of \$1156.80. What is the rate of interest?

111. At what rate per annum will any sum double itself in 5 years?

112. What is the rate of interest when \$7500 yields an income of \$62.50 a month?

113. In what time will any sum of money double itself at 61 %?

114. The half-yearly interest on a mortgage at 7% is \$385. What is the face of the mortgage ?

115. A boy is now 17 years old. How much must be invested for him at 7%, simple interest, that when he is 21 he may have \$64,000?

116. At what rate will the interest of \$652 for 15 years be 42 \$440.10?

10

117. In what time will \$230 amount to \$391 at 7% ? X

118. What sum will amount to \$2650 in 8 months at 9%? 1

2500 119. The interest of a sum of money for 11 years at $3\frac{1}{2}\%$ is \$77. What is the sum? 201

5, 1886, to

e borrows

ed to pay nt will be

months,

accounts. ·) which is

an annual

itself in 5

n income

itself at

is \$385.

invested he may

years be 42.

10 9%? 250 t 3½% is_ 200

INTEREST.

120. A sum of money amounts in 9 years at 11% to \$597. In how many years will it amount to \$663?

121. The interest of \$1460 for one day is 25 cents. Find the rate per cent per annum?

122. The interest of a sum of money at the end of 15 years was ? of the sum itself. What rate per cent was charged?

123. At $3\frac{1}{2}$ % for 8 years what fraction of the principal is $\frac{1}{2}$ of the interest?

124. What sum bearing interest at $4\frac{1}{2}$ % will yield an annual income of \$1200?

125. A house which cost \$4800 rents for \$24 a month. What is the net rate per annum of interest received on the investment if the average annual expense is \$48?

126. At how much a month should I rent a house which costs me \$3200 that I may receive 6% per annum upon the sum expended?

127. What sum in 10 months at $4\frac{1}{2}\%$ will produce \$3.96 interest?

128. What sum in 8 months at 6% will amount to the interest \$ 5 or \checkmark of \$1000 for 13 years at 4%?

129. In what time at simple interest will \$723.16 $\frac{1}{2}$ return $\frac{2}{3}$ of itself in interest at $7\frac{1}{2}$ %?

130. A certain sum in 8 months amounts to \$790, and in 19 months to \$845. What is the sum and the rate per cent?

131. What is the value of a house if a rental of \$15 a month is equivalent to $7\frac{1}{2}$ % on the value ?

132. A merchant who clears 15% annually on his investment is forced by poor health to give up his business and to lend his money at $6\frac{1}{2}\%$. His income is thus reduced \$2,550. Find his investment.

133. The interest on a certain sum in 9 years is $\frac{3}{2}$ of itself. Find the rate of interest.

EXERCISES IN COMPOUND INTEREST.

Illustrative Exercise.

Find the compound interest of \$1000 for 3 years at 4%.

FIRST METHOD.

\$1000.00	Principal.
40.00	Intcrest for 1 year.
\$1040.00	Amount for 1 year, or second principal.
41.60	Interest for 1 year.
\$1081.60	Amount for 2 years, or third principal.
43.26	Interest for 1 year.
\$1124.86	Amount for 3 years.
1000.00	Original principal.
\$124.86	Compound interest for 3 years

SECOND METHOD.

Amount of \$1 for 1 year at 4% = \$1.04. Amount of \$1 for 3 years at $4\% = $(1.04)^{\circ}$. $$(1.04)^{\circ} = $(1.04 \times 1.04 \times 1.04) = 1.124864 . Amount of $$1000 = $(1000 \times 1.124864) = 1124.86 . Compound interest=\$1124.86 - \$1000 = \$124.86.

NOTE.-If the interest is compounded semi-annually the rate per cent is onehalf of the yearly rate; if quarterly, one-fourth of the yearly rate.

134. Find the compound interest of \$1000 for 3 years at 6%.

135. Find the compound interest of \$1200 for 2 years at 7%

136. Find the compound interest of \$2000 for 4 years at 2%.

137. Find the compound interest of \$5000 for 3 years at 5%.

138. Find the compound interest of \$8200 for 2 years at 4%.

INTEREST.

Norg.—To find the compound interest for a period of years and months, find the *cmount* for the even years, and add to this sum the interest on it for the fractional part of a year. Subtract the principal and the interest will remain.

139. Find the compound interest of \$750 for 2 years 6 months \$784.77 x at 3%.

140. Find the compound interest of \$120 for 3 years 3 months at 4%.

141. Find the compound interest of \$840 for 2 years 9 months at 7%.

142. What will \$1000 amount to in 2 years, compounded annually at 4%?

143. What will \$1000 amount to in 2 years, compounded semiannually at 4%?

144. What will \$2000 amount to in 1 year 6 months, compounded quarterly at 4%?

145. If, at the age of 25 years, a person places \$1000 on interest, compounded annually at 6%, what will be the amount due him when he is 50 years old? $(1.06^{25}=4.2919)$.

146. A father deposits \$100 in a savings bank when his child is 1 year old. How much will this amount to when the child is 21 years old, interest being compounded semi-annually at 4%? $(1.02^{40}=2.208)$.

147. What sum must be placed at 8% compound interest to amount to \$1000 in 5 years?

148. How much should a father invest at 5% compound interest for his son who is 3 years old so that when he comes of age he may have 10,000? ($1.05^{18}=2.4066$).

149. Find the difference between the compound and simple interest of \$3000 for 3 years at $7\frac{1}{2}\%$.

150. What is the interest of \$3000 for 12 years at 4% per annum, compounded quarterly? $(1.01^{48}=1.6122.)$

151. Find the amount of \$10 in 55 years, compounded annually at 10%. (1.1⁵⁵=189.0591.)

nt is one-

%.

at 6%. at 7% at 2%. at 5%. at 4%.

II. COMMERCIAL PAPER.

Commercial paper embraces notes, checks, drafts, bills of exchange, etc.

A note is a written promise to pay a specified sum at a certain time.

The person who *promises* is called the **maker**, and the person to whom he promises is called the **payee**.

The face of a note is the sum of money promised.

A negotiable note is one which is made payable to the bearer, or to the order of the *payee*. A negotiable note can be sold or transferred.

A note is **non-negotiable** when it is payable only to the person or persons named in the note.

A draft is a written order by one person on another for the payment of a specified sum. Drafts on foreign countries are called *bills of exchange*.

A **bank draft** is a written order by one bank on another for the payment of a specified sum to a person named therein, or tohis order.

Drafts are made payable at sight, on demand, or at a cevtain time after date or after sight.

A bank check is a draft on a banking house, or on a bank, and is usually presented for payment.

Checks are not considered as actual payment until they are paid, but in the course of business are regarded as cash.

Sight drafts, like checks, are presented for payment.

Drafts drawn on time are first presented for acceptance.

The person to whom the draft is presented *accepts* it by writing across the face the word "Accepted," with the date, over his signature.

COMMERCIAL PAPER.

145

, bills of

a certain

e person.

e to the · e can be

y to the

for the tries are

other for in, or to

certain.

a bank,

they are

.

ice.

writing over his An indorser of a note or draft is a person who writes his name on the back of it.

The person who indorses a note or draft, by so doing guarantees its payment.

An indorsement in blank is simply the signature of the indorser written across the back of the note or draft.

When indorsed in this way the note or draft is made payable wit^{*} but further indorsement to any person holding it.

. • Dote or draft is **indorsed in full** when the indorser states, over his signature, the person to whose *order* the note or draft is to be paid.

If an indorser does not wish to guarantee the payment of a note or draft he writes "Without recourse" over his name when indorsing.

A protest of a negotiable note or draft is a formal statement by a notary public that said note or draft was presented for payment or acceptance and was refused.

A note, when due, must be presented at the place at which it is made payable.

The day of maturity is the day on which a note becomes due.

The days of grace are the three days beyond the specified time usually allowed for payment.

MISCELLANEOUS HINTS.

The words used to make paper negotiable are order and bearer. The date means the day, month, and year.

A note may be written on any paper with ink or with pencil, and it will be good. A note made on Sunday is void.

Notes bear interest only when so stated, except after maturity.

If no time of payment is mentioned in a note it is payable on demand.

The holder of negotiable paper has a claim against every person whose name appeared on it at the time he received it. K

"Value received" need not necessarily be inserted in negotiable paper, but it is desirable for the holder.

Notes obtained by fraud cannot be collected.

A note made by a person while intoxicated cannot be collected.

The maker of a note is liable to any person who becomes the owner.

A demand note is valid until presented.

The amount is usually stated in both writing and figures.

When a bank stamps or "ccrtifies" a check it becomes responsible for the amount.

A bank cannot charge payment of a *forged* check to the one whose name was forged to it.

Checks should be presented for payment within a reasonable time.

A draft on two persons who are partners need be presented to but one of them. A draft does not bind anyone until it is accepted.

Each indorser, by his act in indorsing, certifies to the genuineness of each previous incorsement.

A due bill is an acknowledgment and evidence of debt.

Ignorance of law does not excuse any person.

No contract is good unless there be a consideration.

Usually the name of a firm may be signed by any one of the partners.

When the day of maturity falls on Sunday, or on a holiday, the note is payable on the day following.

If an indorser pays a note he can afterwards negotiate or transfer it.

Releasing a prior indorser releases all who follow.

FORMS OF COMMERCIAL PAPER.

No. I.

\$400.	Philadelphia, Pa., May 3, 1886.
Due S. L. Clemens,	or order, for value received,
Four Hundred	Dollars.
	R. J. Burdette.

The above is a **due bill** payable ir money. It is one of the simplest forms of negotiable papers. If S. L. Clemens wishes to transfer this bill to some one else he writes his name across the back of it. The third party can then hold both Clemens and Burdette responsible. If payment is to be made in goods the words "payable in goods from my store, on demand," or something similar, should be inserted.

COMMERCIAL PAPER.

er, but it is

he amount.

ne of them.

f each pre-

. is payable

86. eived, Ilars. tte.

est forms of one else he oth Clemens is '' payable nserted. No. 2.

\$200.	Rochester NV Mand 15 1000
Two years	11.1.1., March 15, 1886.
Charles Dudles	Warner after date I promise to pay
Two Hundred	or order,
Value receive	Dollars.
	<i>E. P. Roe.</i>

There being no place of payment stated in the above note it is payable at Warner's residence. It will mature 3 days after March 15, 1888, and if not paid then it will draw interest at the legal rate until paid.

No. 3.

\$225.	Toronto, Ont., January 3, 1886
Thirty days David Connerfi	after date I promise to pay
Two Hundred at the Imperial	and Twenty-Five or bearer, Bank. Value received.
	Nicholas Nickleby.

The above note is payable at the Imperial Bank 33 days after January 3, or February 5. It is drawn, payable to bearer, and does not need Copperfield's indorsement to make it transferable. If not paid at maturity it will bear interest from that date.

No. 4.

\$320.50.	Boston, Mass Ana	unt 9 1000
Two months after	date we jointly and any	ast 5, 1886.
to pay Perry Maso	i de Co.,	erally promise
Three Hundred and	Twenty	50 Dell
with interest at 7%	. Value received.	100 Donars,
	John Greenlea	f Whittier.

James Russell Lowell.

If the above note were written "we jointly promise," it would be a **joint note**, and each of the makers would be responsible for one-half of the amount. Either of the makers of the above note could be sued for the full amount. The note will be due 2 months and 3 days after August 3, or October 6, and draws interest from its date at 7% per annum.

	No.' 5.
\$120.	Nashville, Tenn., June 12, 1886.
At sight	pay to the order of
Guy Mannering	
One Hundred as	d Twenty Dollars,
value received,	and charge to account of
To Adam Be Jefferson	e, City, Mo. William Dobbin.

This draft is to be paid or cashed when presented. It must be indorsed previously by Guy Mannering.

R1	~	R
EN4	о.	- 10

\$240.	Chicago, Ill.	, December 9, 1886.
At thirty days	' sight	- pay to the order of
Two Hundred an	d Forty	Dollars,
To Walt Whit Cincing	tman, nati, Ohio.	Bret Harte.

This draft must be presented to Walt Whitman, for acceptance, by Will Carleton or his agent. Whitman accepts the draft by writing across the face the word "Accepted," with the date and his signature. When accepted the draft becomes a note, payable 30 days after the date of acceptance. Drafts are sometimes drawn a certain number of days after date.

No	- 7
110.	- 1 •

No.	Milwaukee, Wis., August 5, 1886.
THE	FIRST NATIONAL BANK
Pay One Hundred	Henry Ward Beecher, or order, l Dollars.
\$100.	T. DeWitt Talmage.

This check must be indorsed by Beecher before being presented for payment. Banks generally require checks to be indorsed, whether they are payable to order or bearer.

COMMERCIAL PAPER.

EXERCISES IN TIME.

Norg. — When the time is given in months reckon even months, and add 3 days of grace. The date of the note and the time are given. It is required to find the date of maturity.

152. Jan. 5.	Time, 3 mo.	169 July 15	7 11'	0
59 E.L O	.,	10%. July 10.	Time,	9 mo.
. JJ , Feb, 3,	Time, 6 mo.	163. May 23.	Time,	8 mo.
154. Dec. 7.	Time, 4 mo.	164. June 27.	Time,	4 mo.
155. Nov. 9.	Time, 2 mo.	165. Apr. 15.	Time,	3 mo.
156. Sept. 3.	Time, 3 mo.	166. Mar. 22.	Time,	2 mo.
157. Oct. 10.	Time, 9 mo.	167. May 20.	Time, 4	1 mo.
158. Jan. 8.	Time, 5 mo.	168. June 18.	Time, #	í mo.
159. Sept. 7.	Time, 6 mo.	169. July 29.	Time, 10	100
160. Nov. 9.	Time, 8 mo.	170. Apr. 30.	Time, 11	mo.
161. Dec. 1.	Time, 5 mo.	171. May 30.	Time, 13	mo.
		-	-, -0	

Note. ---When the time is given in days the exact days are to be reckoned. Add 3 days of grace. The date of the note and time are given. It is required to find the date of maturity.

100 0 1 1	· · · ·		
172. Sept. 1	2. Time, 15 days.	182. July 3.	Time, 60 days.
173. Nov. 23	3. Time, 20 days.	183. June 4.	Time, 90 days.
174. Dec. 24	I. Time, 30 days.	184. Apr. 9.	Time, 70 days.
175. Jan. 18	3. Time, 35 days.	185. May 3.	Time, 65 days.
176. Aug. 19	. Time, 45 days.	186 . Mar. 3.	Time, 45 days
177. Mar. 30	. Time, 60 days.	187. May 9.	Time, 85 days
178. Oct. 21	. Time, 18 days.	188. June 7.	Time, 47 days
179. Nov. 13	. Time, 40 days.	189. July 8.	Time, 35 days
180. Feb. 10.	Time, 10 days.	190. May 9.	Time, 90 days.
181. Mar. 19,	Time, 30 days.	191. June 5.	Time, 20 days

86. ler of

llars,

in.

dorsed pre-

86.

ler of

ollars,

rte.

Vill Carleton e the word it becomes a nes drawn a

386.

K order,

ollars.

age.

or payment. able to order

Note. — When the year is not given consider February as having 28 days. The date of the note and the time are given. It is required to find the number of days to maturity.

192. Jan. 23.	Time, 2 mo.	198. July 4.	Time, 10 mo.
193. Feb. 28.	Time, 3 mo.	199. June 5.	Time, 13 mo.
194. Mar. 30.	Time, 4 mo.	200. May 9.	Time, 15 mo.
195. Sept. 18.	Time, õ mo.	201. Apr. 8.	Time, 18 mo.
196. Oct. 20.	Time, 6 mo.	202. Mar. 5.	Time, 14 mo.
197. Dec. 19.	Time, 3 mo.	203. July 3.	Time, 20 mo.

EXAMINATION QUESTIONS.

1. Explain the terms : negotiable, indorser, acceptance, protest.

2. When is a note or draft non-negotiable?

3. Distinguish between the words or bearer and or order.

4. How does a sight draft differ from a check ?

5. Is it necessary that a note be *protested* when payment is refused ?

6. If a note falls due on Sunday when is it legally due ?

7. What does a time draft become when it is accepted ?

8. What will E. P. Roe have to do to make Note No. 2 payable to the order of J. T. Trowbridge?

9. Is note No. 3 transferable without indorsement?

10. Why are the words "value received" inserted in notes?

11. Write a check to draw money from your account in the bank.

12. Can paper be transferred after maturity?

13. What is meant by accommodation paper?

14. What does an indorser do by his act?

15. Is the maker of a note bound to pay if demand is not made on the day of maturity?

16. When is a note due if dated January 31 and made at one month?

BANK DISCOUNT.

days. The aber of days

e, 10 mo.

e, 13 mo.

e. 15 mo.

e. 18 mo.

e, 14 mo.

e. 20 mo.

, protest.

der.

ment is

ie ? 1 ? 5. 2 pay-

notes? t in the

l is not

at one

III. BANK DISCOUNT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The sum charged by a *bank* for eashing a note or time draft is called **bank** discount.

This discount is the simple interest, paid in advance, for the number of days the note or draft has to run.

Wholesale business houses usually sell goods on time and take notes from the retailers in payment. These notes are not often for a longer period than three months. Some are placed in the banks for collection, others are discounted.

When a note is discounted at a bank the *payee inderses it*, making it payable to the bank. Both maker and payee are then responsible to the bank for its payment.

The **proceeds** of a note is the amount on which the discount is reckoned, less

If the note is drawing interest the discount will be reckoned on and deducted from the amount due at maturity.

Most notes discounted at banks do not draw interest.

004 D .

2

The time in bank discount is always the number of days from the date of discout Bing to the date of maturity.

EXERCISES IN TIME.

DIRECTION. —The date of the note, the time it has to run, and the date of discount are given. It is required to find the number of days from the date of discount to the date of maturity.

204. Date of note, Jan. 18	. Time, 3 mo.	Discounted Jan. 18.
205. Date of note, Nov. 21	. Time, 4 mo.	Discounted Nov 21
206. Date of note, Dec. 13.	Time, 5 mo.	Discounted Jan 13
207. Date of note, Mar. 14.	Time, 2 mo.	Discounted Mar 18
208. Date of note, Aug. 22.	Time, 3 mo.	Discounted Sont 14
209. Date of note, May 30.	Time, 30 da.	Discounted June 15
210. Date of note, Jan. 28.	Time, 30 da	Discounted June 15.
11. Date of note, Nov. 14.	Time, 60 da	Discounted Jan. 31.
12. Date of note. July 12	Time 45 de	Discounted Nov. 20.
13 Data of mate C + 10.	11me, 40 da.	Discounted July 20.
10. Date of note, Sept. 19.	Time, 90 da.	Discounted Oct. 10.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

Illustrative Exercises.

1. A note of \$250, dated July 7, payable in 60 days, is discounted July 7 at 6%; find the proceeds.

This note is due in 63 days, or September 8. The accurate interest of \$250 for 63 days at 6% is \$2.59. The proceeds, then, will be \$250 - \$2.59, or \$247.41.

2. A note of \$730, dated August 3, payable in 3 months, is discounted September 15 at 7%; find the proceeds.

The date of maturity is November 6.

The note then has to run, or is held by the bank, from September 15 to November 6, or 52 days.

The accurate interest of \$730 for 52 days at 7% is \$7.28.

The proceeds, then, will be \$730 - \$7.28, or \$722.72.

DIRECTION.—Find the proceeds of the following notes. Compute the discount ' on the basis of both 360 and 365 days to the year.

- 214. Face, \$340. Time, 3 months. Rate of discount, 6%. Date of note, March 13. Date of discount, March 13.
- 215. Face, \$400. Time, 4 months. Rate of discount, 6%. Date of note, May 24. Date of discount, May 24.
- 216. Face, \$300. Time, 5 months. Rate of discount, 6%. Date of note, April 13. Date of discount, April 13.
- 217. Face, \$420. Time, 2 months. Rate of discount, 8%. Date of note, June 3. Date of discount, June 3.
- 218. Face, \$1000. Time, 4 months. Rate of discount, 7%. Date of note, July 24. Date of discount, August 3.
- 219. Face, \$1200. Time, 3 months. Rate of discount, 5%. Date of note, August 15. Date of discount, August 30.
- 220. Face, \$2410. Time, 3 months. Rate of discount, 9%. Date of 1 ote, Sept. 14. Date of discount, October 3.

PARTIAL PAYMENTS.

221.	Face, \$390.	Time 90 days.	. Rate of discount, 10%.
	Date of note,	October 14.	Date of discount, Nov. 4
222	Face \$4000	Time 00 1	.,

222. Face, \$4000. Time, 60 days. Rate of discount, 12%, Date of note, July 3. Date of discount, August 1.

223. Face, \$2500. Time, 90 days. Rate of discount, 9%. Date of note, June 3. Date of discount, August 13.

224. Face, \$500. Time, 45 days. Rate of discount, 6%. Date of note, May 16. Date of discount, May 16. This note bears interest at 7%.

225. Face, \$2400. Time, 120 days. Rate of discount, 8%. Date of note, August 13. Date of discount, August 29. This note bears interest at 5%.

226. Face, \$385.62. Time, 113 days. Rate of discount 10%. Date of note, June 14. Date of discount, August 3. This note bears interest at 7½%.

IV. PARTIAL PAYMENTS.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A partial payment is a payment of only a part of a debt.

When a partial payment of a note is made it is **indorsed**, or written on the back of the note.

An indorsement states the date and amount of the payment.

Special receipts are sometimes given for such payments.

To compute the interest on a note, when partial payments have been made, proceed as follows :---

1. Compute the interest to the time of the first payment.

2. Subtract the first payment from the sum of the interest and principal.

3. Treat the remainder as a new principal.

4. Proceed in the same manner with the remaining payments until the date of settlement.

5. Do not subtract any payment that does not equal or exceed the interest due. Add such payments to the payment following.

ys, is dis-

2.59.

nonths, is

from Sep-

7.28.

he diseount

nt, 6%. rch 13.

nt, 6%. 24.

t, 6%. l 13.

t, 8%. 3.

nt, 7%. st 3.

unt, 5%. Igust 30.

nt, 9%. ber 3.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION. - Compute interest by the sixty-day method.

- 227. Note.—Date, June 15, 1886. Prin., \$300. Time, 3 years.
 Payments.—June 15, 1887, \$120; June 15, 1888, \$90.
 How much is due at maturity (June 18, 1889)? Rate, 6%.
- 228. Note. Date, August 3, 1885. Prin., \$400. Time, 2 years.
 Payments. Nov. 3, 1885, \$100; Feb. 3, 1886, \$150.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 6%.
- 229. Note.—Date, July 4, 1885. Prin., \$600. Time, 90 days.
 Payments.—Aug. 15, 1885, \$150; Sept. 3, 1885, \$200.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 8%.
- 230. Note.—Date, May 3, 1886. Prin., \$450. Time, 3 months.
 Payments.—June 14, 1886, \$100; July 12, 1886, \$210.
 How much is due at maturity ? Rate, 4%.
- 231. Note Date, Mar. 15, 1886. Prin., \$1000. Time, 120 days.
 Payments. April 16, 1886, \$400; May 3, 1886, \$200.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 10%.
- 232. Note.—Date, Sept. 27, 1886. Prin., \$1200. Time, 8 months. Payments.—Oct. 14, 1886, \$640; Jan. 3, 1886, \$220. How much is due at maturity? Rate, 6%.
- 233. Note.—Date, Nov. 27, 1886. Prin., \$2540. Time, 60 days.
 Payments.—Dec. 13, 1886, \$1140; Jan. 15, 1886, \$360.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 6%.
- 234. Note.—Date, Mar. 15, 1886. Prin., \$390. Time, 6 months.
 Payments.—April 5, 1886, \$120; June 21, 1886, \$100.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 7%.
- 235. Note.—Date, March 3. 1885. Prin., \$1000. Time, 3 years.
 Payments.—March 3, 1886, \$100; Sept. 3, 1887, \$300.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 12%.
- 236. Note.—Date, April 22, 1885. Prin., \$1200. Time, 5 mos.
 Payments.—May 3, 1885, \$125; Aug. 7, 1885, \$25.
 How much is due at maturity? Rate, 9%.

REVIEW.

155

\$72

V. REVIEW.

EXERCISES IN TRUE DISCOUNT.

Note.—The **present worth** of a debt due at some future time is its value now. In business, the *present worth* is the principal less the interest. The *true* present worth, however, is such a sum that, if placed at interest now, would amount to the face of the debt in the given time. The difference between the *true* present worth and the principal is termed the **true discount**. The *true discount* is the interest on the *true present worth*, while *bank discount* is the interest on the face of the debt by the amount of **\$1** for the given time at the given rate. If the interest = $\frac{a}{b}$ of the *principal*, then the *true discount* = $\frac{a}{a+b}$ of the principal. The problems given below are of no value whatever except as mathematical exercises.

237. Find the true present worth of a debt of \$3360 due in 2 years at 6%.

238. Find the true discount of a debt of \$4840 due in 3 years at 7%.

239. Which is the better, to buy flour at \$8 per barrel on 6 months credit or at \$7.50 cash, money being worth 6%?

240. Find the difference between the true and the bank discount of \$367.50 due in 3 years at $7\frac{1}{2}$ %.

241. The interest of a certain sum is $\frac{1}{5}$ of that sum. The true discount is \$12. What is the sum?

242. Find the true discount of \$4200, the interest for the given time being \$60.

243. The true discount of a certain sum is \$70. What is the interest?

244. If the true discount for 1 year is \$5, and the principal is \$60, find the rate per cent.

245. If the true discount for 1 year is $\frac{6}{7}$ of the interest, what is the rate per cent?

246. The interest on a sum of money for a certain time is 300, and the true discount is 240. Find the sum of money 1

3 years. 8, \$90. te, 6%.

2 years. 150.

0 days. \$200.

onths. \$210.

0 days. \$200.

onths. 220.

) days. \$360.

onths. \$100.

years. \$300.

5 mos..

247. The interest is $\frac{2}{3}$ of the principal, and the difference between the interest and principal is \$120. Find the true present 142 worth.

248. The interest is $\frac{1}{6}$ of the principal. The difference between the interest and principal is \$120. Find the true present worth.

249. The sum of the interest, amount, true present worth, and true discount of a certain principal is \$1250. Find the amount.

MISCELLANEOUS DRILL EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Compute interest on a basis of 365 days.

250. In how many years will \$1111.10 double itself at 10% simple interest?

251. The interest on a sum of money in 5 years is $\frac{5}{5}$ of the sum. What is the rate per cent?

252. In $33\frac{1}{3}$ years the simple interest of a certain sum of moncy is double the true discount for the same time. What is the rate of interest?

253. I buy a horse, and sell him at a profit of \$49, and find that I make as much per cent as the horse cost me. How much did the horse cost?

254. What sum must be lent at 8% to produce a yearly income of \$4650? \$ 5.8/25

255. At what rate must \$650 be lent to produce a yearly income of \$32.50? 5^{-9}

256. The proceeds of a note of \$350, which had 3 months to run, discounted at a bank at 6%, were invested in wool at 35 cents a pound. How many pounds were bought?

257. What principal loaned for 48 days at 6% will amount to \$3588.48? (Sixty-day method.)

258. What sum will in 5 years at 5% simple interest amount to \$1000?

present

nce bepresent

worth, ind the

•

at 10%

of the

money he rate

d find much

yearly

yearly

at 35

nount

REVIEW.

259. A and B invested \$500 each for 3 years at 5 per cent— A's at simple interest and B's at compound interest. Find the difference in the amount of interest they respectively receive.

260. A grocer gives 11 pounds of sugar for \$1 if cash is paid, and 10 pounds on one year's credit. What is his rate of discount?

261. An army lost 15% by disease, and 13% of the remainder by battle. There are 29,580 men left. How many were there at first?

262. If eggs are bought at 10 cents a dozen and sold at $1\frac{1}{2}$ cents each, how much is gained per cent?

263. If I buy at 60 cents a score, at how much a dozen must I sell to gain 40%?

264. The interest on a certain sum for 9 months at 5% is \$150 less than the interest on the same sum for 15 months at 4%. Find the sum.

265. The amount of a certain sum at simple interest for 3 years is \$558; for $4\frac{1}{2}$ years it amounts to \$612. Find the rate per cent and the sum. $\cancel{3}430$ $\cancel{3}20$

266. I borrow \$540 at sinple interest for 5 years. At the end of each year the rate is raised 1%. At the end of the time the total interest is \$189. What is the rate for the first year?

267. How much water must be added to 80 gallons of wine 80% strong to make it 50% strong t

268. A sum of money has doubled itself in 16 years at simple interest. What is the rate per cent?

269. I desire to raise \$994.50 by discounting 30-day notes at 6%. Find the face value of the notes. (Sixty-day method. Add 3 days grace).

270. A man failed to pay his tax when due December 1, 1885, and was obliged to settle it April 1, 1836, with $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ a month and \$2.50 costs added. He paid \$29.45. What was his tax ?

271. For how many years must \$125 be drawing interest at 4% to amount to \$200? 40 400

272. Find the simple interest of \$840 for 2 years 7 months 24 days at 8%. (Sixty-day method).

273. A retired merchant has an income of \$25 a day, his property being invested at 6%. What is he worth?

274. Show that the difference between the interest and the true discount of the same sum is the interest of the discount.

275. If the true present worth of \$838 due in 19 months is \$800, what is the rate per cent?

276. By lending a sum of money at 4%, and another sum at 5%, the total interest is \$68. If the rates are interchanged the interest is \$67. Find the sum lent at each rate.

277. At what rate per cent will a principal double itself, at simple interest, in 25 years?

278. The interest of a certain sum is $\frac{1}{2}$ of the principal. The amount is \$640. Find the principal.

279. At what rate per cent, simple interest, will a given sum become four times itself in 20 years?

280. A tradesman marks his goods with two prices, one for ready money and the other for a credit of 6 months. What fraction of the credit prices should the cost prices be, allowing 5% simple interest?

281. What yearly rate is equivalent to 8% compounded halfyearly? What rate compounded quarterly is equivalent to a yearly rate of $10\frac{19}{10}\%$?

282. If a woman buys eggs at 9d. a dozen, how many ought she to sell for 11 shillings to gain 10%?

283. I allow my broker $1\frac{7}{6}\%$. How much do I owe him for selling goods to the amount of £565 ?

284. In how many years will a man, paying interest at 7% on a debt for land, pay the face of the debt in interest?

REVIEW.

terest at

months

day, his

and the ount.

onths is

sum at ged the

self, at

I. The

en sum

one for What lowing

l halft to a

ought

im for

% on

285. A merchant sends \$10,246.50 to his agent in Chicago to invest in flour, after deducting his commission of $3\frac{1}{2}$ % of the sum invested. How many barrels of flour can he buy at \$5.50 per barrel?

286. A grocer buys sugar at 6 cents per pound. Allowing $12\frac{1}{2}\%$ of his sales for bad debts, at what price must he sell it to gain $16\frac{2}{3}\%$?

267. I bought an article and sold it so as to gain 10%. If it had cost 20% less and I had sold it for \$1 less I would have gained 25%. Find the cost price of the article.

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Compute interest and discount by the sixty-day method.

Transaction.—Toronto, August 3, 1886. F. M. Knowler gives T. Gibson an order on C. Fraser & Co. for \$25, to be paid in goods from his store.

288. Write the order.

289. Gibson gives Knowles a receipt. Write it.

Transaction.—New York, July 5th, 1885. S. S. Packard borrows \$450 from P. T. Ames, and gives his note at ninety days in payment.

290. Write this note. Make it payable to bearer.

291. When will it be due?

292. If interest were charged at 6%, how much would be due at maturity?

Transaction.—New York, July 12, 1885. D. T. Ames has Packard's note discounted at the First National Bank at 7%, and receives cash in return.

-

293. Indorse the note before discounting it.

294. How much cash should Ames receive ?

Transaction.—Chicago, September 4, 1886. Richard Lees buys goods to the amount of \$35.80 from D. E. Lantz & Co., and gives his check on the Second National Bank in payment.

295. Write this check. Make it payable to order.

296. Indorse the check, making it payable to J. Tait's order.

Transaction.—St. Louis, November 15, 1886. W. A. Beer borrows \$337 from E. P. Rowell, and gives his note at three months in payment. Interest 7%.

297. Write this note. Make it payable to order.

298. When will it be due?

160

299. What amount will be duc at maturity ?

Transaction.—St. Louis, December 3, 1886. E. P. Rowell has Beer's note discounted at the First National Bank at 8% and receives cash in return.

300. Indorse the note before discounting it.

301. How much cash should Rowell receive?

Transaction.—Baltimore, March 3, 1886. S. E. Grover buys of S. G. Pryor 320 barrels of flour at \$5.20, and gives in payment cash \$1000; balance on account.

302. Make out S. E. Grover's bill. Receipt it.

Transaction.—Baltimore, April 3, 1886. S. G. Pryor draws a draft at 30 days sight on S. E. Grover, Portland, for the balance of his account. The draft is in favor of E. J. Garrison, Troy.

303. Write the draft.

304. Accept it for S. E. Grover. Date, April 5.

Transaction.—Troy, April 8, 1886. E. J. Garrison has the draft discounted in the Trader's Bank at 10% and receives cash in return.

305. Indorse the draft for E. J. Garrison.

306. How much cash should he receive ?

hard Lees Co., and nt.

t's order.

. A. Beer at three '

. Rowell t 8% and

Grover gives in

or draws for the farrison,

has the ves cash

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

I. STOCKS AND BONDS.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A corporation consists of several persons who are authorized by law to transact business as a single individual.

A share is one of the equal parts into which the *capital stock* of a corporation is divided.

The capital stock of a company is divided into shares usually of \$100 each.

The par value of a share is the value which is specified upon the face of the certificate representing the share.

The market value of a share is the sum for which it can be sold.

Stock is said to be at a **discount** when it is below its par value, and at a **pre**mium when it is above its par value.

That part of the **net earnings** which is divided among the stockholders is called a **dividend**.

Dividends are declared yearly, half-yearly, or quarterly, at a certain rate per cent of the par value of the stock.

A preferred stock is one on which a stated per cent is payable annually, out of the net earnings, before any dividend can be declared out of the common stock.

A bond is an obligation of a corporation or government to pay a certain sum of money at a certain time, with a fixed rate of interest payable at regular intervals.

A coupon bond is one with certificates attached, representing the different instalments of interest. These coupons are cut off and collected from time to time as the interest becomes due.

Consols are English Government securities.

A margin is a deposit made with a broker by a person who wishes to buy or sell stock for speculation, to enable the broker to carry the stock and protect himself against loss.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

- 1. How much stock will \$7200 buy at 80?
- 2. How much stock will \$16,800 buy at 75?
- **3.** How much stock will \$23,750 buy at $118\frac{3}{4}$?
 - L

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

4. How many shares will \$2767.50 buy at 921?

162

5. What is the market value of 210 shares at 95?

6. What is the market value of 322 shares at $88\frac{1}{2}$?

7. What is the market value of \$4200 stock at $78\frac{1}{2}$?

8. The par value of stock is \$6000. Find a 4% dividend.

9. The par value of stock is \$7200. Find a $3\frac{1}{2}$ % dividend.

10. The par value of stock is \$9600. Find a 6% dividend.

11. What is the market value of \$7200 stock at a premium of $7\frac{1}{2}\%$?

12. What amount of stock must be sold at $82\frac{1}{2}$ to produce \$3300?

13. If stock is quoted at $92\frac{1}{4}$, what is the market value of 150 shares?

14. What is the market value of \$14,400 stock at a discount of $6\frac{1}{5}\%$?

15. What per cent is realized by investing in stock at 120 paying 6% dividend?

16. What sum must be invested at 90 to produce an income of 720 if the rate of divide: \therefore is 8%?

17. What income is derived from investing \$6545 in stock at $93\frac{1}{2}$ paying a quarterly dividend of 2%?

18. How many shares of New York Central Railway stock can be bought for \$4125 at 823, brokerage $\frac{1}{2}\%$?

19. What income is derived from investing \$2345 in stock at $117\frac{1}{2}$, paying a semi-annual dividend of $3\frac{1}{2}\%$?

20. At what rate should stock paying annual dividends of 12% be bought to realize $7\frac{1}{2}$ % on the investment?

21. How many shares of railroad stock at $15\frac{6}{5}$ % premium can be bought with \$8111.25, allowing $\frac{1}{4}$ % for brokerage?

22. A quarterly dividend of $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ was declared by a manufacturing company. What was the income from 221 shares?

STOCKS AND BONDS.

23. A man bought 240 shares of railway stock at $3\frac{9}{8}$ % discount, and sold the same at $1\frac{7}{8}$ % premium. Find his net profit?

24. If a quarterly dividend of $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ is received on stock bought at 84, what is the rate of annual income on the investment?

25. A man sold, through a broker, 144 shares of railroad stock at $2\frac{1}{2}$ % discount, paying $\frac{1}{6}$ % brokerage. What did he receive?

26. A bank with a capital of \$500,000 declares a dividend of 7%. How much will a stockholder receive who owns 27 shares?

27. A railway company whose capital stock is \$3,225,000 declares a dividend of $4\frac{1}{2}\%$. What is the amount of the dividend?

28. A speculator sold, through a broker, 96 shares of telegraph stock at $5\frac{1}{6}\%$ premium, paying $\frac{1}{6}\%$ rokerage. How much did he receive?

29. At what discount must stock paying a half-yearly dividend of $4\frac{1}{2}$ % be purchased to enable the buyer to realize 10% on his investment?

30. Which is the better investment: stock paying a regular annual dividend of 6% and bought at 90, or stock paying 8% dividends and bought at 120?

31. A speculator paid \$17,920 for 224 shares of stock, and realized 5% on his investment when the annual dividends were paid. What was the rate per cent of dividend?

32. How much should I pay for 40 shares of railway stock at $3\frac{1}{2}$ % discount, the broker's charge being $\frac{1}{5}$ %?

33. A gentleman wishes to invest in U. S. bonds at $4\frac{1}{2}\%$ selling at 102 so as to provide a permanent annual income of \$1620 for his invalid son. How much should he invest?

34. If I buy a 6% town bond at 112, what is my rate of income?

35. What premium may I pay for Ninth National Bank stock which declares a dividend of 10% so as to realize $7\frac{1}{2}$ % on my investment?

dend.

vidend.

dend.

emium of

produce

te of 150

discount

k at 120

ncome of

stock at

stock can

stock at

dends of

ium can

nanufacs?

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

II. EXCHANGE.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

The system by which merchants in distant places discharge their debts to each other without the transmission of money is called **exchange**.

The business of exchange is usually conducted through the medium of banks.

A draft, or bill of exchange, is an order written by one person or bank directing a second person or bank to pay a specified sum to a third person.

Bills of exchange are negotiable or non-negotiable upon the same conditions, and are subject to the same indorsements, as notes.

The face or par of a bill of exchange is the sum expressed therein. It is the original obligation exclusive of interest, premium, discount, etc.

"When Chicago owes New York the same amount that New York owes Chicago, exchange will be at **par**; that is, drafts will sell at their face value. When Chicago owes New York more than New York owes Chicago, drafts on New York will sell at a **premium**; there will be more buyers of exchange than sellers, and drafts will sell for more than their face value. When Chicago owes New York less than New York owes Chicago, the demand in Chicago for draft on New York will be less than the supply, and drafts will sell for less than their face value, or at a **discount**."

Exchange on **England** is usually quoted by giving the value of £1 in dollars and cents.

The Intrinsic par value of £1 ls \$4.8665.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

36. How much exchange on London at 4.81³/₄ will \$821.99 buy?

37. Find the cost of a bill of exchange on London for £320 at $4.81\frac{3}{4}$.

38. Find the cost of a bill of exchange on Liverpool for £420 10s. at $4.87\frac{1}{4}$.

39. Find the cost in St. Louis of a draft on St. Paul for \$4700 at $\frac{1}{2}$ % discount.

40. Find the cost in New Orleans of a draft on Chicago for \$9600 at $\frac{1}{2}$ % premium.

41. What is the value in Mobile of a draft on New York for $$4000 \text{ at } \frac{3}{2}\%$ premium ?

42. The cost of a \$720 draft on Rochester was \$722.70. What was the rate of exchange?

EXCHANGE.

43. What is the value of a 30-day draft on Beston for \$4200 at $\frac{1}{5}$ % discount and interest at 6%?

44. What is the value of a 30-day draft on Philadelphia for \$8000 at $\frac{3}{8}$ % discount and interest 6%.

45. What are the proceeds of a draft of £840 10s. 6d. sold through a broker at $4.82\frac{5}{8}$, brokerage $\frac{1}{8}\%$?

46. The face of a draft is \$9460, and the rate of exchange $\frac{3}{8}\%$ discount. What is the value of the draft?

47. What is the value of a 60-day (63 days) draft on Chicago for \$5090 at $\frac{1}{4}$ % premium and interest 6% ?

NOTE.-Subtract the interest and add the exchange.

48. How large a 90-day draft must I draw so that when sold it will produce \$1000; exchange $\frac{1}{5}\%$, discount and interest 6%?

49. A firm in Cincinnati bought a 60-day draft on Boston for \$4800 at $\frac{5}{6}$ % discount; rate of interest 6%. What was the cost of the draft?

50. A commission merchant in Montreal sells 13,470 pounds of wool at $24\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound. If his commission is 4% and exchange $\frac{1}{8}\%$ premium, how large a draft can he buy to send to the consignor in Toronto?

51. What is the cost of a draft on New York for \$800, the course of exchange being $100\frac{3}{4}$?

52. What is the face of a draft on New York that can be purchased for \$1234.37 $\frac{1}{2}$, the course of exchange being $98\frac{3}{4}$?

53. A commission merchant sold a consignment of peaches for \$640, and after taking out his commission of 5% bought a draft on Wilmington at $\frac{3}{4}$ % discount. What was the face of the draft?

54. A sight draft on Pittsburg was bought for \$1771, exchange being at a premium of $\frac{5}{5}\%$. Find the face of the draft.

55. What must be the face of a draft at $2\frac{1}{2}$ % discount to cost \$2145?

56. What is the value of a 60-day draft on San Francisco for \$5000 at $\frac{1}{8}\%$ premium and interest at 7%?

ts to each

f banks. Ink direct-

conditions,

It is the

es Chicago, en Chicago will sell at drafts will than New be less than count." dollars and

.99 buy?

or £320

or £420

or \$4700

cago for

York for

. What

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

III. INSURANCE.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

Insurance is indemnity secured against possible loss or damage.

The policy is the contract or agreement between the insurer and insured.

The **premium** is the sum paid for insurance, and is usually a certain percentage of the amount insured.

The premium **rates** depend upon the nature of the risk and the length of time for which the policy is issued.

Fire insurance companies do not usually insure property for its full value.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

57. What will it cost to insure a house for \$3600 at $2\frac{1}{2}\%$?

58. What will it cost to insure a barn for \$500 for 5 years at 3%?

59. Find the cost of insuring a cargo of goods for \$12,000 at $\frac{7}{4}$ %.

60. What will it cost to insure a mill worth \$18,000 for $\frac{2}{3}$ of its value at $1\frac{3}{2}\%$?

61. A company charges \$60.75 for insuring a house for \$2700. What was the rate of insurance?

62. I paid \$1443.75 for insuring 5000 barrels of flour worth \$5.25 a barrel. What was the rate of insurance?

63. What is the premium for insuring a cargo of 4840 bushels of wheat, valued at \$1.20 a bushel, at $1\frac{1}{5}\%$ on $\frac{6}{5}$ of its value?

64. A man paid \$350 for insuring his dwelling at $\frac{7}{5}\%$ for one year. If destroyed by fire how much is he entitled to receive?

65. A building was insured for \$3000 in one company at $1\frac{1}{4}\%$, and for \$4000 in another company at $1\frac{1}{2}\%$. What was the total premium paid ?

66. A company insured a business block for \$90,000 at $\frac{1}{4}\%$. At the end of 5 years the block was destroyed by fire. If $\frac{3}{4}$ of the claim was paid how much did the company lose? (Interest not considered.)

BANKRUPTCY.

IV. BANKRUPTCY.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A resource or asset is any kind of property having a financial value belonging to a concern or business.

A liability is a debt owing by a concern.

The **net worth** of a concern is the excess of its resources over its liabilities. The **net insolvency** of a concern is the excess of its outside liabilities over its resources.

If a concern is unable to pay its debts it is said to be **bankrupt**, or **insolvent**. The assets of a bankrupt include debts due to him by others.

The creditors are the persons to whom the bankrupt is indebted.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

67. A man's assets are \$3000 and his liabilities \$4000. How much can he pay on the dollar?

68. A man's resources are \$4800 and his liabilities \$7200. How much can he pay on the dollar?

69. A bankrupt pays $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents on the dollar. How much will be lost by a creditor whose bill is \$750?

70. A bankrupt pays 42 cents on the dollar. How much will be lost by a creditor whose bill is \$378?

71. A merchant bought a bankrupt stock at 45 cents on the dollar and sold it 10% below the original price. How much per cent did he gain?

72. How much should a bankrupt pay on the dollar if his liabilities are \$15,000 and his assets \$4000?

73. A jobber bought a bankrupt stock at $34\frac{1}{2}$ cents on the dollar and retailed it at 10% above the original wholesale price. His expenses were 5% of the total sum of money received. Find his gain per cent on the goods.

74. A bankrupt's liabilities are three times as great as his assets. A certain creditor sold his goods at 25% above cost. What per cent does he lose?

ured. percentage

th of time

alue.

2%?

5 years

\$12,000

) for $\frac{2}{3}$ of

or \$2700.

ur worth

) bushels alue ?

% for one receive ?

 $7 ext{ at } 1\frac{1}{4}\%,$ the total

0 at $\frac{1}{4}$ %. If $\frac{3}{4}$ of (Interest

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

V. PARTNERSHIP.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

A **partnership** is an association of two or more persons for the purpose of conducting business.

Such an association is called a firm, a house, or a company.

Each individual of the association is called a partner.

An active partner is one who is publicly known as such.

A silent partner is one who, though actually a partner, is not publicly known.

A special partner is one who furnishes a certain portion of the capital of the firm, and holds himself liable for that amount only.

A nominal partner is one who has no real interest in the business, but who . assumes the responsibility of a partner by lending his name and eredit.

The **investment** of a firm is the aggregate of the money or property jointly contributed by the partners.

The **net gain** is the excess of the total gains of a firm over its total losses within a certain period.

BUSINESS EXERCISES.

75. A and B form a partnership to carry on a dry goods business. A invests \$2000 and B invests \$5000. Divide a gain of \$2065 in proportion to the investments.

76. A, B, and C gain \$6335 in a speculation. A invested \$2400, B \$3200, and C \$1400. How much of the gain should each partner receive?

77. X, Y, and Z rent a pasture for 5 months at \$16.20 a month. X puts in 3 horses for 3 months, Y puts in 5 horses for 2 months, and Z puts in 7 horses for 5 months. How much of the rent should each pay?

78. A starts in business at the beginning of the year with a capital of \$3600. At the end of 6 months he takes in B as a partner with \$4200 capital. They gain \$3420 during the year. How much of the goin should B receive?

79. A and B agreed to do a piece of work for \$130. A worked 7 days of 5 hours each, and B worked 5 days of 6 hours each. How much should each be paid?

PARTNERSHIP.

80. Two carpenters take a contract of building a house for \$2751. The one works steadily for 32 days of 10 hours each; the other works 24 days of 8 hours each. They pay \$1215 for material. How much of the profit should each receive?

81. Two teachers, A and B, establish a private school. They are to divide the profits equally. During the year A receives cash \$520, and pays expenses in cash \$127; B receives cash \$470, and pays expenses in cash \$92. How much money should A pay B to make an equal division of the gain?

82. Two men, M and N, are associated in trade. M receives \$25 a month and 10% of sales for managing the business. The net gain is then divided equally. Their sales for a certain year amount to \$9320, and their books show a gain of \$4220 before M's special interest is paid. Find N's share of the net gain.

83. Drs. P and Q are associated in professional work. They each receive and pay cash. On January 1, 1885, their bank book showed a balance of \$420. During the year Dr. P received cash \$3420, paid office expenses \$142, and deposited \$1340. During the same time Dr. Q received cash \$4840, paid office expenses \$94, and deposited \$2365. They issued *firm* checks amounting during the year to \$480. Adjust the bank balance, leaving \$500 on deposit.

84. A, B, and C are partners. A puts into the concern \$6000, but withdraws half of it at the end of 6 months; B puts in \$4000, and adds \$1000 to it at the end of 4 months; C puts in \$5000 for the whole year. The gain during the year is \$5100. What is each one's share?

85. Three contractors agree to build a bridge for \$14,188. The first has 42 men at work for 18 days and 20 men for 32 days. The second has 30 men for 10 days and 50 men for 35 days. The third has 24 men for 50 days. The first receives \$250 for superintending the work. How much is each contractor entitled to?

86. A and B hire a car for \$84 for the purpose of shipping stock. A puts in 2 horses and 6 oxen, and B puts in 5 horses and 4 oxen. They agree that the cost of a horse and an ox shall be as 3 is to 2. Divide the cost.

pose of con-

licly known. apital of the

ess, but who . . perty jointly

total losses

ods busia gain of

invested in should

\$16.20 a norses for much of

ar with a n B as a the year.

A worked urs each.

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

VI. SQUARE ROOT.

HINTS AND DEFINITIONS.

When a number is multiplied by itself the result is called the square of the number.

The square root of a given number multiplied by itself will produce the given number.

The square root is usually indicated by the sign $\sqrt{.}$

The square root of a small number can be found either by inspection or by factoring.

Illustrative Exercise.

Find the square root of 7056.

The prime factors of 7056 are 2, 2, 2, 2, 3, 3, 7, and 7. These can be divided into two groups of 2, 2, 3, and 7 each. Then $2 \times 2 \times 3 \times 7 = 84 =$ the square root of 7056.

WRITTEN DRILL EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .- Find the square root.

87 . 196.	92. 1024.	97. 17956.
88. 225.	93. 5625.	98. 11664.
89. 529.	94. 4096.	99. 17424.
90. 361.	95. 5184.	100. 21025.
91. 729.	96 . 6561.	101. 16384.

102. How long must the side of a square lot be to contain $2\frac{1}{2}$ acres?

103. One-half the square of a number is equal to 20808. Find three times the number.

104. A square lawn contains 576 square yards. What is the length of one side?

105. A garden contains 1875 square yards, and it is three times as long as it is broad. Find its length and breadth.

106. The product of the sum of two numbers by their difference is 756. The smaller number is 12. Find the larger.

REVIEW.

VII. REVIEW.

MISCELLANEOUS DRILL EXERCISES.

107. My income tax at 18 mills on the dollar is \$10.80. On what amount do I pay tax ?

108. Find the difference made in income by the transfer of $\pounds7680$ from the 3 per cents at 65 to the $3\frac{1}{2}$ per cents at 60.

109. If 14 men can do in 12 days as much as 21 men and 4 boys can do in 7 days, how many boys are equivalent to 9 men ?

110. A jeweler made three \$2 rings from \$5 worth of gold $\frac{10}{10}$ fine. How many \$1 rings would he make from \$6 worth of pure gold?

111. A horse thief going at the rate of 8 miles an hour has 32 miles of a start. He is pursued at the rate of 10 miles an hour. In how many hours will he be overtaken?

112. I sent my broker \$1248 to invest in flour at \$4 a barrel. How many barrels can be purchase after deducting his commission of 4% on the sum invested ?

113. A house is insured for $\frac{3}{4}$ of its value at $1\frac{1}{2}\%$. The premium is \$405. What is the value of the house?

114. If 6 iron bars 4 feet long, 3 inches broad, and 2 inches thick weigh 144 pounds, here much will 15 weigh, each $6\frac{1}{2}$ feet long, 4 inches broad, and 3 inches thick?

115. A man has an income equal to 10% of his capital. He pays a tax of \$164, which is $2\frac{1}{2}$ per cent of his income. What is his capital?

116. A gold ring is 18 carats fine. Find the percentage of alloy in it.

117. A city contains 56,870 inhabitants. It has increased 10% in 10 years. What was its population 10 years ago?

118. The true discount is § of the interest of the same sum and at the same rate. Find the rate.

ro of the the given

on or by

ach.

tain 2<u>1</u> 20808.

is the

e times

eir difger.

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

119. The interest of a certain sum is \$36. The true discount \$32. Find the sum.

120. The bank discount exceeds the true discount on a catain sum for 4 years by \$11²/₃, and for 8 years by \$40. Find bottom sum and rate.

121. What sum must I invest in 5% stock at 105 so that interpaying an income tax of 8 cents in the dollar I may have a yearly income of \$1840?

122. A fails in business owing \$7200. His assets are \$3000. How much will B receive if A owes him \$450.

123. Allowing the net sum to be raised by a corporation to be \$9700, and the allowance for collection to be 3%, what is the gross amount to be assessed?

124. The premium for insuring a school-house at 2% was \$40. For what sum was it insured?

125. A premium of \$64.80 was paid for the insurance of \$8640 on stock of goods. What is the rate per cent of insurance?

126. My house is valued at \$2500; furniture, \$1000; library, \$1000. I insure the whole for $\frac{3}{4}$ of their value at $\frac{3}{3}$ %. What is my annual premium ?

127. A grocer gives 14 ounces for a pound. How much does he cheat a cur' omer who trades with him to the amount of \$40?

128. What is the value of my property if I pay \$648.12 $\frac{1}{2}$ taxes at 15 $\frac{1}{4}$ mills on the dollar, and am assessed at $\frac{3}{7}$ of the real value?

129. A contractor agreed to build a house in 60 days, and employed 15 men. If his time is extended 15 days how many men may he discharge ?

130. A merchant insures goods at 2% for a sum sufficient to cover both the value of the goods and the premium. The goods are destroyed by fire and 75% of the claim is paid. The merchant gets \$782 less than the value of the goods. Find this value.
REVIEW.

liscount

n e e Final bo

have a

\$3000.

on to be t is the

vas \$40.

of \$8640 ce?

library, What is

ch does of \$40?

2½ taxes l value ?

ys, and v many

e goods he mernd this 131. How large a sight draft on London can be bought for \$1174.20 when exchange is quoted at 4.891?

132. At what rate of interest will \$1600 amount to \$1880 in $2\frac{1}{2}$ years ?

133. What principal will gain as much interest at 5% as \$250 will gain at 6% in the same time?

134. A has 50% more money than B. B's money is what percent less than A's?

135. Ten per cent of $\frac{2}{5}$ of a thing is what per cent of $\frac{1}{7}$ of it?

136. After deducting a commission of $2\frac{1}{2}$ % an agent remitted \$146.25. What was the amount collected ?

137. What must I ask for an article which cost me \$10 so that I can allow a discount of $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ and still make 20%?

138. A sewing machine was sold at a net profit of 40% on the cost and at a discount on the asking price of $12\frac{1}{2}\%$. If the cost was \$100 what was the asking price ?

139. A man buys stock at 75 and within a few days sells it at 79¹/₂. Find his gain per cent.

140. Bought 37 shares of telephone stock at 107 and sold the same at 2% discount. How much did I lose?

141. Find the interest of \$242.40 from March 15 until October 28. (Sixty-day method.)

142. A certain sum in $6\frac{1}{2}$ months at 8% amounts to \$939. What sum would it amount to in 2 years?

143. Which is the better investment, 5% stock at 75 or 6% stock at 80?

144. Find the amount, compound interest, of \$4000 for $2\frac{1}{2}$ years at 7%?

145. A certain bank charges 9% discount. What rate of interest does it receive?

146. How much must I invest in 4% stock at 84 to secure a net income of \$1127 after paying an income tax of 2%?

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

174

147. The difference between the simple and compound interest of a certain sum for 3 years at 6% is \$55.08. Find the sum.

148. If the interest equals $\frac{3}{14}$ of the principal, what fraction of the principal is the true discount?

149. I bought 7200 bushels of wheat at $87\frac{1}{2}$ cents on a credit of 6 months, and immediately sold it for 88 cents cash. I lent the money received for the full time at 6%. Find my gain.

150. A bought goods to the value of \$1400 and sold them to B at a certain gain per cent. B sold them to C for \$1694 at the same rate of gain. What did B pay for the goods?

151. Goods marked 45% in advance of cost are sold at a discount of 20% on the marked price. What did a lot of goods cost if the gain on them was \$25.20?

152. A's income in 1884 was 50% greater than B's. In 1885 A's increased 10% and B's decreased 10%. Together in 1885 their incomes amount to \$7650. Find the income of each in 1884.

153. An agent's commission on sales at $1\frac{3}{8}$ % was \$88. Find his employer's net receipts.

154. If a merc' ant adds 30% to the cost price of goods to make his selling price, what per cent must he deduct from his selling price to reduce it to cost price?

155. In a mixture of water and wine the water is 15% of the wine, and when 15 gallons of water are added the water is $22\frac{1}{2}\%$ of the wine. Find the original quantities.

156. A merchant sold a portion of his stock for \$1890. This was 15% of the value of what remained. Find the value of the original stock.

157. The entire profits of a business for 2 years amounted to \$7560. For the second year the profits were 10% greater than the profits of the first year. Find the profits for each year.

158. A factor sells 800 barrels of flour at 6.52 and remits the net proceeds, \$5089.50. Find his rate of commission.

REVIEW.

159. If a boat is rowed at the rate of 6 miles an hour and is driven 44 feet in 9 strokes of the oar, how many strokes are made in a minute?

160. A grocer sells 7 pounds of butter for what 8 pounds cost him. What is his gain per cent?

161. A booksellor buys books at 25% and 10% off list prices and sells at list prices. What per cent profit does he make?

162. How much money should I send my agent that he may buy 3000 pounds of tea at 36 cents and retain his commission of 4% of the sum invested?

163. A buys an article and sells it so as to gain $12\frac{1}{2}\%$. If he had bought it at 10% less and sold it for \$18 less he would have gained \$20. Find the cost of the article.

164. A farm is rented for \$300 in money and a certain number of bushels of wheat. When wheat is 80 cents a bushel the rent is $12\frac{1}{2}\%$ lower than when wheat is \$1.20 a bushel. Find the number of bushels of wheat.

165. A merchant bought a quantity of cloth and marked it at an advance of 40%. In selling he used a yard-stick 1 inch short. His total gain was \$330. Find the cost price of the cloth.

166. A sum of money in 10 years at 5% simple interest amounts to \$1250. In how many years more will it amount to \$1500?

167. The interest of 200 equals the true discount on 240, money being worth 6%. Find the time for which the latter sum is discounted.

168. A farmer buys a farm for \$8000 and pays cash \$3000, the balance of the price remaining on τ mortgage at 6%. If the income from the farm is \$450, what rate of interest does he obtain for his money ?

169. If the property of a city is valued at 21,000,000, and a man who owns property assessed at 7000 pays 120 taxes, what is the total tax levied?

i interest sum.

fraction

a credit . I lent gain.

them to 94 at the

at a disoods cost

In 1885 in 1885 each in

. Find

to make s selling

6 of the is $22\frac{1}{2}\%$

of the

nted to er than ar.

remits

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT,

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS EXERCISES.

DIRECTION .--- Compute interest and discount by the sixty-day method.

Transaction.—St. Louis, May 4, 1886. W. H. Sadler gives J. R. Lindsay an order on W. H. York & Co. for \$37.50, to be paid in goods from his store.

170. Write the order.

171. Write W. H. York & Co's account against W. H. Sadler.

Transaction.—Chicago, June 13, 1886. F. Wood buys of Ack or & Merrall, on 30 days' credit, 10 hhds. Sugar, 15,500 lbs., at 9½c., and 20 chests Young Hyson Tea, 1250 lbs., at 53c. August 1, F. Wood gives a check on the Sixth National Bank in payment.

172. Write Acker & Merrall's invoice.

173. Write a statement, July 31.

174. Write F. Wood's check.

Transaction.—Montreal, July 15, 1886. T. Wells borrows \$239 from H. Block and gives his note at 60 days in payment. Interest 10%.

175. Write this note.

176. What amount will be due at maturity?

Transaction.—Montreal, July 25, 1886. H. Block has T. Wells' note discounted at the Bank of Montreal at 8% and receives cash in payment.

177. Indorse the note for H. Block.

178. How much cash should H. Block receive?

Transaction.—Burlington, August 5, 1885. T. Haff draws cash \$25.30 from his account in the Third National Bank. The same day he deposits \$422.85 and issues a check in favor of E. A. Blakely for \$14.90.

179. T. Hall had \$193.84 on deposit. How much has he now? 180. Write both checks.

REVIEW.

Transaction.—E. Trout, of Toromo, owes W. H. Brown, of Jacksonville, \$520, and W. H. Brown owes O. R. Powers, of Chicago, \$420. Brown draws a sight draft (date, May 15) on Trout in favor of Powers for \$420, and a draft at 30-days sight in his (Brown's) own favor for the balance.

181. Write both of these drafts.

182. Accept each for E. Trout.

183. Who will present the \$420 draft, O. R. Powers' agent or W. H. Brown's agent ?

184. Write W. H. Brown's letter to O. R. Powers.

185. Write W. H. Brown's letter to E. Trout notifying him that he is about to draw the drafts.

Transaction.—West Liberty, May 5, 1886. J. A. Cox borrowed \$220 from Richard Lees and gave his note at 60 days, drawing interest at 7%, in payment. At maturity a payment of \$50 was made by Cox, and a new note at 2 months drawing interest at 8% was given to cover the balance.

186. Write both notes for Richard Lees.

187. How much will have to be paid when the second note matures?

Transaction.—J. J. Sparling, Rochester, in a letter to W. Williams & Co., Chicago, encloses cash \$50 and a 60-day note (date, May 3) for \$75 in part payment of an account of \$265. He asks permission to close up the account with a 90-day note.

188. Write the letter for J. J. Sparling.

189. Write the 60-day note.

190. When will it be due

191. Write W. Williams & Co's reply. (Favorable.)

192. Write W. Williams & Co's reply. (Not favorable.)

193. Indorse the note for W. Williams & Co., making it payable to the order of J. C. Jackman.

194. Find the interest on this note at 7%.

Μ

thod.

ller gives 50, to be

. Sadler.

buys of 500 lbs., , at 53c. . al Bank

borrows bayment.

k has T. 6 and re-

d draws ik. The favor of

he now?

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT.

Transaction. – W. V. Wright, Hamilton, orders by telegraph from Eldredge Bros., Philadelphia, 25 Hart's Composition (price ' 75 cents), and 50 Houston's Chemistry (price \$1).

195. Write the message for W. V. Wright.

196. Write the invoice for Eldredge Bros. (Discount 35%).

197. Write a letter acknowledging receipt of books.

Transaction.—Eldredge Bros. draw (date, August 3) on W. V. Wright at 30 days after date, their own favor, and have the draft discounted at the Third National Bank at 8%.

198. Write the draft.

199. Accept it for W. V. Wright.

200. Indorse it for Eldredge Bros.

201. What is the date of maturity?

202. Find the cash proceeds.

Transaction.—Cassville, April 24, 1886. J. W. Elliott borrowed 5 from T. M. Henry and gave his note at 90 days, draw 6 herest at 8%, in payment. At maturity a payment of \$132 ade by Elliott and a new note at 2 months, drawing interest at 10%, was given to cover the balance. J. W. Elliott paid the second note by a check on the First National Bank, at which bank the note was payable.

203. Write the first note for T. M. Henry.

204. Write the second note for T. M. Henry.

205. Henry requires an indorser. Indorse this second note yourself.

206. When will the second note be due?

207. Write the check.

legraph n (price

35%).

3) on d have

ott bor-) days, nent of rawing Elliott ank, at

d note

EIGHTH DEPARTMENT.

EXAMINATION EXERCISES.

PAPER I.

1. If the divisor were half what it is the quotient would be 2001302. What is the quotient?

2. Find the sum of the five largest numbers that can be expressed by the figures 2, 1, 0, 3, and 7.

3. The sum of two numbers is 156; their common factor is 13; the difference between the other two factors is 2. What are the numbers?

4. The sum of two numbers is 2472. Their difference is $\frac{2}{5}$ of the larger number. What are the numbers?

5. Find the cost of 3540 pounds of hay at \$22.50 a ton.

6. When wheat is quoted at \$1.35 a bushel how much is it worth a cental ?

7. Find the value in dollars and cents of a P. O. money order for £12 6s. 10d.

8. A man earns \$2.75 a day. How much will he earn in a month of July, the first day of which is Thursday?

9. How many days from March 13, 1885, until July 14, 1887?

10. Copper weighs 550 pc and tin 462 pounds to the cubic foot. What will be the weight of a cubic foot of a mixture of 6 parts copper to 5 parts tin?

PAPER II.

11. How many apples must be cut up to give 300 boys $\frac{2}{5}$ of an apple each?

12. Divide a sovereign between A, B, and C so that A may have four pence more than B, and B ten pence more than C.

13. A and B together have \$9000; 3 times A's money is to 4 times B's as 3 is to 6. How much has each?

14. Find the cost of 2984 pounds of pork at \$7.85 per hundredweight.

15. What will 4347 pounds of rice cost at 45 cents a stone?

16. How many inches are there in 2½ chains?

17. Two numbers are to each other as $3\frac{1}{2}$ to $4\frac{1}{2}$. The greater is 52; what is the less?

18. How many sheets of paper are there in $2\frac{1}{2}$ reams?.

19. If a ton of coal occupies 40 cubic feet, what will it cost to fill a bin 12 feet long, 6 feet wide, and 5 feet deep, with coal at \$6.50 a ton?

20. Two men or 5 boys can perform a piece of work in 7 days. How many men along with 3 boys would perform it in $3\frac{1}{3}$ days?

PAPER III.

21. Divide 630 between two men so that their shares will be to each other as 7 to 2.

22. The difference between $\frac{1}{3}$ and $\frac{1}{9}$ of a number is 18. What is the number ?

23. Find the cost of building a fence around a piece of land 89 rods square at 20 cents a rod.

24. How much water is there in a mixture of 50 gallons of wine and water worth \$1 a gallon, if 50 gallo: s of wine cost \$60?

25. How much is received for 18 pails of berries, each containing $\frac{2}{3}$ of a peck, at 12 $\frac{1}{3}$ cents a quart?

of an

A may C.

is to 4

ndred-

no?

greater

cost to

7 days. days ?

will be

What

and 80

lons of st \$60 ? h con**26**. What will it cost to dig a cellar 90 feet by 60 feet, and $7\frac{1}{2}$ feet deep, at 30 cents a cubic yard?

27. Bought oranges at 10 cents a dozen and sold them at 5 for 11 cents. How much was gained on 11 boxes, each containing 20 dozen?

28. Three men earned \$37.80 in 6 days of 10 honrs each. How much did each receive per honr?

29. I have an orchard 100 by 200 yards. The trees are 20 feet apart and 20 feet from the fence. How many trees are there ?

30. A mixture of black and green tea weighing 13 pounds is worth \$7.50. If the proportions of each are interchanged the mixture will be worth \$8.10. The black tea is worth 70 cents a pound. Find the price of the green tea.

PAPER IV.

31. How many hours were there in the year 1800?

32. A quarter-section of land yielded 40 bushels of wheat to the acre. What was received for the crop at \$2.10 per cental?

33. What will it cost to bronze a cube, each edge of which is 3 feet, at $1\frac{1}{2}$ cents a square inch?

34. At \$36 an acre a farm is worth \$3060. It is 80 rods wide. Find the cost of fencing it at 75 cents a rod.

35. How many coins, each half an inch in diameter, can be placed in rows, touching each other, on a table $3\frac{1}{2}$ feet by 6 feet?

36. Find the value of £15.635 in dollars and cents.

37. Find the cost of $2\frac{1}{2}$ miles of barbed wire at $1\frac{3}{4}$ cents a yard.

38. The sum of two numbers is 98, and their difference is 48. Four times the larger is how many times the smaller?

39. The owner of $_{1T}^{3}$ of a mine sold $_{1G}^{9}$ of his share for \$40,500. What should he who owns $\frac{3}{5}$ of the mine get for $\frac{5}{5}$ of his share ?

40. If 20 men can perform a piece of work in 12 days, how many men can perform another piece of work three times as large in $\frac{1}{5}$ of the time?

PAPER V.

41. Find the sum of all the prime numbers between 125 and 160.

42. The sum of two numbers is 100020002; their difference is 90009001. Divide twice the larger by $\frac{1}{2}$.

43. Find the value of a pile of wood 80 feet long, 20 feet wide, and 14 feet high, at \$3.20 a cord.

44. What number is the same fraction of $7\frac{1}{2}$ that $3\frac{1}{3}$ is of 15?

45. How many inclus in width must a lumber dealer measure off in measuring 16-foot lumber, $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick, to make 2000 feet?

46. How many boards 14 feet long and 10 inches wide will be required to build a sidewalk 40 rods long and 4 feet 8 inches wide?

47. How many miles will a boy walk to plow 6 acres, turning a furrow of 9 inches?

48. How many apple trees, planted in rows 15 fect apart each way, will be required to cover a plot of $7\frac{1}{2}$ acres, 40 rods long?

49. A merchant sold 384 barrels of flour, part at \$7.25 and the rest at \$5.50 a barrel. He received for the whole \$42 more than if he had sold all at $6.37\frac{1}{2}$ a barrel. How many barrels were sold at each price ?

50. How many tons of ice can be put into an ice house 20 feet long, 12 fect wide, and 8 feet high, supposing ice to be $\frac{9}{10}$ as heavy as water?

PAPER VI.

51. What will it cost for sufficient inch lumber to build a tight board fence 5 feet high around a 10-acre field, 80 rods long, if lumber costs \$18 per M.?

ys, how

125 and

fference

20 feet

of 15?

neasure ke 2000

de will 3 inches

turning

rt each long ? .25 and 2 more barrels

20 feet e ₁₀ as

build a 30 rods 52. Find the cost of 3 gross of pencils at the rate of 3 for 2 cents.

53. A horse trots $42\frac{1}{2}$ miles in $8\frac{1}{2}$ hours. At what rate per hour does he go?

54. Bought 220 bushels of wheat at \$1.30 a bushel and sold it at \$1.50 a cental. How much did I gain or lose ?

55. A house and lot cost \$4200; the cost of the lot is $\frac{2}{5}$ that of the house. Find the cost of each.

56. A person bought a certain number of barrels of flour for \$4400. He reserved 40 barrels for his own use and sold $\frac{4}{5}$ of the remainder for \$3952, which was \$608 more than cost. Find the number of barrels he bought.

57. A regiment marching 4 miles an hour take 128 steps in a minute. What is the length of each step?

58. How many feet of lumber are there in a 2-inch plank 16 feet long and 9 inches wide?

59. If a pint contains $28\frac{7}{8}$ cubic inches, how many pints of water are there in a tank 11 feet by 7 feet, and 3 feet deep, filled to the top?

60. The sum of two numbers is 35875, and their difference is equal to $\frac{3}{5}$ of the greater number. What are the numbers ?

PAPER VII.

61. If a merchant sells $\frac{3}{4}$ of an article for $\frac{7}{5}$ of its cost, what is his gain per cent?

62. A merchant buys cotton, and sells it at a profit of $\frac{1}{3}$ of the cost. Find the cost per yard if the selling price of 125 yards is equal to the profit on \$30 outlay.

63. The product of two numbers is 28, and one of them is $5\frac{1}{2}$; what is the other?

64. If the unit in which something is expressed be increased by one-third of itself, how must the number be altered?

65. How much will it cost to plaster a room 27 feet long, 15 feet wide, and 12 feet high, at 25 cents a square yard, allowing 432 square feet for doors and windows?

66. A man agreed to work for \$1.10 per day, and to forfeit 30 cents for each day he was idle. At the end of 24 days his wages amounted to \$19.40. How many days did he work?

67. I have a rectangular farm, the perimeter of which is 240 rods. It is twice as long as it is wide. How many acres does it contain ?

68. A vessel contains 3 parts brandy and 2 parts water. How much of the mixture must be drawn off and replaced by water that the new mixture may be half and half?

69. What is the value of a rectangular field 60 rods long and 40 rods wide at \$55 an acre?

70. A man rides a certain distance at the rate of 6 miles an hour, and walks back the same distance at the rate of $3\frac{1}{2}$ miles an hour. If it takes him $4\frac{3}{4}$ hours to go both ways, what is the distance?

PAPER VIII.

71. What will be the expense of an oil cloth for a hall $6\frac{1}{4}$ yards long and 12 feet wide at \$1.35 a square yard?

72. How many quarts of berries at 27 cents a quart will pay for $14\frac{2}{3}$ yards of carpet at \$1.87 $\frac{1}{3}$ a yard?

73. A boy paid 20 cents for 200 apples and pears together, buying 25 apples for a cent and 25 pears for 3 cents. How many of each did he buy?

74. How much water must be mixed with 80 gallons of wine at \$1.25 a gallon to reduce the value 75 cents a gallon ?

75. In a certain race A can beat B by 80 yards; but the day of the race proving foggy, A rows at $\frac{9}{0}$ of his usual rate and B at $\frac{9}{10}$ of his, when A beats B by only 26 yards. Find the length of the course.

long, 15 allowing

o forfeit lays his k?

h is 240 s does it

How y water

ong and

niles an B_2 miles t is the

hall $6\frac{1}{4}$

vill pay

ogether, . How

of wine

the day nd B at ength of 76. A young man whose salary is \$28 a week pays \$7.50 a week for board and \$9.45 a week for other expenses. In hów many weeks can he save enough to pay a debt of \$530.40?

77. Find the cost of papering a room 36 feet long, 24 feet wide, 18 feet high, with paper 18 inches wide at 1.50 a roll, allowing 64 square yards for doors and windows. (One roll=8 yards.)

78 A merchant's assets are \$4672 and his liabilities \$5840. How much can he pay on the dollar?

79. How much copper must be mixed with 35 pounds of silver of .9 fineness in order that the mixture may be of .7875 fineness?

80. If 3 apples and 5 peaches can be bought for 37 cents, and 2 apples and 3 peaches can be bought for 23 cents, how many apples can be bought for 20 cents?

PAPER IX.

81. How many cubical blocks $\frac{1}{4}$ of an inch on each edge can be put into a cubical box 2 inches deep, 2 inches wide, and 2 inches long?

82. A rectangular field $6\frac{1}{2}$ times as long as it is wide contains 300 acres. What is the distance around the field?

83. How high must wood be piled on a car which is 28 feet long and 8 feet wide to contain 14 cords?

84. I have $6\frac{1}{2}$ hours at my disposal. How far may I drive at -8 miles an hour that by walking back at $3\frac{1}{5}$ miles an hour I may have $22\frac{1}{2}$ minutes to rest?

85 Two cogged wheels work together, there being 32 cogs on one and 36 on the other. The larger wheel makes 24 revolutions per second. How often will the same cogs come in contact in one hour?

86. The ratio of the rates at which A and B can walk is as 4 to 5, and the distances they have to go are as 6 to 5. What will be the ratio of the times that they take ?







87. At \$125 per acre what is the value of a farm 240 rods long and 90 rods wide?

88. What is the cost of 50 boards, each 12 feet long, 8 inches wide, and $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches thick, at $4\frac{1}{2}$ cents per foot, board measure?

89. A postman delivered daily for a period of 42 days 4 letters more than on the previous day. The aggregate delivery for the last 18 days was the same as that for the first 24 days. How many letters did he deliver altogether ?

90. By selling an article for \$5 less than its value I lose $\frac{1}{5}\%$. Had I sold it for \$6 more than I did what would I have gained per cent?

PAPER X.

91. A mixture of 432 gallons of wine and water is in the proportion of 7 to 1.14 How much water must be added that the proportion may be as 6 to 1?

92. A merchant marks goods at an advance of $37\frac{1}{2}\%$ on cost, and allows a customer a reduction of 10% from his bill. Find the amount of that bill if the merchant makes a profit of \$9.90 on the transaction.

93. A man hired for a year and was to receive \$168 and 5 cords of wood. He left at the end of $7\frac{1}{2}$ months and received \$98 and the wood. Find the price of the wood per cord.

94. A grocer bought 100 loads of potatoes of 30 bushels. each at $37\frac{1}{2}$ cents a bushel. Allowing $7\frac{1}{2}$ bushels for waste, how much will he gain by selling the rest at 15 cents a peck?

95. Write down all the common measures of 720 and 1008. and find their sum.

96. What number must be added to 20009 to make it exactly divisible by 201?

97. Find the average of 243, 1001, 32, 407, 63, 82, 943, 822, 1001, and 396.

98. Multiply 3001004 by $\frac{1}{4}$ and divide the product by $\frac{1}{5}$.

99. Divide \$4.09 between two boys so that one will receive 40 cents more than twice what the other receives.

100. A clock which loses 3 minutes in 12 hours is 20 minutes fast at noon on Monday. What o'clock will it indicate at 6 o'clock on Thursday morning?

PAPER XI.

101. A train 90 yards long moving at the rate of $\frac{1}{2}$ mile a minute meets another train moving half as fast again, and passes it in $6\frac{3}{2}$ seconds. Find the length of the last train.

102. A Joy bought 12 pecks of nuts at 75 cents a peck and sold them at 10 cents a quart. How much did he make?

103. A man buys a house for \$8000. The taxes, insurance, etc., during the year amount to \$375. He rents the house for \$37 a month, and at the end of the year sells it for \$50 less than he paid for it. How much did he gain by the transaction?

104. The total increase of shipping at Quebec in a certain year was 1.7%. The decrease in the number of sailing vessels was 4.6%, and the increase in the number of steamers was 10.7%. Compare the number of steamers and sailing vessels.

105. A merchant bought goods and paid a certain import duty on them. He then marked them so as to gain $\frac{1}{5}$ of the total cost, but was obliged to throw off $\frac{1}{10}$ of this marked price, consequently his gain was only $\frac{1}{10}$ of the first cost of the goods. What fraction of the first cost was the duty?

106. What is the greatest unit of time with which 15 hours 12 minutes and 1 day 3 hours 33 minutes can be expressed as whole numbers?

107. A started to walk from Cobourg to Toronto, a distance of 70 miles, at the rate of 5 miles an hour, and at the end of every hour he rested 15 minutes. Two hours after A started B set out to drive from Cobourg to Toronto at the rate of 7 miles an hour, and at the middle of the journey he rested 2 hours. How long after B reached Toronto did A arrive there ?,

rods long

8 inches measure ?

2 days 4 delivery 24 days.

lose $\frac{1}{8}\%$.

the prothat the

on cost, l. Find of \$9.90

38 and 5 received. l.

bushels or waste, peck? and 1008

t exactly

43, 822,.

1<u>2</u>.

108. It costs 20 cents a line to insert an advertisement in a newspaper the first time, 5 cents a line for each of the 10 subsequent insertions, and then $2\frac{1}{2}$ cents a line. If a man is charged \$4.80 for a space of 6 lines, how often should his advertisement appear?

109. If I were to put posts 6 feet instead of 7 feet apart around a field I should require 66 posts more. The field is 40 rods one way. How many acres does it contain?

110. A merchant buys goods at a discount of 30% and 10% from the list price, and sells at 25% and 5% from the list price. What per cent does he gain?

PAPER XII.

111. How much gold 90% pure must be mixed with 24 ounces 65% pure so that the mixture may be 80% pure?

112. The interest on a certain sum for 6 years is \$261, and the true discount for the same time is \$180. Find the sum and the rate.

113. The sum of the interest, amount, true discount, and present worth is \$2400. The principal is \$1000. What is the interest?

114. A merchant bought 240 yards of tweed and 1560 yards of flannel, the price of the flannel per yard being $\frac{15}{5}$ that of the tweed per yard. He sold the tweed at a gain of 25% and the flannel at a loss of 20%, losing on the whole \$30. Find the cost of the tweed per yard.

115. When stock is bought at a discount of 20% and sold at a discount of 15% what per cent is gained ?

116. A has $37\frac{1}{2}\%$ less money than B. B has how much per cent more than A?

117. A 27-gallon keg is half full of wine $\frac{2}{3}$ pure; 10% is drawn out and the keg filled with water. What is the percentage of its purity now?

118. A merchant sells goods at 25% profit and takes eggs at market value in payment. If one egg in each dozen is bad, what is his percentage of net gain?

119. A real estate agent gets \$95 for selling a house and lot for \$4750. What is his rate of commission?

120. Two pounds of tea and 6 pounds of sugar cost 2.20; if sugar were to rise 50% and tea 10% they would cost 2.66. Find the price per pound of tea and sugar.

PAPER XIII.

121. Stock bought at 10% premium pays 6% on the investment. What per cent would the same stock pay if bought at 17% discount?

122. The interest of a certain sum of money for $2\frac{1}{2}$ years at 7% is \$5.87 $\frac{1}{2}$. What is the true discount on the same sum for the same time and at the same rate?

123. I have to be at a certain place at a certain time. I find that if I walk at the rate of 3 miles an hour I shall be 20 minutes too late, and if at the rate of 5 miles an hour I shall be 12 minutes too early. How far have I to go?

124. What integer multiplied by the next greater gives a product of 1980?

125. How many shares of stock must be sold at 7% discount to realize \$6510?

126. One vessel, M, contains a mixture of 27 gallons of wine and 11 of spirits. Another vessel, N, contains a mixture of 43 gallons of wine and 14 of spirits. Compare the strength of the two mixtures, supposing the strength of spirits to be three times that of wine.

127. I sold a farm for \$5600 and gained as much per cent as the farm cost me. Find the cost.

128. What was the face of a draft bought for \$1970 when exchange was at $1\frac{1}{2}$ % discount?

ent in a l0 subsecharged tisement

et apart ield is 40

and 10% ist price.

4 ounces

261, and sum and

int, and at is the

60 yards at of the and the the cost

sold at a

uch per

is drawn ge of its

129. A publisher wishes to net 14 shillings on each copy of a work. What price should he put upon it that he may be able to allow the trade 30% discount?

130. A man undertakes to build a house in 24 days. He employs 200 men to work 9 hours a day. At the end of 16 days the work is but one-half done. How many additional hands must he employ so that by increasing the day's work to 10 hours he may have the work completed at the end of the 24 days?

PAPER XIV.

131. Sold $\frac{2}{3}$ of an article for what $\frac{3}{7}$ of it cost. What was the gain per cent?

132. In what time will a \$1700 note drawing $7\frac{1}{2}\%$ simple interest double itself?

133. A farmer has 434 sheep in 3 fields. Two-thirds of the number in the first field equals $\frac{3}{4}$ of the number in the second, and $\frac{3}{3}$ of the number in the second equals $\frac{3}{4}$ of the number in the third. How many are in each field?

134. Two-thirds of A's money is to $\frac{4}{5}$ of B's as 3 to 4. Together they have \$1520. How much has B?

135. Fwo lots of cloth which together amount to 204 yards are in length as 8 to 9, and in price as 10 to 11. Their total value is $\pounds 134$ 5s. Find the separate quantities and the prices per yard.

136. One side of an avenue is planted with maples 20 feet apart and the opposite side with balsams 28 feet apart. How many times will a maple be found directly opposite to a balsam in 7 miles?

137. What is the least number of even bushels of grain that can be exactly measured by a 3-quart, a peck, or a 5-gallon measure?

138. On a bill of \$78 having 8 months to run the true discount is \$6. On a bill of \$85 the true discount at the same rate is \$5. How long has the latter bill to run ?

139. Five men agreed to do a piece of work, but two of the men did not come, and as a consequence the work was prolonged $3\frac{1}{2}$ days. In what time could the 5 men have done the work?

140. A man after a tour in Switzerland found that he had spent each day half as many shillings as the total number of days he had been away from home. His tour cost £57 12s. How many days did it occupy ?

PAPER XV.

141. A merchant sells his goods at a profit of 15%. What amount of goods must he sell to gain \$2700?

142. If a town pays its tax collector 5%, and allows 5% for uncollected taxes, what should be the amount of taxes levied to realize \$36,100?

143. A and B do a piece of work for \$36. They agree to divide the money in proportion to their ability to work, which is as 2 to 3, and also to the time each worked, which is as 3 to 4. How much money should each get?

144. For what must goods worth \$19,100 be insured at $4\frac{1}{2}\%$ so that in case of loss the worth of the goods and the premium may be recovered?

145. If 5 men and 7 boys can reap a field of corn of 125 acres in 15 days, in how many days will it take 10 men and 3 boys to reap a field of 75 acres, each boy's work being equal to $\frac{1}{3}$ of a man's?

146. A sold goods which cost him \$300 to B at a certain rate of profit. B sold the same goods to C at the same rate of profit. C paid \$432 for the goods. What did B pay for them?

147. A man both in buying and selling cheats 10% by means of false scales. Find his fraudulen't gain per cent on produce bought and sold.

148. If stock bought at 10% discount pays 5% on the investment, at what price should the same stock be bought to pay 6%?

py of a able to

vs. He 16 days l hands 0 hours ys?

was the

nple in-

of the second, r in the

4. To-

4 yards ir total prices

20 feet How balsam

hat can easure ?

rue d'sne rate

149. In a liquid mixture there are 12 gallons of wine to 5 gallons of water. On the addition of 20 gallons of water the proportion is 4 gallons of wine to 3 gallons of water. What quantities were in the original mixture ?

150. An estate agent bought two houses. The first cost $\frac{3}{4}$ as much as the second. In selling he gained 20% on the first and lost 5% on the second. His net gain was \$160. Find his net gain per cent.

PAPER XVI.

151. How many rods of fence will be required to enclose 2560 acres of land in a square form?

152. A and B together have \$136, and $\frac{2}{3}$ of A's money is equal to $\frac{3}{4}$ of B's. How much has each?

153. A grocer gained 25% by selling 12 pounds of sugar for a dollar. How much per cent will he gain by selling 15 pounds for one dollar?

154. Divide \$240 among A, B, and C so that A may have \$140 more than B and twice as much as C.

155. If the cost of an article had been 8% less the gain would have been 10% more. Find the gain per cent.

156. From a cask of wine worth \$1.20 a gallon $\frac{1}{6}$ part is drawn and replaced by wine worth 80 cents a gallon. What is now the value per gallon of the wine in the cask?

157. In walking 18 miles a man finds that the distance he walks in 100 minutes is $\frac{5}{7}$ of the remaining distance. What is his rate of walking?

158. Find the cost of fencing a rectangular field of $3\frac{3}{5}$ acres of smallest possible perimeter at \$1.50 a rod.

159. Thirteen hundred workmen in a factory are placed in charge of four superintendents, A, B, C, and D. For every 4 men under A there are 5 under C, and for every 9 under B there are 10 under D, and for every 2 under A there are 3 under B. How many 're under each ?

160. In the Centigrade thermometer the freezing point is zero and the boiling point is 100° ; in Fahrenheit's the freezing point is 32° and the boiling point is 212° . What degree C. corresponds to 77° F.?

PAPER XVII.

161. In 1880 February had 5 Sundays. When will this occur again?

162. A boy rowed $2\frac{1}{2}$ miles up a stream and back again in 1 hour and 40 minutes. He rowed down three times as fast as he rowed up. Find his rate of rowing in still water?

163. When it is noon at Greenwich it is 7 o'clock a.m. at Philadelphia. What is their difference of longitude?

164. A square courtyard is bordered by a gravel drive 10 yards wide, and the drive covers 4000 square yards. How many square yards in the enclosed grass plot?

165. Find the cost of excavating a cellar 6 feet deep for a house 20 feet by 30 feet, at 10 cents per cubic yard for the first foot in depth, 12 cents for the second, 15 cents for the third, 16 cents for the fourth, 18 cents for the fifth, and 20 cents for the sixth.

166. What fraction of the area of the floor of a room 35 feet square would be left uncovered by 147 yards of carpet 30 inches wide?

167. A contractor found that it would take 16 men 6 weeks to finish a piece of work. He decided to have it done in 8 days. How many men should he employ?

168. Three men own altogether 21,950 sheep; $\frac{3}{4}$ of the number owned by the first, $\frac{5}{6}$ of the number owned by the second, and $\frac{5}{6}$ of the number owned by the third are equal. How many sheep has each?

169. A society collected for charitable purposes a fund of £960. Each member paid as many pence as there were members in the whole society. How many members were there ?

N

o 5 galhe prot quan-

ost $\frac{3}{4}$ as irst and his net

se 2560

is equal

ar for a pounds

ve \$140

n would

part is What is

unce he What is

acres of

aced in every 4 B there nder B.

194

170. I held two notes, each due in 2 years, the aggregate face value of which was \$1020. One was discounted at 5% bank discount and the other at 5% true discount. The total proceeds was \$923. What was the face value of each?

PAPER XVIII.

171. A cubic foot of water weighs $62\frac{1}{2}$ pounds, and a floating body displaces its own weight of water. How many cubic feet of water will be displaced by a ship and cargo weighing 500 tons?

172. A miller exchanges flour worth \$5.40 per barrel with a farmer for hay worth \$9 per ton. If the farmer asks \$10.50, what price should the miller put on the flour?

173. Two trains start at the same time from London and Exeter and proceed, towards each other at the rates of 24 and 32 miles an hour respectively. When they meet it is found that one train has run 24 miles more than the other. How far is it from London to Exeter?

174. If I sell my horse for £62, and my carriage for £26, I shall gain 10% on the original cost of both; but if I sell the horse for £63, and the carriage for its original cost, I shall lose 10%. Find the original cost of each.

175. A cistern is 10 feet wide by 12 feet long, and the water in it is 8 feet deep. If a rectangular stone 3 feet by 2 feet by 1 foot be dropped into the cistern, how much will the water rise?

176. A merchant deducts 20% from the marked price of his goods and still makes a profit of 16%. At what advance on cost are the goods marked?

177. It costs \$800 to fence a farm 80 rods square. How much more will it cost to fence a farm of equal area in the form of a rectangle four times as long as it is wide with the same kind of fence ?

178. A room is $8\frac{2}{3}$ yards long and $6\frac{1}{3}$ yards wide. It costs \$12.60 to cover the walls with paper 2 feet wide and costing 7 cents a yard. Find the height of the walls.

179. A can do a piece of work in 8 days when B helps him 5 days; B can do the work in 9 days when A helps him 5 days. How long will the work take both when working together?

180. A starts from Belleville for Trenton at the same time that B starts from Trenton for Belleville. They arrive at their destinations respectively 40 minutes and 90 minutes after meeting each other. Compare their rates.

PAPER XIX.

181. A, B, and C do a piece of work for which \$116 is paid. Working alone it would take A $1\frac{3}{4}$ times as long as B and C together, and B $2\frac{1}{3}$ times as long as A and C together. How should the money be divided?

182. A person's income is derived from the commission on £6975 at a certain rate per cent, and on £5360 at 1% more than the former rate. His whole income is £547. Determine the rates.

183. A factory tailor can make 5 shirts in 2 hours; whether will it be more profitable for him to be paid at the rate of 18 cents an hour

184. A cist together it can minutes. A an hours. In what time open together ?

185. I received 9% dividend on stock purchased at 40% discount. What per cent did my investment pay /

186. What capital should be invested in 5% stock at 96 $\frac{1}{2}$ to produce the same income as £2121 invested in 3% stock at 77?

187. What is the amount of a note due in 8 months at $4\frac{1}{2}\%$ if the difference between the true and the bank discount is 9 shillings?

188. What principal will amount to \$455.65 in $7\frac{1}{2}$ years at 4% simple interest?

te face nk disroceeds

floating bic feet 0 tons ? with a

\$10.50, on and

and 32 nd that far is it

• £26, I 10 horse 10 % .

e water eet by 1 er rise ?

e of his on cost

w much orm of a kind of

It costs osting 7

189. B can beat A by $\frac{1}{2}$ a mile in a course of 4 miles. C can beat B by 2 minutes and A by 1 mile over the same course. Find the rate per hour of A, B, and C.

190. In arranging the terms of a partnership A has a note of \$420 not bearing interest. B has a similar note of \$345 but having three times as long to run. A is willing to allow \$300 for B's note. How much should B allow for A's?

PAPER XX.

191. A traveller on a train notices that $2\frac{1}{2}$ times the number of spaces between the telegraph poles that he passes in a minute it the rate of the train in miles per hour. How *t*. " apart are the poles?

192. A merchant purchased a number of pounds of tea for \$12. Had he bought 10 pounds more he would have been allowed a discount of 10% on the whole, and the price would have been \$18. How many pounds did he buy at first?

193. The prices of seats at a lecture were 50 cents, 35 cents, and 25 cents. It was known that for every 3 seats sold at 35 cents there were 4 sold at 25 cents, and for every 3 sold at 50 cents there were 4 sold at 35 cents. The whole sum realized from the sale of seats was \$76.20. How many 25-cent seats were sold ?

194. The government map of Manitoba is drawn to a scale of 6 miles to the inch. What length of line on the map will represent one side of a square farm containing 160 acres?

195. A woman bought a certain number of yards of dress goods at \$1 a yard, and half as many yards of lining at half as much a yard. The cost of the whole was \$12.50. How many yards of each did she buy?

196. An article was sold at a price which was $\frac{1}{3}$ above cost. Find the cost been $\frac{2}{3}$ of what it really was, and the selling price remained the same, the gain would have been \$3. Find the first cost.

197. There were two trains, one 210 feet and the other 230 feet long. When going on parallel tracks in the same direction one passed the other in 15 seconds. When going in opposite directions they passed in $3\frac{3}{4}$ seconds. How many miles an i. our were they moving?

198. A customer bought what he supposed was \$45 worth of tea, but a false weight having been used he got only \$42 worth. How many ounces were given him for a pound?

199. Show why 8 must be a factor of the product of any two consecutive even numbers.

200. A dealer imported 50 chests of tea containing 30 pounds each and invoiced at 45 cents a pound He paid a duty of 15%on the invoiced price and \$17.50 freight. When he unpacked the tea he found that 5 chests were damaged so that he had to sell them for 50 cents a pound 40 what price per pound must he cell the remainder to gain 26% on his entire cutlay?

PAPER XXI.

201. If I buy for 10% less I shall gain 15% more. What is my rate of gain?

202. A, B, and C are partners. A receives 35% of the profits. Of the remainder B's share is 60% more than C's. C's income is increased by \$150 when the profits rise from 10% to 12%. Find the sum invested by each.

203. A speculator bought a piece of land at \$1500, and afterwards sold it for \$1795.40. The buying and selling were done through a broker, who charged 2% for each transaction. Find the speculator's actual gain per cent on the entire cost.

204. How many pounds of tea at 64 cents a pound must a grocer mix with 4 pounds at 82 cents a pound that he may sell the mixture at 96 cents a pound and gain $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ on his outlay?

205. A barrel of sugar containing 280 pounds cost \$21. In weighing it out it lost 5%. What per cent is gained by selling it at $10\frac{1}{2}$ cents a pound ?

C can

note of 45 but w **\$**300

number minute art are

tea for e been would

5 cents, d at 35 d at 50 realized nt seats

scale of ll repre-

of dress half as w many

we cost. ng price Find the

206. Bought 2000 pounds of sugar, part at 7 cents a pound and part at 10 cents a pound. Had I bought the whole at 8 cents a pound it would have cost me \$13 less than I paid for it. How many pounds of each kind did I buy?

207. How much did the creditors receive on the \$, the account of a bankrupt estate being as follows :---

Goods valued at \$3500, sold at 62½c. on the \$; Book debts amounting to \$1750, sold at 55c. on the \$; Notes receivable amounting to \$680, sold at 80c. on the \$; Expenses, 2% of the total sum realized; Liabilities, \$2350, \$750, \$1300, \$1365, and \$724.50?

208. When currency is at a discount of 40% what is the corresponding premium on gold?

209. Find the cost of digging a drain 48 rods long, 3 feet deep, $3\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide at the top, and $2\frac{1}{2}$ feet wide at the bottom, at 4 cents. a cubic yard.

210. If sterling exchange is quoted at \$4.84, and exchange in London on Frankfort is at 20.25 marks per \pounds , what should a bill of 3800 marks be worth in New York?

PAPER XXII.

211. If gold is at $12\frac{1}{2}\%$ premium, what is the corresponding discount on currency?

212. If $\frac{3}{4}$ of the selling price is 20% less than the cost, what is the gain per cent?

213. A piece of work was to be performed by 6 men in a certain time; 2 men, however, failed to come, and the work was consequently prolonged 6 days. In what time should it have been done?

214. A grocer intending to gain 20% on his stock of tea fixed his prices accordingly. After selling $\frac{3}{2}$ of his stock he was forced to reduce his price 10 cents per pound, and so gained only $14\frac{2}{3}\%$ on the whole. Find the cost price per pound of the tea.

215. How many thousand feet, board measure, are there in 100 sticks of square timber each 30 feet long and 16 inches by 15 inches at the ends?

216. A certain sum of money if invested in 6% stock at 90 purchases \$400 more stock than if invested in 7% stock at 95. Find the difference of income.

21.7. A man drove to town at the rate of 8 miles an hour, and after remaining there 28 minutes he returned at the rate of 5 miles an hour. He was absent 6 hours. How far was he from town?

218. A train started to go from P to Q, 210 miles, at 30 miles an hour, but after having gone 100 miles it was delayed 20 minutes by an accident. It finished the trip at 22 miles an hour. How much behind time was it?

219. If I ask 30% profit on an article, but fall 10% on my asking price, what rate of profit do I make?

220. I received an 8% dividend on stock at 80. I invested my dividend in the same stock and then had \$6875 stock. Find my dividend.

PAPER XXIII.

221. A merchant buys a quantity of svrup for \$750. By using a false measure and by marking at 35% gain he nets \$375. What fraction will express the size of his measure?

222. A merchant buys sugar at 8 cents a pound and sells it at a profit of 25%, but by mistake uses a pound weight $\frac{1}{20}$ too heavy. Having sold all his sugar he finds he has lost \$16 by overweight. How many pounds did he buy?

223. A sold B a carriage which cost him \$150 at $12\frac{1}{2}\%$ profit. B sold it to C at a profit of 10%. What would have been A's profit per cent if he had sold to C for the price C paid?

224. A person makes a journey 1248 miles in 12 days, going 13 hours a day. In how many days of 9 hours will it take him to go 576 miles at the same rate?

ound at 8 or it.

count

he \$;

e cor-

deep, cents

ige in. a bill

nding

hat is

a cerk was have

fixed. orced. 143%

225. A can do as much work in 3 hours as B can do in 5 hours. How long will it take A to finish a piece of work of which B has done $\frac{3}{4}$ in 20 days?

226. The wages of A and B together for $7\frac{1}{2}$ days will pay the wages of A alone for 20 days. For how many days will this sum pay the wages of B alone?

227. A farmer sold 14 bushels of wheat and 16 bushels of oats for \$13.52. He received for the wheat 32 cents a bushel more than for the oats. Find the price of each per bushel.

228. If a grocer sells a tub of butter at 22 cents a pound he will gain 168 cents, but if he sells at 17 cents a pound he will lose 112 cents. Find the weight of the tub and the cost per pound.

229. At what time between 10 and 11 are the hands of a clock together ?

230. A can do $\frac{1}{5}$ of a piece of work in 2 hours; B can do $\frac{1}{2}$ of the remainder in 3 hours, and C can do the remainder in 4 hours. How long will the work take them if all work together?

PAPER XXIV.

231. One man walks $2\frac{1}{2}$ miles in 35 minutes, and another walks $4\frac{1}{2}$ miles in 60 minutes. How much of a start must the slower have so that in a race of $7\frac{1}{2}$ miles they may come in even?

232. The H. C. F. and L. C. M. of two numbers between 100 and 200 are ℓ and 3150. Find the numbers.

233. How far will a carriage have traveled when the fore wheel will have turned 60 times more than the hind wheel, the circumferences being 8 feet and 10 feet?

234. A garrison has provisions for 60 days. After 12 days a reinforcement of 3000 men arrives. By putting the men on half rations the provisions are made to last 32 days longer. How many men in the original garrison?

235. A grocer spent equal sums in buying tea, coffee, and sugar. He gained 20% on the tea, 10% on the coffee, and lost 8% on the sugar. His total receipts were \$3864. Find the cost of each.

236. Two-fifths of a mixture of wine and water is wine, but when 10 gallons of water are added the wine is only $\frac{7}{20}$ of the whole. Find the quantities at first.

237. Add together the 40 numbers beginning with 1002.

238. Three-fourths of the difference between two numbers is equal to $\frac{1}{6}$ of their sum. The smaller number is 287. Find the larger.

239. The difference between the simple and the compound interest of a certain sum at 8% for 2 years is \$1.20. Find the sum.

240. How many pounds of butter must be mixed with $12\frac{1}{2}$ pounds of lard that the mixture may contain $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ of butter?

PAPER XXV.

241. What number multiplied by $\frac{3}{11}$ of itself will give 1188?

242. A man engaged with a farmer at \$1.10 a day for each of 90 days that he worked. He promised to forfeit 60 cents for each idle day. At the end of the time he received \$61.60. How many days did he work?

243. A boatman can row 10 miles an hour in still water. In going a certain distance down a stream which runs at the rate of 2 miles an hour it takes him 10 hours. How long will it take him to row back?

244. Find the time between 8 and 9 when the minute hand of a clock is 7 minute spaces behind the hour hand.

245. An agent sold wheat at 4% commission and invested the proceeds, less his double commission, in sugar. He received 2% commission on the actual sum invested, and his whole commission was \$63. Find the cost of the sugar?

in 5 rk of

y the s sum

f oats more

nd he e will t per

of a

 $\frac{1}{2}$ of ours.

other t the ne in

n 100

fore l, the

ays a half How

246. How much does a grocer who gives only 153 ounces for a pound cheat a customer who buys goods amounting to \$64?

247. A starts to walk from one town to another at the average rate of 3 miles an hour. Twenty minutes later a bicyclist, B, starts on the same journey at the rate of 12 miles an hour. On reaching the second town B rests $\frac{1}{4}$ of an hour, and after riding 20 minutes on his return journey meets A still on his way. What is the distance between the two towns?

248. The assessed value of the property in a town is \$3,265,-000, and the tax to be raised is \$39,180. What will be the rate on the \$, and what will be the amount of A's taxes, his property being assessed at \$15,000 ?

249. A can do as much work in 2 days as B can do in $2\frac{1}{2}$, and B can do as much in 2 days as C can do in $2\frac{1}{2}$. They all start together and complete a job worth \$61. How much of the money should A receive?

250. A St. Paul investment company declared a dividend of 8%, and one of the shareholders, who lived in Toronto, drew on St., Paul for his money. He received \$318.40, the rate of exchange being $\frac{1}{2}\%$ discount. Find how many shares this man owned.

PAPER XXVI.

251. If a parcel of 12 pounds weight is carried 80 miles by rail for 2s. 4d., and the rate for the distance over 50 miles is $\frac{2}{3}$ of the rate for the first 50 miles, how far can a parcel of 8 pounds be carried for 4d.?

252. There are 3 sections of land in such a shape that the length is 6 times the breadth. The whole is divided into 96 rectangular lots, each of which is twice as long as it is wide. Find the dimensions in rods of each lot.

253. If I sell one of my two farms for \$4500 and the other for \$1800 I will gain 5% on the cost of both; but if I sell the dearer farm at \$4000 and the other at cost I will lose 5%. Find, the cost of each farm.

254. A mixture of black and green tea is worth \$22.65. Another mixture with the proportions interchanged is worth \$24.60. Four pounds of black tea cost as much as 5 pounds of green. Find the cost price of each per pound.

255. A merchant bought a certain number of yards of cloth at \$2.50 per yard. He sold $\frac{2}{5}$ of the cloth at 25% profit, and on the sale of the remainder he lost \$15. If his total loss was equal to 5%, find the number of yards.

256. A and B buy the apples in a barrel for \$2.25. B pays 75 cents of this price, A paying the remainder. It costs B 25 cents to deliver the apples, and A gives 15 cents for the barrel, which B keeps. If they share the apples equally, who owes the other, and how much?

257. An agent sells flour on commission of 2%, and purchases goods on true commission of 3%. If he had received 3% for selling and 2% for buying his whole commission would have been \$5 more. Find the value of the goods bought.

258. The owner of a mill driven by water power got an insurance on it at the rate of $1\frac{7}{8}$ %. He afterwards introduced steam power, and the company took an additional risk of \$1200. They, however, raised the rate $\frac{1}{2}$ % on account of the greater danger. The extra premium required amounted to \$53.50. For what amount was the mill first insured ?

259. A railway train, after travelling for 1 hour, has an accident which delays it 60 minutes, after which it proceeds at $\frac{3}{4}$ of its former speed and arrives at its destination 3 hours behind time. Now, had the accident occurred 50 miles further on the train would have arrived $1\frac{3}{4}$ hours sooner. What is the length of the line ?

260. A rectangular court is 50 yards long and 30 yards broad. It has paths joining the middle points of the opposite sides, each 6 feet wide, and a path of the same breadth running all around it. The remainder is covered with grass. The cost of the pavement was $12\frac{1}{2}$ cents per square foot, and of the grass 70 cents per square yard. What was the cost of laying out the court?

forage-B, On ingay.

35,ate orty

and tart the

rail the be

the 96 de.

her the ind.

PAPER XXVII.

251. A man's income is derived from the proceeds of \$2275 at a certain rate per cent, and \$2710 at 1% more than the former rate. His whole income is \$453. What are the rates ?

262. A boy can split a cord of wood in 3 hours and pile a cord in 45 minutes. How long will it take him to split and pile 6 cords?

263. The time occupied by a train 352 yards long, going at the rate of 40 miles an hour, in crossing a bridge is 50 seconds. Find the length of the bridge.

264. A man sells goods for \$1125. Half he sold at an advance of 25% on the cost, $\frac{2}{5}$ at an advance of $12\frac{1}{2}$ %, and the remainder at $\frac{1}{2}$ of the cost. What did he pay for the goods?

265. Equal weights of gold and silver are in value as 20 to 1, and equal volumes are in value as 1284 to 35. A certain volume is composed of equal weights of gold and silver. Find how many times more valuable the same volume would be weight it composed wholly of gold.

266. A person buys a horse upon borrowed money, for which he pays 6% per annum. The horse earns 70 cents a day and costs $\frac{1}{2}$ % of his purchase price for daily keeping. The owner sells him at the end of a year for \$50 and realizes \$132.40 upon the whole transaction. What did the horse cost?

267. A man owns a horse and a saddle; $\frac{1}{4}$ of the value of the horse is equal to 4 times the value of the saddle; the horse and saddle together are worth \$170. Find the value of each.

268. By selling an article for \$21 I lost $12\frac{1}{2}\%$. At what price should I have sold it in order to gain $12\frac{1}{2}\%$?

269. The pendulum of one clock makes 24 beats in 26''; that of another 36 beats in 40''. If they start at the same time, when first will the beats occur together?

270. What is the market price of 5% bank stock which yields 6% interest after an income tax of 3% has been paid?

PAPER XXVIII.

271. A person sells a certain amount of 5% stock for 86 and invests in 6% at 103, and by so doing changes his income by \$1. Is the change an increase or a decrease? How much stock did he sell?

272. Lead is 11.4 times and zinc 7.2 times as heavy as water. If 3 pounds of lead and 2 pounds of zinc be melted together, compare the weight of the mixture with that of water.

273. I found that by giving 13 cents each to a certain number of beggars I would have just 10 cents left, but by giving each of them 17 cents I would not have enough by 10 cents. How many beggars were there ?

274. A contractor found that he would have \$75 left if he paid his men 85 cents each, but that he would need \$125 more if he paid them \$1.25 each. How many men were there?

275. A boy earned 15 cents a day for prompt attendance during the 200 school days in the year, and forfeited 12 cents each day he was tardy. At the end of the year he received \$29.73. How many days was he punctual?

276. A crew can row up a stream a certain distance in 64 minutes and back again in 60 minutes. Determine the distance, the rate of the stream being half a mile an hour.

277. Two-thirds of a number increased by $\frac{1}{5}$ of the number, and this increased by 34, will give twice the number. Find the number.

278. When the hour hand of a clock is 22 minutes ahead of the minute hand, how far must the minute hand move to overtake the hour hand?

279. If the time past noon increased by 90 minutes equals $\frac{5}{11}$ of the time from noon till midnight, what time is it?

280. When wheat is worth 90 cents a bushel a baker's loaf weighs 9 ounces. How many ounces should it weigh when wheat is worth 72 cents a bushel ?

5 at mer

ord le 6

g at nds.

nce ider

o 1, ume any osed

hich and mer pon

the and

rice

that hen

elds
EIGHTH DEPARTMENT.

PAPER XXIX.

281. A pound of tea and 7 pounds of sugar cost \$1.64. If sugar were to rise 60% and tea 25% they would cost \$2.33. Find the price per pound of tea and sugar.

282. A person sells 184 shares of 4% stock at 92 and invests in $3\frac{1}{2}\%$ stock, gaining \$160 per annum by the change of income. At what price did he purchase the latter stock?

283. In erecting a house I paid three times as much for material as for labor. Had I paid 5% less for the material and 4% more for the labor the house would have cost me \$2334. What did the house cost?

284. How many pounds of coffee at 24 cents must a merchant mix with 6 pounds at 36 cents that he may sell the mixture at 40 cents and gain $33\frac{1}{4}\%$?

285. Four pipes, A, B, C, and D, fill a cistern in 3, 12, 15. and 20 hours respectively. Four other pipes empty it in 4, 10, 30, and 60 hours respectively. If the eight pipes are open together, in how many hours will the cistern be filled?

286. A person increases his capital 20% annually, less a yearly expenditure of \$500. At the end of four years his capital amounts to \$18,052. Find his original capital.

287. A man bought a piece of cloth at \$1.40 a yard and lining for it at 60 cents a yard. There were 35 yards altogether, and the total price was \$37. How many yards were there of each?

288. A certain sum amounts to \$2070 in 6 months, and to \$2420 in 3 years, simple interest. What is the rate per cent?

289. How far must a person proceed on a stage which travels $4\frac{1}{2}$ miles an hour in order that he may walk back at the rate of 3 miles an hour and be gone just $7\frac{1}{2}$ hours?

290. A man buys 150 pounds of sugar, and after selling 100 pounds finds that he has been selling at a loss of 5%. At what per cent advance on the cost must he sell the remaining 50 pounds that he may gain 10% on the entire transaction?

EXAMINATION EXERCISES.

PAPER XXX.

291. A lump of gold 22 carats fine contains 36 ounces of alloy. How many ounces of alloy in a lump of the same weight only 16 carats fine?

292. Find the smallest multiplier that will make 3428 a perfect square.

293. Show without division that 36432 contains 8, 9, and 11 as factors.

294. How many days elapsed between the annular eclipse of May 15, 1836, and that of March 15, 1858?

295. By selling goods at 60 cents a pound 8% is lost. What advance must be made in the price in order to gain 15%?

296. Divide \$54.25 among three persons, giving the second \$10 less than the first and twice as much as the third.

297. A substance is weighed from both arms of a false balance, and its apparent weights are 18 pounds and 8 pounds. Find its true weight.

298. When the sum of the interest and true discount is subtracted from the sum of the true present worth and amount, the remainder is \$2460. What is the present worth?

299. A merchant buys goods at a discount of 40% and 20% from the list prices, and sells at a discount of 10% and 5%. What is his gain per cent, allowing 10% of his sales for bad debts?

30C. X, Y, and Z formed a partnership to carry on a milling business. X owned the site, valued at \$1500; Y put up the building, worth \$2400; and Z put in the machinery, costing \$3000. They ran the mill for one year on this basis, and then agreed to take equal shares in it; but meantime the value of the land had increased 20%, the value of the building had decreased 10%, and the worth of the machinery had depreciated 25%. Who should pay the other, and how much?

If 33.

ests ne.

ate-4 % hat

ant e at

and 30, er,

rly ital

ing und 1? to

els · of 3

100 hat 50

EIGHTH DEPARTMENT.

PAPER XXXI.

301. What is a concrete number ? An abstract number ?

302. Show that a unit is not necessarily a single thing.

303. Why do we begin at the unit's place in the addition of numbers?

304. How may the accuracy of the process of subtraction be verified ?

305. Any number is divisible by 9 if the sum of its digits be divisible by 9. Why?

306. The product of the greatest common measure and least common multiple of two numbers is equal to the product of the two numbers. Why?

307. Compare the *metric* system of weights and measures with the system in general use.

308. Prove the rules for multiplication and division of fractions.

309. Show that the true discount of any sum of money is the true present worth of the bank discount for the same time and rate.

310. Prove that a number will be divisible by 11 if the sum of the digits in the even places differs from that in the odd places by a multiple of 11.

208

r? g. dition of

action be

•

digits be

and least of the

res with

of frac-

ey is the ime and

e sum of d places.

